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0 sustain San Miguel’'s popularity, the
Company launched a new marketing
campaign, “One Beer, One World of Friends”.




THE YEAR’S HIGHLIGHTS | KEERE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars except number of

shares issued, shareholders and personnel)

Turnover ($'000)

Loss for the year ($'000)

Loss per share - Basic (cents)

Taxes paid, including beer tax ($'000)
Taxes paid per share (cents)

Fixed assets ($'000)

Net worth ($'000)

Salaries, wages and other benefits ($'000)

Number of shares issued

Number of shareholders

Number of personnel
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2009
—EENF

696,824

(343,052)

(90)

68,877

18

1,087,198

1,169,484

99.341

373,570,560

2,223

766

2008
—ZET)NEF
(restated)
(BE5)
753,375
(258,155)
(70)
102,485
27
1,379,561
1,490,925
91,656
373,570,560

2,253

766
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

To Our Shareholders,

With the economic crisis still far from abating, 2009 proved an extremely
challenging year for the Group. Macroeconomic factors such as increasing
unemployment, tightening credit conditions and staghant wages weighed
down our South China operations. As a result, consolidated turnover of
the Group was at HK$696.8 million, 7.5% lower than 2008 (2008: HK$753.4
million). Gross profit for year 2009 was HK$361.8 million (2008: HK$427.3
million). Despite on-going inflationary pressures, gross profit margin was
maintained at 51.9% (2008 56.7%).

Excluding the impairment loss of the Group’s South China operations, net
of tax effect, of HK$300.0 million and HK$230.0 million in 2009 and 2008
respectively, the consolidated loss for 2009 would have been HK$43.1
million compared to HK$28.2 million in 2008 (restated), mainly from losses
of its South China operations. Including the impairment loss, the
consolidated loss for 2009 was HK$343.1 million (2008 (restated): HK$258.2
million).

Net cash balances at 31 December 2009 amounted to HK$103.6 million
(2008: HK$160.3 million). Total net assets maintained at HK$1,169.5 million
(2008 (restated): HK$1,490.9 million) together with a debt-to-equity ratio
0f 0.21 (2008 (restated): 0.12) and current ratio of 1.2 times (2008 (restated):
1.2 times).
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No dividends will be declared for 2009.

HONG KONG OPERATIONS

Our major market of Hong Kong continues to suffer from the global
recession. Unemployment has grown and retail sales have declined, unable
to weather the effects of weak consumer confidence. The total beer
industry suffered a 3% drop in volumes, with reduced consumption in
on-premise outlets which posted a double digit drop in beer volumes.
Encouragingly, consumption in off-premise outlets remained steady:.

Our Company'’s domestic sales volumes reflected the decline. Nevertheless,
the re-opening of the brewery in the early part of 2009 enabled the
Company to participate in San Miguel’s growing beer export business. As
a result, total volumes grew by 11% and revenues by 10% over the prior
year.

The Company continued to be the No. 1 beer company in Hong Kong with
our flagship brand San Miguel at the forefront. Our continued commitment
to provide our customers and consumers a portfolio of quality brands and
high levels of service enabled us to safeguard our leading position. To our
customers, we offer a wide range of quality products and timely and
appropriate service that add value to our products.

Throughout 2009, our Company continued to invest in television and point-
of-sales marketing campaigns, we had events and sponsorship programs
to strengthen and grow our brands in a lasting and relevant way. To sustain
San Miguel’s popularity, the Company launched a new marketing campaign,
“One Beer, One World of Friends”. The campaign was launched via an
exciting and contemporary television commercial, “Cheers”. The “One Beer,
One World of Friends” campaign also extended its reach through
point-of-sales visibility blitz, on-line communications and public relation
programs.

Building on the success of the San Miguel “WildDayOut Grand Show”, the
Company presented a Halloween-themed “WildDayOut Grand Show” at
the Hong Kong Jockey Club Shatin Racecourse. The nine-hour marathon
concert was the culmination of a series of bar shows and promotion
programs aimed at strengthening San Miguel’s bond with young adults.

January 2009 saw the launch of the San Miguel Soccer Union, an
experiential program that combined the excitement of soccer and the joy
of drinking San Miguel beer. There were a total of twelve soccer parties in
selected pubs and bars and one grand soccer party at the Hong Kong
Jockey Club Shatin Racecourse. Some of the parties were also broadcasted
live via a local TV station with viewership of about 1 million households.

All these activities, over and above our unwavering commitment to improve
excellence in execution and cost management, will provide our Company
the ability to maintain market leadership in Hong Kong.

B3R TRE _ZSZENFERAKRE -

EREL

HRERTR - HAEBRENEIEMHEER
1B REABURTERRE - RAKREEST
HEEELDRBNEE -  WEXNBRBHET
BT 3% RBGAEVEE R D 5| B IEE A
BUHT T < ATENE - ERARGAH

TTEMEREE T AR FNRHIFET
[RERHZR - T - E - ETNFYIRBHRER
EENB AR GG R H AL O %75 - 42
R - BHERWAREFDHIERR11%M
10% -

ARAUIAREREE —HNEBEAT - ME
ZmEENEXERBIES o RFIVALIRYE
RE - 2BEM-—RABDETEFPMHEEEE
EmiEae U MRS KENRE - T
B B EE RA RO EE E o MEE 18
EHORBKSIETEMEE -

BE—F  ARBBEREEEEREEEN
MBHEETE  BMERSEEE REY
2 BEERBMWEAAIONBRETE NS
fE e BERENOTEDIEE  AQFHELT
— A2 TISHEE [ — 8N - —IH
Rl - HistB8EBRNAXFTHONERES
[Cheers| RECAHEHE o [— 18 - —IHAAR]
RITH G HE BT IR E — P IE - LUHENE
2 HLBARAHBEER RNEEEE
ﬁ °

# A AE 7 TwildDayout Grand Show] #9 A
U ARREREESSSEESRTTEE
#0 = By [WildDayOut Grand Show] o 1/ )\B
MBS Ee R —RIBERERERIER
WE - STEEEE ) RREAFEEEENE
&,

“EENF-AMBTENEKE - E2—1E
BSIEE - BE T BRIRMRIBNGRAE )RR
R - EEERERBEBERITT + @B
EERREEBEFELOFHRITT ABRKK
RS - B —EREFE B —HAMERAR
SERIN-—ABERERE -
PrAELERE  BMERFIROERETER
RAEIR - RARBRFGEENIHREMT
b ELHE o



10

CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT | =F#FHRE

SOUTH CHINA OPERATIONS

2009 was an extremely difficult year for our South China operations with
the tough economic and industry conditions adversely affecting our
volumes.

With the weak demand for consumer goods due to the financial meltdown
in most of the world’s developed economies, the Pearl River Delta, where
numerous manufacturing facilities catering to exports are located, was
worst hit, as it struggles to slowly adapt and re-invent itself to cater to
domestic demand.

Competition, meanwhile, intensified as beer companies try to grab volumes
in a crowded and shrinking market. The Group took a more cautious stance
in balancing efforts between protecting our position in the market and our
bottom-line.

Guangzhou San Miguel Brewery Company Limited’s (“GSMB's") total sales
registered a decline versus the previous year. With the re-introduction of
Guang's Pineapple beer in the second half of 2008, sales of our
lower-priced agency brands registered a significant increase. Meanwhile,
aggressive penetration and promotion activities allowed GSMB to stand
its ground in key markets such as Guangzhou and grow retail chain volumes
in Guangzhou, Shenzhen and Dongguan by 8%. All these activities,
combined with the launch of the San Miguel “One Beer, One World of
Friends” campaign sustained San Miguel brand equity in the market.

San Miguel (Guangdong) Brewery Company Limited ("SMGB") registered
an improvement in operating 10ss versus the previous year, despite lower
sales volumes, through effective cost-management initiatives. Dragon Beer
was most affected by the economic downturn as its consumer base, mainly
factory workers, suffered massive layoffs. Nevertheless, Dragon Draft, a
new premium variant launched in 2008 to improve brand image and
enhance total portfolio mix achieved significant growth over last year.

The Company continued to air the successful television commercial
"Poolside” and “Bar Restaurant” which raised the brand’s profile as shown
by various researches conducted.

COMMUNITY RELATIONS AND SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

As in past years, the Company continues to sponsor and participate in
various local community events and make regular donations to charities
and non-profit organizations.

The Company is also committed to protecting the environment where it
operates and ensuring that various environmental standards set by
government are met or exceeded.
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HUMAN RESOURCES

The Company continues to recognize that people play an integral part in
the organization’s long term goal. We continue to devote resources in
training and development to equip them with appropriate knowledge and
skill so as to face today and tomorrow’s challenges. Team spirit is
emphasized and fostered through mentorship, direction briefings and
team-building workshops.

The Company continues to offer competitive remuneration packages
commensurate with market standards and provides attractive fringe
benefits, including medical and insurance coverage and retirement
packages to all employees.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company continued to apply the principles of the Code Provisions
under the Code on Corporate Governance Practices contained in Appendix
14 of the Listing Rules throughout the year ended 31 December 2009 except
for the Code Provision A.4.1. Code Provision A.4.1 sets out that
non-executive directors should be appointed for a specific term, subject
to re-election. At present, all of the non-executive directors of the Company
are not appointed for a specific term but are subject to retirement by
rotation at least once every three years and re-election at the Annual
General Meeting under the Company’s Articles of Association.

FUTURE DIRECTION AND CHALLENGES
The objectives of the Company for the year 2010 are:

o In Hong Kong, to continue to improve profitability, increase our
market share and reinforce the market leadership of the Company.

o In South China, to turnaround the business by continuing to
strengthen San Miguel’s brand equity and to grow the Dragon brand.

Moving forward, the Company has a number of dynamic growth strategies
in place which should provide a strong foundation that will allow the
Company to ride on the expected recovery of the China and Hong Kong
economy.

In closing, we wish to reiterate our commitment to maximize shareholder
value and strengthen our brands. We are also committed to improve
profitability by managing our costs and achieving better efficiencies,
particularly in the areas of production and distribution.
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FUTURE DIRECTION AND CHALLENGES (Continued)

We wish to thank the Board of Directors for their continued guidance and
support. Thank you also to our shareholders, customers, business partners
and consumers for their continued support; and the employees for their
dedication and hard work.

L

Ramon S. Ang
Chairman

12 March 2010
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To be presented at the Forty-seventh Annual General Meeting of
shareholders to be held at Island Ballroom, Level 5, Island Shangri-La Hong
Kong, Two Pacific Place, Supreme Court Road, Central, Hong Kong on
Tuesday, 27 April 2010 at 3:00 p.m..

The directors submit herewith their Annual Report together with the audited
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2009.

San Miguel Brewery Hong Kong Limited (the “Company”) is a company
incorporated and domiciled in Hong Kong and has its registered office and
principal place of business at 9/F, Citimark Building, 28 Yuen Shun Circuit,
Siu Lek Yuen, Shatin, New Territories, Hong Kong.

The principal activities of the Company are the manufacture and distribution
of bottled, canned and draught beers. The principal activities and other
particulars of the Company'’s subsidiaries are set out in note 16 to the
financial statements.

The segment analysis of the Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”)
for the financial year is set out in note 13 to the financial statements.

The information in respect of the Group's sales and purchases attributable
to the major customers and suppliers, respectively, during the year is as
follows:

The largest customer SN

Five largest customers in aggregate BRAREFPA
The largest supplier AR

Five largest suppliers in aggregate BRAHEREE

One of the five largest suppliers was San Miguel Corporation (“SMC"), the
ultimate holding company of the Company, and its associates (collectively
the “San Miguel Group”) in which Mr. Ramon S. Ang, Mr. Faustino F. Galang,
Mr. Carlos Antonio M. Berba, Ms. Minerva Lourdes B. Bibonia, Ms. Jesusa
Victoria H. Bautista, Mr. Carmelo L. Santiago and Mr. Peter K. Y. Tam have
beneficial interests to the extent that they either have equity interests in
or are directors and/or officers of the San Miguel Group.
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Save as disclosed above, none of the directors, their associates, or any
shareholder of the Company (which to the knowledge of the directors owns
more than 5% of the Company’s share capital) had any interest in these
major customers or suppliers.

The loss of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2009 and the state
of the Company’s and the Group'’s affairs as at that date are set out on
pages 60 to 132 of the financial statements.

Loss attributable to shareholders of HK$343,052,000 (2008 (restated):
HK$258,155,000) has been transferred to reserves. Other movements in
reserves are set out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity.

The directors have resolved that no final dividend be declared for the year
ended 31 December 2009.

Charitable and other donations made by the Group during the year
amounted to HKS$Nil (2008: HK$59,000).

The Group acquired fixed assets in the amount of HK$43,501,000 (2008:
HK$172,057,000) during the year. Details of these acquisitions and other
movements in fixed assets are set out in note 14 to the financial statements.

Details of the share capital of the Company are set out in note 28(b) to the
financial statements. There were no movements during the year.

The directors of the Company as at the date of this Annual Report are set
out on page 3 of the Annual Report.

With the exception of General Benjamin P. Denfensor, Jr. who was appointed
as directors during the year, all of the directors served as such for the full
year.

Mr. Ferdinand K. Constantino and Mr. Romulo L. Neri resigned as directors
during 2009.
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Mr. Cheung Yuen Tak, Dr. The Hon. Sir David K. P. Li, Mr. Ng Wai Sun, and Mr.
Carmelo L. Santiago retire by rotation in accordance with Article 105 of
the Company'’s Articles of Association at the forthcoming Annual General
Meeting and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

Subsequent to the balance sheet date, Ms. Minerva Lourdes B. Bibonia
and Ms. Jesusa Victoria H. Bautista resigned as directors and Mr. Keisuke
Nishimura and Mr. Motoyasu Ishihara were appointed as directors.

General Benjamin P. Defensor, Jr., Mr. Motoyasu Ishihara and Mr. Keisuke
Nishimura who were appointed as directors since the last Annual General
Meeting, retire from the offices of director in accordance with Article 96 of
the Company’s Article of Association, and offer themselves for re-election
at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting.

None of the directors proposed for re-election at the forthcoming Annual
General Meeting has an unexpired service contract which is not
determinable by the Company or any of its subsidiaries within one year
without payment of compensation, other than normal statutory obligations.

The directors of the Company as of 31 December 2009 had the following
personal interests in the shares of the Company, its holding companies,
subsidiaries and other associated corporations (within the meaning of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance ("SFQ")) at that date as recorded in the
register of directors’ interests required to be kept under Section 352 of
the SFO:

(1) INTERESTS IN ISSUED SHARES

Name
HH

David K. P. Li ZHE

et FREHRLT - REFELENER
BAEEHKRBARRABERE10568E
REGRITZBRRBFAEG LmAERNEE
B

N4EHE B1% - Minerva Lourdes B.Biboniaz + &
Jesusa Victoria H. Bautistazz -8 =& =85 &
ANBNAEROGREREEWSEAES -

EEEE  ARERELEMARNENLEER
E-RBERBEFREREZERES ° (KEA
RAEBEIREOMRMRTE - REIHETT 2R
BFEKRE LEREE -

BREERRBFAS LEREECEFTAE
HEARNBHEEEAMBARRITARTHEE
M B RN ER —FARL LN AELEE
(—BORERERIN 2 IRIFEH ©

R(GEF LB GRD) EI2GRERBTFLES
BamELMLEmE  R-ETAFT A=
T-RAZARREENEBRFBELARA - HiE
BAR - MBARREMBEAR (EXALGE
FRHERM)) ERTRA 2 ERESIT ¢

(1) EeBRITREFz#ES

Number of ordinary shares of
HK$0.50 each in the Company

AATEREE
BEOSOTZEBRZBRHAEE
Number of % of total

shares held issued shares
e BITRG

EREAE BEzEDL
500,000 0.13%
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(1

INTERESTS IN ISSUED SHARES (Continued) (1) EBBRTRATZEZGE

Number of common shares in
San Miguel Corporation

EHBEQRNEBERZBROEE
Number of % of total
Name shares held issued shares
HEBTRA
i FR#HE wWHEsEDL
Class A (par value of 5 pesos each): H¥E (EREESKR):
Ramon S. Ang BRI 6,050 0.000264%
Faustino F. Galang M= 13,800 0.000602%
Carlos Antonio M. Berba SLE R 1,045 0.000046%
Minerva Lourdes B. Bibonia Minerva Lourdes B. Bibonia 30,000 0.001309%
Jesusa Victoria H. Bautista Jesusa Victoria H. Bautista 5,000 0.000218%
Carmelo L. Santiago METE = 5,000 0.000218%
Class B (par value of 5 pesos each): 23 (EREESKE) :
Minerva Lourdes B. Bibonia Minerva Lourdes B. Bibonia 30,000 0.001309%
Preferred S1 Shares BERST
(par value of 5 pesos each): (BEREESEER) :
Faustino F. Galang iz 130,000 0.013395%
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(2)

INTERESTS IN UNDERLYING SHARES

Certain directors of the Company have been granted stock options
to subscribe for common shares in SMC under SMC's stock option
scheme. Particulars of stock options in SMC held by directors during

the year and as at 31 December 2009 are as follows:

Name

t#

Class A (par value

of 5 pesos each):

Ramon S. Ang

Carlos Antonio
M. Berba

Minerva Lourdes B.
Bibonia

Peter K. Y. Tam

REBR
HESRE)

BERX

Minerva Lourdes B.

Bibonia

Date
granted

RiAH

26/06/2003
01/10/2004
10/11/2005
01/03/2007
26/06/2008
25/06/2009

01/10/2004
10/11/2005
01/03/2007
26/06/2008
25/06/2009

26/06/2003
01/10/2004
10/11/2005
01/03/2007
26/06/2008
25/06/2009

26/06/2003
01/10/2004
10/11/2005

(2)

RIEERAD z

ARRETESEREENBRARZER
R BIERBRAEARBLENERRZ
BRERN  c REARR -_ZETNAET
“A=T - BREFHRALENERRZ
FERERBT

Stock options in San Miguel Corporation

Exercise
period
up to

BT
i34

26/06/2011
01/10/2012
10/11/2013
01/03/2015
26/06/2016
25/06/2017

01/10/2012
10/11/2013
01/03/2015
26/06/2016
25/06/2017

26/06/2011
01/10/2012
10/11/2013
01/03/2015
26/06/2016
25/06/2017

26/06/2011
01/10/2012
10/11/2013

ENENRZERE
Number of
options Number of
outstanding options Number of
at the granted/ options
Exercise beginning (exercised) outstanding
price per of the during at the end
option year the year of the year
ENR ERRE/ FER
HRITEZ Bz HRITEZ
BRAEE BREZA BREZA BREHA
(pesos)
(B%)
54.50 259,422 - 259,422
57.50 266,854 — 266,854
65.00 204,654 — 204,654
63.50 993,386 - 993,386
40.50 535,923 - 535,923
58.05 - 499,422 499,422
57.50 8,168 (8,168) —
65.00 20,566 — 20,566
63.50 127,058 (84,706) 42,352
40.50 76,374 (25,458) 50,916
58.05 — 72,486 72,486
54.50 11,928 (6,000) 5,928
57.50 26,750 — 26,750
65.00 33,824 - 33,824
63.50 180,898 - 180,898
40.50 96,138 (32,046) 64,092
58.05 - 89,232 89,232
54.50 17,452 — 17,452
57.50 17,039 — 17,039
65.00 909 - 909



INTERESTS IN UNDERLYING SHARES (Continued) (2)

Name

#e

Class B (par value
of 5 pesos each):

Ramon S. Ang

Carlos Antonio
M. Berba

Minerva Lourdes B.
Bibonia

Peter K. Y. Tam

ZE(BR
HESHE)

BEMX

@l
)
e

Minerva Lourdes B.

Bibonia

Date
granted

Rk B

26/06/2003
01/10/2004
10/11/2005
01/03/2007
26/06/2008
25/06/2009

01/10/2004
10/11/2005
01/03/2007
26/06/2008
25/06/2009

26/06/2003
01/10/2004
10/11/2005
01/03/2007
26/06/2008
25/06/2009

26/06/2003
01/10/2004
10/11/2005

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS | EE={)&

Stock options in San Miguel Corporation
EhBEARZERE
Number of
options
outstanding
at the
Exercise Exercise beginning
period price per of the
up to option year
FOR
BT HRITEZ
i BRITERE EREHR
(pesos)
(B%)
26/06/2011 62.50 111,181
01/10/2012 70.50 114,366
10/11/2013 89.50 136,436
01/03/2015 75.50 662,258
26/06/2016 40.50 229,680
25/06/2017 58.05 -
01/10/2012 70.50 3,508
10/11/2013 89.50 13,710
01/03/2015 75.50 84,706
26/06/2016 40.50 32,730
25/06/2017 58.05 -
26/06/2011 62.50 5112
01/10/2012 70.50 11,464
10/11/2013 89.50 22,550
01/03/2015 75.50 120,598
26/06/2016 40.50 41,202
25/06/2017 58.05 -
26/06/2011 62.50 7,480
01/10/2012 70.50 7,303
10/11/2013 89.50 606

RIEEE R AD iz 2R (48)

Number of
options
granted/
(exercised)
during
the year
EREL/
(GYix:dpA
EREHR

(10,910)
12,792

(13,734)
15,747

Number of
options
outstanding
at the end
of the year
FER
HRITEZ
EREHR

111,181
114,366
136,436
662,258
229,680

88,134

3,508
13,710
84,706
21,820
12,792

5112
11,464
22,550

120,598
27,468
15,747

7,480

7,303
606
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(2)

INTERESTS IN UNDERLYING SHARES (Continued)

All interests in the share and underlying shares of the Company, its
holding companies, subsidiaries and other associated corporations
are long positions.

Apart from the foregoing, at no time during the year was the
Company, any of its holding companies, subsidiaries or associated
corporations a party to any arrangement to enable the directors of
the Company to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of
shares in or debentures of the Company or any other body
corporate.

Apart from the foregoing, none of the directors of the Company or
any of their spouses or children under eighteen years of age has
interests or short positions in the shares, underlying shares or
debentures of the Company, or any of its holding companies,
subsidiaries or other associated corporations, as recorded in the
register required to be kept under section 352 of the SFO or as
otherwise notified to the Company pursuant to the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as adopted
by the Company.

(2)

R G 2 R (&)

RRTE -~ BERAR - BEBARREM
BB R E 2 P By RARRE R ) s
BaR -

Bk E3CPrsh - AT - BEAEAERA
Al BRI B A REAFEEM
BREALEZHEARARRESTHBEART
HEM AR Z R R HERERT

RIBAR R AR CGE S MR 5D 5352
fEmRF 2B  HRE L ARE
FETEFRHHRETRIAAE AR
Bz B EXRRSN  BREE
HEMBRH18RA T 2 FRIGEEA R
DA REAAAERAR - MBARK
HipB B AR 2B - R K B4
B EmPORR -
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The Company has been notified of the following interests in the Company's HR=ZZZNF+-_A=+—H  ~ARGEER [
issued shares at 31 December 2009 amounting to 5% or more of the  ZIMEZARA BB 31T E B 2 5%k A _EHY AR 7]

ordinary shares in issue:

Substantial shareholders
FERR

San Miguel Corporation (note 1)

San Miguel International Limited (note 1)

San Miguel Holdings Limited (note 1)

San Miguel Brewing International Limited
(note 1)

Neptunia Corporation Limited (note 1)

Cheung Kong (Holdings) Limited (note 2)

Li Ka-Shing Unity Trustee Company Limited
(note 2) (as trustee of The Li
Ka-Shing Unity Trust)

Li Ka-Shing Unity Trustcorp Limited (note 2)
(as trustee of another discretionary trust)

Li Ka-Shing Unity Trustee Corporation Limited
(note 2) (as trustee of The Li Ka-Shing Unity
Discretionary Trust)

Li Ka-Shing (note 2)

BT R

Ordinary shares of HK$0.50 each

BREEE¥0S0T 2EBRK R
Number of %
ordinary of total
shares held issued shares
HeERTRAE
L RARER wEgzEIL
EHBAF (D 245,720,800 65.78%
ENBBRBER AR (1) 245,720,800 65.78%
ENERARAT (B 245,720,800 65.78%
ENEBEEERA A
(Bt 3E1) 245,720,800 65.78%
mFER AR (BEE1) 245,720,800 65.78%
RIEX (RE)BERAA
GEX) 23,703,000 6.34%
Li Ka-Shing Unity Trustee Company
Limited (Fi&E2) (fE&The Li
Ka-Shing Unity TrustZ {£3EA) 23,703,000 6.34%
Li Ka-Shing Unity Trustcorp Limited
(322 (EBS —2#EFE2EEA) 23,703,000 6.34%
Li Ka-Shing Unity Trustee Corporation
Limited (FM&2) (£ &The Li Ka-Shing
Unity Discretionary TrustZ {25E A) 23,703,000 6.34%
Fa# (2 23,703,000 6.34%
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Notes:

SMC, San Miguel International Limited (“SMIL"), San Miguel Holdings Limited
("SMHL") and San Miguel Brewing International Limited (“SMBIL") are all
deemed to hold the above disclosed interest of Neptunia Corporation
Limited ("Neptunia”) in the Company because SMC has a controlling interest
in SMIL, SMIL has a controlling interest in SMHL, SMHL has a controlling
interest in SMBIL and SMBIL has a controlling interest in Neptunia.

Subsequent to the balance sheet date, San Miguel Brewery Inc. (“SMB"),
which runs the domestic brewery business of the San Miguel Group in the
Philippines, acquired 100% interest in SMBIL in January 2010. SMB is currently
owned as to 51% by SMC and 48% by Kirin Holdings Company, Limited
(“Kirin"), with the remaining common shares held by the public.

Mr. Li Ka-Shing is the settlor of each of The Li Ka-Shing Unity Discretionary
Trust ("DT1") and another discretionary trust (“DT2"). Each of Li Ka-Shing
Unity Trustee Corporation Limited (“TDT1", which is the trustee of DT1) and
Li Ka-Shing Unity Trustcorp Limited (“TDT2", which is the trustee of DT2)
holds units in The Li Ka-Shing Unity Trust (“UT1") but is not entitled to any
interest or share in any particular property comprising the trust assets of
the said unit trusts. The discretionary beneficiaries of each of DT1 and DT2
are, inter alia, Mr. Li Tzar Kuoi, Victor, his wife and children, and Mr. Li Tzar
Kai, Richard. Li Ka-Shing Unity Trustee Company Limited (“TUT1") as trustee
of UT1, together with certain companies which TUT1 as trustee of UT1 is
entitled to exercise or control the exercise of one-third or more of the voting
power at their general meetings, hold more than one-third of the issued
share capital of Cheung Kong (Holdings) Limited (“CKH"). CKH is entitled to
exercise or control the exercise of one-third or more of the voting power at
the general meetings of Conroy Assets Limited and Hamstar Profits Limited.

CEX

)

HRENBARFAENBEBREER AR (TE
NEIR]) 2 #Eheigs - £ NBBRSEE
frBERAR ([EDERR]) 2 B - £
ZRFEENERRERAR ([EHEE
B ) 2 YR AR 2 e A ) MR O B A% 5 45 S s
MERAR ([SmF]) Z B - Ut E
NERT] - OB - £ NERRAE N EE
BRI A5 A LI AR EE 2 Tm AR A
KRR ZHEm e

REERER  RIERBEREENEEE SR
BT A H e E RN B (A ) 88 R &
A RZF-TF- AR AL NEEER
100%2 #zm o A BB AR B AT
B E] (51%) M Rk & Ak (T )
(48%) iR - EBEBRBRBARMEFE °

TR WAL A BThe Li Ka-Shing Unity
Discretionary Trust ([DT1]) &5 — & #1155
(IDT2)) Z B E#H F A ° Li Ka-Shing Unity
Trustee Corporation Limited ([TDT1] » &
DT1Z{Z5EA) K Li Ka-Shing Unity Trustcorp
Limited ([TDT2] » ADT2Z 5t A) B ARHE
% F The Li Ka-Shing Unity Trust (TUT1]) &
i - B E2EERTBERNZEMLETEZE
METEEMEREBEMNMZERG
DTIRDT2 2 Alge Em A B IR 2B 5 A& -
HErFH 4 - RFZE%LE o LiKa-Shing
Unity Trustee Company Limited ([TUT1]) JA
UTIHEsEA B D EE FTRABTUTIAUTHERE
AZ BB BEARRAE LT IEHITT
F=nz—HUERERZARHRARER
IEZX (KB BRAR(TRE]) BBITRA
=52~ A E#Ezm o RE R Conroy Assets
Limited K Hamstar Profits Limited % & #£ &
PR ARG F1TEs BRI =52 —3 A £

REHE -
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Notes: (Continued)

@)

(Continued)

The entire issued share capital of each of TUT1, TDT1 and TDT2 are owned
by Li Ka-Shing Unity Holdings Limited (“Unity Holdco”). Each of Mr. Li Ka-
Shing, Mr. Li Tzar Kuoi, Victor and Mr. Li Tzar Kai, Richard is only interested
in one-third of the entire issued share capital of Unity Holdco. TUT1 is
interested in the shares of CKH by reason only of its obligation and power
to hold interests in those shares in its ordinary course of business as trustee
and, when performing its function as trustee, exercises its power to hold
interests in the shares of CKH independently without any reference to Unity
Holdco or any of Mr. Li Ka-Shing, Mr. Li Tzar Kuoi, Victor and Mr. Li Tzar Kai,
Richard as a holder of the shares of Unity Holdco as aforesaid.

By virtue of the SFO, each of Mr. Li Ka-Shing (being the settlor and may
being regarded as a founder of each of DT1 and DT2 for the purpose of the
SFO), TUT1, TDT1, TDT2, and CKH is deemed to be interested in the 23,703,000
shares of the Company of which 13,624,600 shares are held by Conroy
Assets Limited and 10,078,400 shares are held by Hamstar Profits Limited.

All the above interests in the shares and underlying shares of the Company
are long positions.

Apart from the foregoing, no other interests required to be recorded in
the register kept under Section 336 of the SFO have been notified to the
Company.

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the directors of the Company as at the date of
this Annual Report, the Company has maintained the prescribed public
float under the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”).

CEX

€
(%)

TUT1 ~ TDT1RTDT22 & 202 81T R A f L
Ka-Shing Unity Holdings Limited (TUnity
Holdcol) #H - Tt E « Z2HBHRER
ZR32 # St A 2 B B A Unity Holdco=9 2 —
E2EEBITRA - TUTIHHEERE Z RS
RARTEEAEIAZEERENMKSE
—RRIEFEER - WAl MEEAF D BILITE
HEEARBTRMDER 2 D M HAR Uity
Holdcogk = X Ffriitt 2 Unity Holdcof& (7 1 &
AZRHLE DRELERTERTER
HEMER -

BIB(GEHFRBEEN) - Z2HEE (HA
DT1RDT2Z I ER T ARG ES KHEK
BlmE - WIRABZMEFEFTZKILIA)
TUT1 - TDT1 - TDT2R REHE BHE AR
B AN 7)23,703,0000% 2 B intEs - Eh e
FEHcConroy Assets Limited# A 2
13,624,6000% f% 17 &2 A Hamstar Profits
Limited# & 2 10,078,400R% f% 17 °

BB ARRR Z DR RER

B Latsh -

WEEMmERAR(GESMRE K

f51) 336G ME BT 2 B MBAMALQE -

ARRAEEZ RRAEHARRARBESAH
Mo RAFRAY - RAR—ERFEEHS
RHAABR LRGSR EHARR (T EWmRA) &

ELZRBRRE °
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Pursuant to an agreement dated 12 June 1963, Neptunia Corporation
Limited provides technical and advisory services to the Company and may
be paid a General Managers' commission. Mr. Ramon S. Ang, Mr. Faustino
F. Galang, Mr. Carlos Antonio M. Berba, Ms. Minerva Lourdes B. Bibonia,
Ms. Jesusa Victoria H. Bautista, Mr. Carmelo L. Santiago and Mr. Peter K.Y.
Tam are interested parties to this contract to the extent that they either
have equity interests in or are directors and/or officers of SMC, the ultimate
holding company of Neptunia Corporation Limited. General Managers’
commission has not been paid by the Company or charged by Neptunia
Corporation Limited since the 1995 financial year.

Save as disclosed above, no contract of significance to which the Company,
or any of its holding companies, subsidiaries or associated corporations
was a party, and in which a Director of the Company had a material interest,
subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

(1) TRADE-RELATED CONTINUING CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS MADE WITH THE SAN MIGUEL GROUP

(@)  Purchase from the San Miguel Group

In order to comply with the Listing Rules, the Company entered
into an agreement with SMC, the ultimate holding company of the
Company, on 6 December 2007 (the “Agreement”) with a view to
renewing the agreement to carry out the trade-related continuing
connected transactions which consist of, among others, purchase
of packaging materials, alcoholic and non-alcoholic beverages
products from the San Miguel Group, between members of the
Group and members of the San Miguel Group, for a further term of
3 years from 1 January 2008 to 31 December 2010 under the same
terms and conditions as those under the agreement entered into
by SMC and the Company dated 11 March 2005 in respect of such
trade-related continuing connected transactions.

The Agreement, including the trade-related continuing connected
transactions and the caps set for such transactions, was approved
by independent shareholders at the Extraordinary General Meeting
of the Company held on 4 January 2008.

Pursuant to the Agreement, the Group entered into the following
trade-related continuing connected transactions during the year.

BE—NA=ZFRNA+TZBIL 2% Lk
AR QA RMAR RS B RS - I
AIERAB A IR N © H AR - SRRSO A - 205
whAE - YIEB L - Minerva Lourdes
B.BiboniaZ £ - Jesusa Victoria H. Bautistazz
T s rtERERRTERESRLIRFE
FRAR)Z IR A R E AR Z A - 5%
BENBRARIZESZR,/ KB AE - HAH
HENFERFZ - B —NWNAEFYRFEE
B ARRWESZTRLIEMS - MisFE
PRAE TN AR AW E B LIRS -

B EXPrREESN » NAE - SEEAERA
A MEBARKBEARBENAFEERER
SFENEMSHETLERNRRESHAENRE
BZBREY -

(1) EBREHIEEEZRERNFHEBE
R

(@ MPEIKENKRE
RITE EMRA . ARREARF Z&
R RTE] - ENBRF] RZTTL
FH-—ARNBRIZ - HhEE ([HH
) WM EF R AEITEE SHEEN
SERER S BREAENEEBEER
MR SRR IEE R R mER
H-TEN\F-HA-BE_T-TF+
“RA=THIER/RM=%F - ZiE &
ARG ER —_ETRF=A+—HH
ARRBRENBARRI 2 RE S B
MRFERER S HHAER -

HHEE (BEEESEENKERER
HRMERSH ER)ER-FTNF—
AMBARARBNBRRENASNEE
SRCRHLE -

RAFEER - REBERBI HEEET
UTEESEBNSERERS -
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(1

(a)

TRADE-RELATED CONTINUING CONNECTED (1) BHEAEHEEEZERNFEBRE
TRANSACTIONS MADE WITH THE SAN MIGUEL GROUP RS (#)
(Continued)
Purchase from the San Miguel Group (Continued) (@) M[MEIEEHNERE @)
2009 2009
—EEhF —EEAE
Actual cap
continuing connected transactions BEBERS BH EmR
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Purchase of packaging materials by AEBRENSEEBEBREME
the Group from the San Miguel Group 27,973 52,000
Purchase of alcoholic and non-alcoholic AEBRENSEESBEE
beverage products by the Group from RIEB B ME R 3,874 8,200

the San Miguel Group

The independent non-executive directors of the Company have
reviewed these connected transactions and confirmed that such

transactions were:

— entered into in the ordinary and usual course of business of

the Group;

— conducted either on normal commercial terms or, if there

are not sufficient comparable transactions to judge whether
they are on normal commercial terms, on terms no less
favourable to the Group than terms available to or from

independent third parties; and

— in accordance with the relevant agreement governing them

on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of
the shareholders of the Company as a whole.

The directors have requested the auditors of the Company to
perform certain agreed upon procedures on the continuing
connected transactions and have received a letter from the auditors

as required under Rule 14A.38 of the Listing Rules.

ARFBIINTE BRI EARE
ZHT

WIERREMGRRS - RE2EAR
R BB A PR BRI
BREGSR  RTBERAEELG
TBUL =T HEBLE=T %
XWIRFREIL - &

ERBABZNGETRELETR
SRNFMER - WATEART
PR Z BB M -

RIE EHARBINMAZBHE - EFEER
REEN G R B RER ST R LR TR
Fr- WEREZHEE@ERRE
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(1

(b)

TRADE-RELATED CONTINUING CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS MADE WITH THE SAN MIGUEL GROUP

(Continued)

Sale to the San Miguel Group

The Group used to sell packaged beer to the San Miguel Group in
the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group. As set out
in the announcement and the circular of the Company dated 11
March 2005 and 21 March 2005, respectively, the Company and SMC
entered into an agreement on 11 March 2005 (“2005 Agreement”)
to record, among other things, the terms of the sales of packaged
beer to the San Miguel Group (“Packaged Beer Sales”) for a term
up to 31 December 2007. The Independent Shareholders approved
at an Extraordinary General Meeting held on 7 April 2005 the entering
into by the Company and SMC of the 2005 Agreement. The packaged
beer sold by the Group to the San Miguel Group under the 2005
Agreement was produced at the Company’s Hong Kong plant. The
brewing operations of the Company’s Hong Kong plant ceased in
2007. After the cessation in 2007, the Packaged Beer Sales have
also discontinued.

As a result of the resumption of the brewing operations of the
Company'’s Hong Kong plant in 2009, the Company expected to
resume the Packaged Beer Sales as well as to sell some other non-
alcoholic beverage products to be produced by the Group at its
Hong Kong plant to the San Miguel Group. On 11 May 2009, the
Company and SMC entered into an agreement (the “2009
Agreement”) to record the terms under which the sales of packaged
beer and non-alcoholic beverage products by members of the Group
to members of the San Miguel Group will be carried out and to set
out annual caps for the continuing connected transactions for the
two years ending 31 December 2010.

An announcement was made by the Company on 11 May 2009 in
this respect.

(1

(b)

BENEEESRBNGERE
X5 (&)

HEHKENEE

$%Iﬂ&ﬁﬁ%&f%¥WLk¢ﬁ
ﬂﬁlﬁﬁﬁﬁ’ﬂ EIRH o IR
AORR_ZZRF=A+— E&:g
Tﬁi AZ+—BZRAERBHREFR

CARNTREENBRATNR_ZTERF
Eﬂ+*EﬂI% ([ ZZEZNFW
&) - ek (A %) B4 HEEH
=Iw) \1%“@@((5@ N8R ) 2 &K
iﬁﬂéé ZT+F+-_HA=+—H
- RZEZRFHAELARITZRE
FRIRE F - BURRBERA R EA
NBRREINZEZ R F iz - A%E
BE_ZZRFHRAENEEHFHEZ
EEEEHRARNNR 2 EEEMEE -
RARZ ERBHN 2 FRKIE
BMEE MR T FRIEE
& EBREGBEHEENERILE -

ARARARIER T NFREREB
R BB EE - ITEERTN S IRIEE B
R SEE A R AAE NS EHEEEMAR
’%IEAE/’%/@FEFZ#@# xEﬁAuuF
cHRIEENFREA+—HB AR
Eﬁiiﬁ%@ CIEIRvE i85 F_77}L$
WhaEl) - ARRESRASEKE RRIMAES
SEKERARIHE R BEWRERIEBE
*Eﬁ/\uuﬁuuﬁitﬁak XSGR AR
JREE=—E-—ETF+-A=1+—AH1t
MEFEZHEBEXHFE LR o

R-ZZZNAERA+—BARAERIL
ERIHE -
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(1) TRADE-RELATED CONTINUING CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS MADE WITH THE SAN MIGUEL GROUP

(Continued)

(b) sale to the San Miguel Group (Continued)

The 2009 Agreement, including the trade-related continuing
connected transactions and the caps set for such transactions, was
approved by independent shareholders at the Extraordinary General
Meeting of the Company on 16 June 2009.

Pursuant to the 2009 Agreement, the Group entered into the
following trade-related continuing connected transactions during
the year.

Continuing connected transactions BEBERS

Sales of packaged beer and/or
non-alcoholic beverage products
by the Group to the San Miguel Group

The independent non-executive directors of the Company have
reviewed these connected transactions and confirmed that such
transactions were:

— entered into in the ordinary and usual course of business of
the Group;

— conducted either on normal commercial terms or, if there
are not sufficient comparable transactions to judge whether
they are on normal commercial terms, on terms no less
favourable to the Group than terms available to or from
independent third parties; and

— in accordance with the relevant agreement governing them
on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of
the shareholders of the Company as a whole.

The directors have requested the auditors of the Company to
perform certain agreed upon procedures on the continuing
connected transactions and have received a letter from the auditors
as required under Rule 14A.38 of the Listing Rules.

(1

(b)

AEEHENKEHECBREERA
K /S IE B RS SRR EE

BENEEESRBNSERE

X5 (@)

HEHKRENEE (B
“TTNFHR (BREES AR
BREXZMBERFELRIER-F
ZAFNATRERAR BRI
K& NEBILRRIL A -

RAFERA > AEEREBE_FTNFH
FETUTHESARNBERER
5 o

2009 2009
—EELF —EEIF
Actual Cap
BH ER
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
27,372 105,954

ARRBIIFMTEE RN ERLS
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— RRABEBEEPET:

—  REREEERS - DREER
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EEEER  ETERARER
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MERREZFX
AE
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(2)

CONNECTED TRANSACTION MADE WITH A SUBSIDIARY
OF SMC

On 25 July 2007, San Miguel (Guangdong) Brewery Company Limited
("SMGB"), a 92% indirectly-owned subsidiary of the Company, and
ArchEn Technologies, Inc. ("ArchEn”), entered into the Engineering
Design Services Agreement, pursuant to which Archkn provided
process and engineering design services to SMGB in respect of
SMGB's expansion of its brewery facilities in Shunde District, Foshan
City, Guangdong Province, the People's Republic of China. ArchEn
is a wholly-owned subsidiary of SMC and is thus a connected person
of the Company. As such, the Engineering Design Services
Agreement constituted a connected transaction for the Company.

The total fees payable by SMGB to ArchEn was US$220,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$1,705,000). Based on the
transaction amounts of the Engineering Design Services Agreement
and the technical support services provided by SMC in respect of
the brewery expansion project of SMGB, which transactions were
aggregated as a single transaction as they are similar in nature and
relate to the SMGB brewery expansion, the connected transactions
are only subject to the reporting and announcement requirements
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules but are exempted from the
independent shareholders” approval requirement. The actual fee
amounted to HK$512,000 for the year (2008: HK$1,151,000).

The directors (including the independent non-executive directors)
considered that the terms of the Engineering Design Services
Agreement were fair and reasonable and in the best interests of
the Company and the shareholders of the Company as a whole
and the Engineering Design Services Agreement was entered into
on normal commercial terms.

An announcement was made by the Company on 26 July 2007 in
this respect.
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(3)

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS MADE WITH
GUANGZHOU BREWERY AND THE SAN MIGUEL GROUP
RELATING TO LICENSING AGREEMENTS

Guangzhou San Miguel Brewery Company Limited (“GSMB”) is an
equity joint venture formed between San Miguel (Guangdong)
Limited ("SMG") and Guangzhou Brewery (“GB") and is held as to
70% by SMG and as to 30% by GB. SMG is a 92.989% owned
subsidiary of the Company and GB is a connected person of the
Company by virtue of its substantial shareholding in GSMB. To
facilitate the business operations of GSMB, San Miguel International
Limited (“SMIL") (@ member of the San Miguel Group) and GB have
each granted GSMB a licence to use their respective trademarks
upon establishment of GSMB pursuant to the SMIL Trademark
Licensing Agreement and the GB Trademark Licensing Agreement,
respectively.

Apart from the SMIL Trademark Licensing Agreement, the Group
has also entered into other licence agreements with certain other
members of the San Miguel Group: (i) the Neptunia Sub-licence
Agreement entered into between the Company and Neptunia (a
wholly owned indirect subsidiary of SMC) and (ii) the San Miguel
Brewing International Limited (“SMBIL") Sub-licence Agreement
entered into between SMGB and SMBIL (a wholly owned indirect
subsidiary of SMC).

The directors (including the non-executive directors) considered that
the terms of the SMIL Trademark Licensing Agreement, the Neptunia
Sub-license Agreement, the SMBIL Sub-license Agreement
(collectively, the “San Miguel Group Licensing Agreements”) and the
GB Trademark Licensing Agreement, including their respective
tenures which are for more than three years, are on normal
commercial terms, fair and reasonable, and that the transactions
contemplated under such agreements are in the interests of the
Company and the shareholders as a whole.

The transactions under the San Miguel Group Licensing Agreements
(which have been aggregated as a single transaction for purposes
of the Listing Rules) and the GB Trademark Licensing Agreement
constituted continuing connected transactions under Rule 14A.34(1)
of the Listing Rules. The annual royalties payable by the Group under
each of (i) the San Miguel Group Licensing Agreements and (ii) the
GB Trademark Licensing Agreement shall be less than HK$10 million
for the year ended 31 December 2009 and each of the financial
years during the remaining term of the relevant licence/sub-licence
agreements. Based on this proposed cap, the transactions under
each of the (i) San Miguel Group Licensing Agreements and (ii) the
GB Trademark Licensing Agreement are only subject to the reporting
and announcement requirements and are exempt from the
independent shareholders’ approval requirement.

An announcement was made by the Company on 19 September
2007 in this respect.
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(3)

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS MADE WITH
GUANGZHOU BREWERY AND THE SAN MIGUEL GROUP
RELATING TO LICENSING AGREEMENTS (Continued)

In anticipation of the expiration of the Neptunia Sub-licence
Agreement on 1 January 2009, an Extension Letter was signed by
Neptunia and by the Company on 17 December 2008 to extend the
term of the Neptunia Sub-licence Agreement for one year from 1
January 2009 to 31 December 2009 at nil consideration. Save for
such extension, all other terms remain unchanged. An
announcement was made by the Company on 24 December 2008
in this respect.

In relation to the SMIL Trademark Licensing Agreement and the
Neptunia Sub-Licence Agreement, as per the payment instructions
of SMC dated 18 December 2000, all royalties receivable from GSMB
and the Company have been assigned and transferred to SMBIL
effective 1 January 2000 until further notice.

The amount of royalties paid to Guangzhou Brewery and the San
Miguel Group for the year ended 31 December 2009 were
HK$1,929,000 and HK$2,412,000 respectively (2008: HK$1,905,000
and HK$4,152,000).

The independent non-executive directors of the Company have
reviewed these connected transactions and confirmed that such
transactions were:

— entered into in the ordinary and usual course of business of
the Group;

— conducted either on normal commercial terms or, if there
are not sufficient comparable transactions to judge whether
they are on normal commercial terms, on terms no less
favourable to the Group than terms available to or from
independent third parties; and

— in accordance with the relevant agreement governing them
on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of
the shareholders of the Company as a whole.

The directors have requested the auditors of the Company to
perform certain agreed upon procedures on the continuing
connected transactions and have received a letter from the auditors
as required under Rule 14A.38 of the Listing Rules.
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(4)

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS MADE WITH
GUANGZHOU BREWERY AND THE SAN MIGUEL GROUP
RELATING TO LICENSING AGREEMENTS (Continued)

In anticipation of the expiration of the Neptunia Sub-licence
Agreement on 1 January 2010, an Extension Letter was signed by
Neptunia on 13 November 2009 and by the Company on 4 December
2009 to extend the term of the Neptunia Sub-licence Agreement
for one year from 1 January 2010 to 31 December 2010 at nil
consideration. Save for such extension, all other terms remain
unchanged. An announcement was made by the Company on 8
December 2009 in this respect.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS MADE WITH
THE SAN MIGUEL GROUP RELATING TO THE USE OF
PIPELINE

SMGB is principally engaged in the production and sale of beer
products in the PRC and has its brewery facilities located at Shunde
District, Foshan City, Guangdong Province, the PRC. San Miguel
(Guangdong) Foods & Beverage Co. Ltd. (“SMGFB’), an indirect wholly
owned subsidiary of the SMC, is principally engaged in the
production and marketing of non-alcoholic beverages and has its
production facilities located at Shunde District, Foshan City,
Guangdong Province, the PRC, near the brewing facilities of SMGB.

SMGB uses its waste water discharge pipeline (the “Pipeline”) from
its production facilities to discharge waste water and has connected
the Pipeline to the waste water pipeline system of the Longjiang
waste water treatment plant for waste water treatment. As the
production facilities of SMGFB are also close to the SMGB's facilities,
SMGB has agreed to allow SMGFB to use the Pipeline for the
discharge of SMGFB's production waste water to the Longjiang
waste water treatment plant for waste water treatment.

0On 26 November 2009, SMGB and SMGFB entered into an agreement
(the "Pipeline Agreement”) pursuant to which SMGB agreed to grant
SMGFB a non-exclusive right to use the Pipeline for the discharge
of waste water from SMGFB's production facilities to Longjiang
waste water treatment plant for waste water treatment, for a term
of 3 years from 1 January 2010 to 31 December 2012.

During the term of the Agreement, SMGFB shall pay SMGB a fee in
an aggregate sum of RMB7,800,000 (approximately HK$8,853,000),
the amount of which is payable quarterly for three years (i.e.
RMB650,000 (approximately HK$737,750) per quarter x 12
installments).
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS MADE WITH
THE SAN MIGUEL GROUP RELATING TO THE USE OF
PIPELINE (Continued)

The fees under the Pipeline Agreement are agreed between SMGB
and SMGFB after arm’s length negotiation mainly with reference to
(i) the construction and maintenance costs of the Pipeline and the
estimated volume of waste water to be discharged by the
production facilities of SMGFB to the Pipeline (the volume of which
are estimated based on the production volume of SMGFB) which
shall not have any material impact on the repair and maintenance
costs of the Pipeline that may be incurred by SMGB and (ii) the
term of the Agreement of three years.

The directors have taken into account the capacity that the Pipeline
can accommodate and the estimated volume of waste water to be
discharged by SMGFB through the Pipeline (with reference to the
production volume of SMGFB) and consider that SMGFB's use of
the Pipeline to discharge SMGFB's production waste water is not
expected to result in any significant increase in the costs of the
Group (i.e. the repair and maintenance costs of the Pipeline which
may be incurred by SMGB) and is not expected to adversely affect
the discharge of SMGB's own waste water from its facilities through
the Pipeline. On the other hand the transactions under the
Agreement shall generate additional income and cash flow to the
Group.

Transactions contemplated under the Agreement constitute
Continuing Connected Transactions for the Company under Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules. Based on the consideration, as the
applicable percentage ratios for the Continuing Connected
Transactions on an annual basis are more than 0.1% but are less
than 2.5% and the annual consideration shall be less than HK$10
million for each of the three years ending 31 December 2012, the
Continuing Connected Transactions shall only be subject to the
reporting and announcement requirements as set out in Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules but shall be exempt from the independent
shareholders’ approval requirement pursuant to Rule 14A.34 of the
Listing Rules.

An announcement was made by the Company on 9 December 2009
in this respect.

OTHER CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS MADE WITH THE
SAN MIGUEL GROUP

The Group purchased brewing materials from the San Miguel Group
during the year, which amounted to HK$860,000 (2008: HK$945,000).
These transactions are exempt from all the reporting,
announcement and independent shareholders’ approval
requirements according to the Listing Rules Chapter 14A.31(2), De
minimis transactions.
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The Company and its subsidiaries in Hong Kong have sponsored a non-
contributory defined benefit scheme, The San Miguel Brewery Hong Kong
Limited Retirement Fund (the “Fund”), which covers local permanent
employees, and was registered in September 1995 under the Occupational
Retirement Schemes Ordinance. The Fund’s assets are held in trust and
administered by a trustee. The members’ benefits are determined based
on the employees’ final remuneration and length of service. Contributions
to the Fund are made in accordance with the recommendations of
independent actuaries who value the retirement scheme at regular
intervals, usually triennially.

The Fund was granted exemption from the Mandatory Provident Fund
(“"MPF") regulations by the MPF Scheme Authority on 24 July 2000, following
modifications to the Fund benefits which comply with MPF regulations.

The latest actuarial assessment of the Fund was carried out as at 31
December 2007 and the results were as follows:

(1) The actuary of the Fund is Mr. A Wong, Fellow of the Canadian
Institute of Actuaries and Fellow of the Society of Actuaries. In the
actuarial valuation, the attained age method was used. Other major
assumptions used in the valuation were: investment return of 6.5%
per annum; long-term salary escalation of 3% per annum; mortality
rates under the 2001 Hong Kong Life Tables; normal retirement age
of 60 years; and early retirement rates allowed between the ages
55 t0 60 years.

(2) The unaudited market value of the Fund assets was HK$54,106,000
as at 31 December 2007.

) The minimum level of funding as recommended by the Fund actuary
was 7.5% of salary for 2008, 2009 and 2010.

(4) The solvency deficit was HK$2,500,000, i.e. the obligation under the
Fund was 96% covered by the Fund’s assets, at 31 December 2007.

Particulars of the employee retirement plans of the Company and the Group
are set out in note 26 to the financial statements.

The Group's working capital as at 31 December 2009 was HK$77,370,000
compared with HK$94,463,000 as at 31 December 2008 (restated).

The Group's cash and bank deposits (excluding pledged deposits) as at 31
December 2009 were HK$285,902,000 (2008: HK$346,437,000) and are
sufficient to fund working capital requirements and capital expenditure in
2010.
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The Group has short term credit facilities of HK$257,500,000 (2008:
HK$193,750,000) of which HK$242,343,000 (2008: HK$186,146,000) had
been utilised as at 31 December 2009.

Total borrowings at 31 December 2009 for the Company and for the Group
were HK$NIl (2008: HKS$Nil) and HK$242,343,000 (2008: HK$186,146,000),
respectively.

Particulars of bank loans of the Company and the Group as at 31 December
2009 are set out in note 23 to the financial statements.

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for
the last five financial years is set out on pages 136 and 137 of the Annual
Report.

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the year.

Principal corporate governance practices adopted by the Company are
set out in the Corporate Governance section on pages 37 to 48 of the
Annual Report.

The Company has received from each of the independent non-executive
directors an annual confirmation of independence pursuant to Rule 3.13
of the Listing Rules and considers all the independent non-executive
directors to be independent.

KPMG retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment. A
resolution for the re-appointment of KPMG as auditors of the Company is
to be proposed at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting.

By order of the board

L

Ramon S. Ang
Chairman

Hong Kong, 12 March 2010
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

San Miguel Brewery Hong Kong Limited (the “Company”) is committed to
maintaining statutory and regulatory standards and adherence to the
principles of corporate governance emphasising transparency,
independence, accountability, responsibility and fairness. The board and
the senior management of the Company ensure that effective self-
regulatory practices exist to protect the interests of the shareholders of
the Company. These include a board comprising high calibre members,
board committees and effective internal systems and controls.

The Company has applied the principles of the Code Provisions under the
Code on Corporate Governance Practices (the “"Code”) contained in
Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”) throughout the year
ended 31 December 2009 (the “year under review"), save for the deviation
discussed below:

o All of the non-executive directors are not appointed for a specific
term (Code Provision A.4.1) but are subject to retirement by rotation
once every three years and re-election at the annual general
meeting under the Company’s Articles of Association.

The following sections set out the principles in the Code as they have
been applied by the Company, including any deviation therefrom, for the
year under review.

The management and control of the business of the Company is vested in
its board. It is the duty of the board to create value to the shareholders of
the Company, establish the Company’s strategic direction, set the
Company’s objectives and plan in accordance therewith, and provide
leadership and ensure availability of resources in the attainment of such
objectives. The board is bound to manage the Company in a responsible
and effective manner, and therefore every director ensures that he carries
out his duty in good faith and in compliance with the standards of applicable
laws and regulations, and acts in the best interests of the Company and
its shareholders at all times.

The board and the executive management have clearly defined
responsibilities under various internal control and checks-and-balance
mechanisms. The board has delegated a schedule of responsibilities to
the executive management of the Company. These responsibilities include:
implementation of the decisions of the board and organisation and direction
of the day-to-day operation and management of the Company in
accordance with the management strategies and plans approved by the
board; preparation and monitoring of annual production plans and
operating budget; and control, supervision and monitoring of capital,
technical and human resources.
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The board held five meetings during the year under review. The chief finance
officer and company secretary attended all the scheduled board meetings
to report matters arising from corporate governance, risk management,
statutory compliance, accounting and finance, and kept detailed minutes
of each meeting, which are available for all directors. At the meeting, the
directors discussed and formulated overall strategies for the Company,
monitored financial performance and discussed the annual and interim
results, as well as other significant matters. Daily operational matters are
delegated to management.

At least 14 days of notice of all board meetings was given to all directors,
and all directors were given the opportunity to include matters for
discussion in the agenda. An agenda and accompanying board papers are
sent in full to all directors at least 3 days before every board meeting.

The number of board meetings and committee meetings attended by each
director during the year under review is set out in the following table. Figure
in brackets indicates maximum number of meetings in the period in which
the individual was a board member or board committee member (as the
case may be).
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Independent non-executive directors
David K.P. Li/Alternate, Adrian M. Li
Romulo L. Neri

Ng Wai Sun

Carmelo L. Santiago

Executive director
Peter K.Y. Tam (Managing Director)

Non-executive directors

Ramon S. Ang (Chairman)

Faustino . Galang (Deputy Chairman)
Carlos Antonio M. Berba

Minerva Lourdes B. Bibonia

Cheung Yuen Tak

Ferdinand K. Constantino

Thelmo Luis O Cunanan Jr.

Benjamin P. Defensor, Ir.

Jesusa Victoria H. Bautista

Notes:

BUkyES
TEE/HIESERE
Romulo L. Neri
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BRR (H172E)

FunEs

BRX(FE)
IE2(B1E)

HAER

Minerva Lources B. Bibonia
K

EE%

Thelmo Luis . Cunanan Jr.
B P

Jesusa Victoria H. Bautista
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(1 Appointed as independent non-executive director on 24 April 2009 and (1) REZZETZNFNA -+ HBEEZEABELIE

resigned as independent non-executive director on 28 August 2009.

(2) Resigned as non-executive director on 24 April 2009.

©)} Appointed as non-executive director on 28 August 2009.
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The chairman of the board is Mr. Ramon S. Ang, and the chief executive
officer (or managing director, in the case of the Company) is Mr. Peter K. Y.
Tam. The chairman’s and the managing director’s roles are clearly defined
to ensure their independence, accountability and responsibility

The chairman takes the lead in formulating overall strategies and policies
of the Company; ensures the effective performance by the board of its
functions, including compliance with good corporate governance practices;
and encourages and facilitates active contribution of directors in board
activities and constructive relations between executive and non-executive
directors. The chairman also ensures effective communication with
shareholders of the Company and receipt by the directors of adequate
and complete information. The role of deputy chairman is carried out by
Mr. Faustino F. Galang.

The managing director, supported by other board members and the senior
management, is responsible for managing the day-to-day business of the
Company. He is also accountable to the board for the implementation of
the Company's overall strategies, and coordination of overall business
operations.

As at the date of this report, the board consists of eleven non-executive
directors and one executive director. Three of the non-executive directors
are independent. Further details of the composition of the board can be
found in the section entitled “The Board” of this report.

All of the non-executive directors are not appointed for a specific term,
but are subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at the annual
general meetings. Under the Company’s Articles of Association, one-third
of the directors, including the non-executive directors, are subject to
retirement, rotation and re-election at each annual general meeting.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Non-executive directors are expected to participate in the activities of the
board, particularly in the establishment of a selection process to ensure a
mix of competent directors and officers; adoption of a system of internal
checks and balances; scrutiny of the Company’s performance in achieving
agreed corporate goals and objectives; and ensuring that the exercise of
board authority is within the powers conferred to the board under its
Articles of Association, by-laws and applicable laws, rules and regulations.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The independent non-executive directors of the Company are highly skilled
professionals with a broad range of expertise and experience in the fields
of accounting, finance and business. Their skills, expertise and number in
the board ensure that strong independent views and judgement are brought
in the board’s deliberations and that such views and judgement carry
weight in the board’s decision-making process. Their presence and
participation also enable the board to maintain high standards of
compliance in financial and other mandatory reporting requirements, and
provide adequate checks and balances to safeguard the interests of
shareholders of the Company and the Company.

Each independent non-executive director gives the Company an annual
confirmation of his independence. The Company considers such directors
to be independent under the guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules.

Each director, upon reasonable request, is given access to independent
professional advice in circumstances he may deem appropriate and
necessary for the discharge of his duties to the Company, at the expense
of the Company.

The directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing all information
and representations contained in the financial statements of the Company
for the year under review. The directors consider that the financial
statements have been prepared in conformity with the generally accepted
accounting standards in Hong Kong, and reflect amounts that are based
on the best estimates and reasonable, informed and prudent judgment of
the board and management with an appropriate consideration to
materiality. As at 31 December 2009, the directors, having made appropriate
enquiries, are not aware of any material uncertainties relating to events
or conditions which may cast significant doubt upon the Company’s ability
to continue as a going concern. Accordingly, the directors have prepared
the financial statements of the Company on a going concern basis.

The responsibilities of the external auditors with respect to financial
reporting are set out in the section of “Independent Auditor’s Report” on
pages 133 to 134.
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The board has overall responsibility for maintaining sound and effective
internal control systems to safeguard the Company’s assets and
shareholders’ interests, as well as for reviewing the effectiveness of these
systems.

The board has conducted a review of the Company's internal control
systems for the year ended 31 December 2009, including financial,
operational and compliance control and risk management functions and
assessed the effectiveness of internal control by considering reviews
performed by the audit committee, executive management, external
advisor and internal auditors.

To assist the directors in the discharge of their duties, the Company
provides every newly appointed director with a comprehensive induction
program on the first occasion of his appointment, where such directors
are provided with information on the Company'’s organization and business;
the membership, duties and responsibilities of the board, board committees
and senior management; corporate governance practices and procedures;
and latest financial information on the operations of the Company. Such
information shall be supplemented with visits to the Company’s key plant
sites and meetings with key senior executives.

Throughout their tenure, the directors shall be provided with updates on
the business of the Company, latest developments of the Listing Rules
and other applicable legal and regulatory requirements, corporate social
responsibility matters and other changes affecting the Company.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

For the year under review, the audit committee is composed of three
independent non-executive directors: Mr. Ng Wai Sun, Mr. Carmelo L.
Santiago and Dr. The Hon. Sir David K. P. Li, who acts as chairman of the
committee. The audit committee met three times in 2009 with full minutes
kept by the company secretary. Individual attendance of each committee
member at these meetings is shown in the table presented above.

Under its terms of reference, the audit committee shall assist the board in
fulfilling its corporate governance and oversight responsibilities in relation
to financial reporting, internal control structure, risk management systems
and internal and external audit functions. The audit committee is further
authorised by the board to investigate any activity within its terms of
reference, and is tasked with recommending to the board appropriate
actions emanating from such investigations. The audit committee has
unrestricted access to personnel, records, internal and external auditors,
risk assessment and assurance and senior management, as may be
appropriate in the discharge of its functions.

In 2009, the audit committee discharged its responsibilities by:

@) making recommendations to the board on the reappointment of
the external auditor and approval of the remuneration and terms
of engagement of the external auditor;

(2) monitoring the external auditor’s independence and objectivity and
the effectiveness of the audit process in accordance with applicable
standard, and discussing with the external auditor the nature and
scope of the audit and reporting obligations;

(3) implementing the Company’s policy on the engagement of an
external auditor to supply non-audit services;

(4) reviewing, and monitoring the integrity of, the financial statements
of the Company and the Company's annual and interim reports and
the auditors’ report to ensure that the information presents a true
and balanced assessment of the Company’s financial position;

(5) reviewing the Company’s financial controls, internal control and
risk management systems to ensure that management has
discharged its duty to have an effective internal control system;

(6) coordinating with the internal auditors from San Miguel Corporation
to ensure that the internal audit function is adequately resourced
and has appropriate standing within the Company;

(7) reviewing the Company's financial and accounting policies and
practices;
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AUDIT COMMITTEE (Continued)

(8) reviewing the external auditor's management letter, material queries
raised by the external auditor to the management in respect of the
accounting records, financial accounts or systems of control and
the management’s response to such queries; and

9) reporting to the board on the matters set out in the Code on
Corporate Governance Practices on the audit committee.

The audit committee is authorised by the board to obtain external legal or
other independent professional advice and to secure the attendance of
outsiders with relevant experience and expertise if it considers necessary
in the performance of its functions. The audit committee is provided with
sufficient resources by the Company to discharge its duties. The audit
committee’s specific terms of reference are available on request to any
shareholders of the Company and are posted on the Company’s website,
info.sanmiguel.com.hk.

During the year under review, the total fee in respect of audit and non-
audit services (mainly tax review and corporate governance review)
provided to the Company and its subsidiaries by external auditors
amounted to HK$3,737,000 (2008: HK$3,640,000) and HK$Nil (2008:
HK$31,500), respectively.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Prior to the resignation of Mr. Ferdinand K. Constantino on 24 April 2009,
the remuneration committee was composed of three independent non-
executive directors, namely, Dr. The Hon. Sir David K.P. Li, Mr. Ng Wai Sun
and Mr. Carmelo L. Santiago and two non-executive directors, namely, Mr.
Faustino F. Galang and Mr. Ferdinand K. Constantino. Mr. Romulo L. Neri,
an independent non-executive director was then appointed as a member
of the remuneration committee vice Mr. Ferdinand K. Constantino on 24
April 2009. On 28 August 2009, Mr. Romulo L. Neri resigned as independent
non-executive director and remuneration committee member. General
Benjamin P. Defensor, Jr., a non-executive director was appointed as a
member of the remuneration committee vice Mr. Romulo L. Neri on 28
August 2009. The remuneration committee is chaired by an independent
non-executive director, Mr. Ng Wai Sun. The remuneration committee met
twice in 2009 with full minutes kept by the company secretary. Individual
attendance of each committee member at these meetings is shown in the
table presented above.

The primary role of the remuneration committee under its terms of
reference is to support and advise the board in fulfilling the board’s
responsibility to the shareholders of the Company to:
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE (Continued)

(1) establish coherent remuneration policies and practices that will be
observed and enable the Company to attract and retain top caliber
executives and directors;

(2) fairly and responsibly reward executives based on their performance
and the performance of the Company, and the general pay

environment; and

() comply with the Code Provisions on remuneration of directors,

mainly by:
. determining executive and director remuneration policy;
. determining the remuneration of executive directors upon

consultation with the chairman or managing director
regarding their proposals for such remuneration;

° reviewing and approving the remuneration of the executives
who directly report to the managing director, and as
appropriate, other senior management; and

. reviewing and approving all equity based plans.

The remuneration committee has the right to seek any information it
considers necessary to fulfil its duties, which includes the right to obtain
appropriate external advice at the Company’s expense, and is provided
with sufficient resources by the Company to discharge its duties. The
remuneration committee’s specific terms of reference are available on
request to any shareholders of the Company and are posted on the
Company'’s website, info.sanmiguel.com.hk.

During the year under review, the committee discussed the remuneration
related matters in the scheduled meetings, and set the policy on the
remuneration of its members and key senior executives in accordance
with the Company'’s Articles of Association. As recommended, no director
fee would be paid for the year 2009.

The committee also determined the policy for the reimbursement of
expenses which were properly incurred by the directors in the performance
of their duties in accordance with the Company’s Articles of Association.
Details of the remuneration of directors and senior management for the
year ended 31 December 2009 are set out in notes 8 and 9 to the financial
statements.
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The Company has not established a nomination committee. Directors of
the Company are responsible for making recommendations to the board
for consideration and approval on nominations, appointment of directors
and board succession, with a view to appoint to the board individuals with
the relevant experience and capabilities to maintain and improve the
competitiveness of the Company. The board formulates the policy, reviews
the size, structure and composition of the board, and assesses the
independence of its independent non-executive directors in accordance
with the criteria prescribed under the Listing Rules and the Code.

The Company has adopted a code of conduct for securities transactions
and dealings (the “Code of Conduct”) based on the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers set out in Appendix
10 of the Listing Rules. The terms of the Code of Conduct are no less
exacting than the standards in the Model Code, and the Code of Conduct
applies to all the relevant persons as defined in the Code, including the
directors of the Company, any employee of the Company, or a director or
employee of a subsidiary or holding company of the Company who,
because of such office or employment, are likely to be in possession of
unpublished price sensitive information in relation to the Company or its
securities.

Specific enquiry has been made of all the directors of the Company who
have confirmed in writing their compliance with the required standards
set out in the Code of Conduct during the year under review.

The Company attaches great priority to establishing effective
communications with its shareholders and investors. In an effort to enhance
such communications, the Company provides information relating to the
Company and its business in its annual report and also disseminates such
information electronically through its website, info.sanmiguel.com.hk.

The Company regards the annual general meeting as an important event
as it provides an opportunity for direct communications between the board
and its shareholders. All directors and senior management make an effort
to attend the annual general meeting of the Company to address
shareholders’ queries. All the shareholders of the Company are given a
minimum of 20 business days’ notice of the date and venue of the annual
general meeting of the Company. The Company supports the Code’s
principle to encourage shareholders’ participation.
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DIRECTORS AND MANAGEMENT EXECUTIVES

Chairman
Deputy Chairman
Managing Director

Ramon S. Ang,
Faustino F. Galang,
Peter K.Y. Tam,

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Carlos Antonio M. Berba
Cheung Yuen Tak

Thelmo Luis O. Cunanan Jr.
General Benjamin P. Defensor Jr.
Motoyasu Ishihara

Keisuke Nishimura

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

David K.P. Li, BMm, Jp

Ng Wai Sun

Carmelo L. Santiago

Adrian M.K. Li, Alternate to David K.P. Li, Gam, Jp

The details of the directors as at the date of this report are as follows:

Mr. Ramon S. ANG, ssmE, aged 56, is the Chairman and a non-executive
Director of the Company. He has been appointed as the Chairman since
10 June 2005 and a non-executive Director of the Company since
27 November 1998. He is the Vice Chairman, President and Chief Operating
Officer of San Miguel Corporation (“SMC"), the ultimate holding company
of the Company (the shares of which are listed on the Philippine Stock
Exchange). He is also the Chairman of San Miguel Brewery, Inc. (the shares
of which are listed on the Philippine Stock Exchange), the Chairman of San
Miguel Properties Inc. (the shares of which are listed on the Philippine
Stock Exchange), a director of Ginebra San Miguel, Inc. (the shares of which
are listed on the Philippine Stock Exchange) and San Miguel Pure Foods
Company, Inc. (the shares of which are listed on the Philippine Stock
Exchange) and the Chairman and director of various subsidiaries of SMC.
Mr. Ang is also the Chairman and CEO of Petron Corporation (the shares of
which are listed on the Philippine Stock Exchange), the Vice Chairman of
Manila Electric Company (the shares of which are listed on the Philippine
Stock Exchange), the Chairman of Liberty Telecoms Holdings Inc. (the shares
of which are listed on the Philippine Stock Exchange) and an independent
director of Philweb Corporation (the shares of which are listed on the
Philippine Stock Exchange).

Mr. Faustino F. GALANG, VBE, BA, Bsc, aged 63, is a non-executive Director,
the Deputy Chairman and a member of the remuneration committee of
the Company. He has been a Director since 22 March 1991. He also served
as Division President of the San Miguel Beer Division of SMC (the shares of
which are listed on the Philippine Stock Exchange) until November 2006.
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DIRECTORS AND MANAGEMENT EXECUTIVES

Mr. TAM Ka Yuen, Peter, vBa, BBA, aged 51, is an executive Director and
the Managing Director of the Company. Mr. Tam joined the Company in
1993 and he was appointed as an executive Director and the Managing
Director on 31 December 2007. He is also a director of the Company's
various subsidiaries. He has more than 23 years of experience in the selling
and marketing of consumer products in Hong Kong and Mainland China.
Mr. Tam graduated from the University of Hawaii in 1985 with a bachelor’s
degree in Business Administration and later obtained a master’s degree
also in Business Administration from the California State University in 1987.

Mr. Carlos Antonio M. BERBA, vBA, Msc, BSc, aged 45, appointed as a
non-executive Director of the Company on 16 April 2007. Mr. Berba is the
Chairman and General Manager of San Miguel Brewing International Limited
(“SMBIL"), a controlling shareholder of the Company and director of various
subsidiaries of SMBIL. He has served as Division President of the San Miguel
Beer Division of SMC (the shares of which are listed on the Philippine Stock
Exchange) until October 2007. Mr. Berba has 24 years of experience in
strategic planning, financial analysis and corporate structuring initiatives.
Mr. Berba graduated from the University of the Philippines with a bachelor’s
degree in BS Electrical Engineering. He later obtained a master’s degree in
Business Administration from the Wharton School, University of
Pennsylvania and a master’s degree in Science in Japanese Business
Studies from Japan America Institute of Management Science & Chaminade
University of Honolulu.

Mr. CHEUNG Yuen Tak, aged 54, appointed as a non-executive Director
of the Company on 30 June 2008, is the Managing Director of A.S. Watson
Industries Limited. Mr. Cheung has over 31 years experience in the South
East Asia region including sales, marketing and manufacturing. Mr. Cheung
graduated from the Hong Kong Polytechnic in Business Studies.

Mr. Thelmo Luis O. CUNANAN JR., vBA, BA, aged 39, appointed as a
non-executive Director on 28 November 2008, is a director of All-Media
Access Plus, Inc., Contributing Editor of Travelife magazine, regular political
columnist of The Manila Times newspaper, and TV host of NBN Channel 4.
He is also the founding member and executive director of Philippine-Somali
Business and Friendship Association and the Philippine-Georgian Business
and Friendship Association. Mr. Cunanan Jr. also serves as a management,
marketing, and political consultant of various companies and government
agencies in the Philippines. Mr. Cunanan Jr. graduated from Ateneo de
Manila University in 1994 with a bachelor’s degree in AB Interdisciplinary
Studies and later obtained a master’s degree in Business Administration
from Ateneo de Manila Graduate School of Business.
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General Benjamin P. DEFENSOR JR., aged 62, appointed as a non-
executive Director on 28 August 2009, is the 26th Commanding General of
the Philippine Air Force and the 30th Chief of Staff of the Armed Forces of
the Philippines. He graduated from the Philippine Military Academy in 1969,
with the distinctions of Master of the Sword, Journalism Awardee, Editor-
in-Chief and Class President. He also completed his Command and General
Staff Course with distinction at the Air Command and Staff College of the
United States Air Force, Air University in 1985. His postgraduate studies
include Master in Mass Communication at the University of the Philippines,
Master in Public and Business Management at De La Salle University,
Philippines and Air Transport Course at the Asian Institute of Management,
Philippines and other PhD studies. In 2001, the United States Air Force Air
University in Alabama, USA inducted him into its International Hall of Honour
the Hall of Fame of the University, for his career-long achievements. General
Defensor is the Chairman of Isla Bela Corporation, and he has also been
the Chairman of the Board of 5 established corporations in banking, real
estate, insurance, mass media, agri-business and other industries. He was
a former Board member of the Company from 27 February 2003 to 23
February 2005.

Dr. The Hon. Sir David LI Kwok-po, GBv, GBS, OBE, MA Cantab (Economics &
Law), Hon. DSc. (Imperial), Hon. DBA (Napier), Hon. D.Hum.Litt. (Trinity, USA), Hon. DSocSc
(Lingnan), Hon. LLD (Hong Kong), Hon. LLD (Warwick), Hon. LLD (Cantab), FCA, FCPA, FCPA
(Aust.), FCIB, FHKIB, FBCS, CITP, FCIArb, JP, Officier de L'Ordre de la Couronne, Grand Officer of
the Order of the Star of Italian Solidarity, The Order of the Rising Sun, Gold Rays with Neck
Ribbon, Officier de la Légion d’Honneur, aged 71, appointed on 22 March 1991, is
an independent non-executive Director, Chairman of the audit committee
and a member of the remuneration committee of the Company. Sir David
is Chairman and Chief Executive of The Bank of East Asia, Limited (the
shares of which are listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange) and a director
of numerous other companies in Hong Kong and overseas. Sir David is a
member of the Legislative Council of Hong Kong. He is Chairman of the
Chinese Banks' Association, Limited and the Hong Kong Management
Association. He is also a member of the Banking Advisory Committee and
the Council of the Treasury Markets Association. Sir David is a director of
Hong Kong Interbank Clearing Limited, The Hong Kong Mortgage
Corporation Limited and IMG Worldwide Holdings Inc. He is also a director
of China Overseas Land & Investment Limited, COSCO Pacific Limited,
Guangdong Investment Limited, The Hong Kong and China Gas Company
Limited, The Hongkong and Shanghai Hotels, Limited, PCCW Limited,
Vistasoy International Holdings Limited, SCMP Group Limited, AFFIN
Holdings Berhad and Criteria CaixaCorp, S.A., all being companies listed
either in Hong Kong or overseas. He was a director of China Merchants
China Direct Investments Limited and Dow Jones & Company; Inc., all being
companies listed either in Hong Kong or overseas.
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DIRECTORS AND MANAGEMENT EXECUTIVES

Mr. NG Wai Sun, aged 66, appointed on 1 April 2001, is an independent
non-executive Director, Chairman of the remuneration committee and a
member of the audit committee of the Company. Mr. Ng is Chairman of
Jibsen Capital (Holdings) Limited. He is also a director of the Tung Wah
Group of Hospitals (2004 - 2006) and Member of the Standing Committee
of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference of Guangxi
Zhuang Autonomous Region. Mr. Ng is also appointed as the Honorary
Investment and Trade Representative of the Republic of the Philippines
per Executive Order No. 20.

Mr. Carmelo L. SANTIAGO, 884, aged 67, is an independent non-executive
Director of the Company. He has been an independent Director of SMC
(the shares of which are listed on the Philippine Stock Exchange) since 24
July 2008. He is also an independent Director of San Miguel Brewery, Inc.
(the shares of which are listed on the Philippine Stock Exchange), San Miguel
Properties, Inc. (the shares of which are listed on the Philippine Stock
Exchange), Anchor Insurance Brokerage Corporation and Liberty Telecoms
Holdings Inc. (the shares of which are listed on the Philippine Stock
Exchange). Mr. Santiago is the founder and owner of several branches of
Melo’s restaurant in the Philippines and a director of Terbo Concept, Inc.,
a Philippine company engaged in retail and food business. He was a director
of the Company from 27 February 2003 to 23 February 2005. Having over
34 years of directorate positions in various companies in the Philippines
and Hong Kong, Mr. Santiago has extensive experience in foods, beverages,
publication, properties, power and banking industries.

Mr. Adrian M. K. LI, ma, MBA, LPC, Jp, aged 36, was appointed as Alternate
Director to Dr The Hon. Sir David K.P. Li on 1 August 2002. Mr. Li is the
Deputy Chief Executive of The Bank of East Asia, Limited (the shares of
which are listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange) and is in charge of the
overall management and control of the Bank'’s business in Hong Kong. Mr.
Li is a member of the Ninth and Tenth Guangdong Provincial Committees
of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference (“CPPCC"), PR.C.
and was formerly a member of the Ninth & Tenth Guangzhou Committees
of the CPPCC. He is also a member of the Ninth & Tenth Committees of the
All-China Youth Federation, the Deputy Chairman of the Ninth Beijing
Committee of the Beijing Youth Federation and a Counsellor of the Hong
Kong United Youth Association. In addition, Mr. Li is a Council Member of
the Vocational Training Council and the Chairman of its Banking and Finance
Industry Training Board, and a member of the Mandatory Provident Fund
Industry Schemes Committee of the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Authority. Mr. Li is currently an Independent Non-executive Director of Sino
Land Company Limited, Tsim Sha Tsui Properties Limited, Sino Hotels
(Holdings) Limited and China State Construction International Holdings
Limited. He is also an Alternate Director of AFFIN Holdings Berhad, a
company listed on the main board of the Malaysia Stock Exchange. Mr. Li
is a member of The Law Society of England and Wales and The Law Society
of Hong Kong. He is the eldest son of Dr. The Hon. Sir David K.P. Li.
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DIRECTORS AND MANAGEMENT EXECUTIVES

Mr. Motoyasu ISHIHARA, aged 51, appointed as a non-executive Director
of the Company on 12 March 2010. Mr. Ishihara is the Executive Financial
Advisor and Director of San Miguel Brewery, Inc. (the shares of which are
listed on the Philippine Stock Exchange). He is a Director of San Miguel
Brewing International Limited. He was the Deputy Chief Finance Officer of
San Miguel Brewery, Inc. (April to December 2009). He was also the Deputy
General Manager of Corporate Planning Department in Kirin Holdings
Company, Limited, Deputy General Manager of Group Strategic Department
in Kirin (China) Investment Company, Limited (2006 - 2007) and Executive
Vice President & Chief Finance Officer of Four Roses Distillery, LLC (2002 -
2006). Mr. Ishihara graduated from Yokohama National University in 1981
with a bachelor’s degree in Business.

Mr. Keisuke NISHIMURA, vBa, aged 53, appointed as a non-executive
Director of the Company on 12 March 2010. Mr. Nishimura is the Executive
Vice President and Director of San Miguel Brewery, Inc. (the shares of which
are listed on the Philippine Stock Exchange). He is also a Director of San
Miguel Brewing International Limited and Iconic Beverages, Inc. He was a
Director of San Miguel Corporation (the shares of which are listed on the
Philippine Stock Exchange) from March 2009 to July 2009. He was the
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of Kirin (China) Investment Company,
Limited (2005 - 2009) and Manager of Corporate Planning Department of
Kirin Brewery Company, Limited (2002 - 2005). He was also the Chief
Executive Assistant to the Board of Kirin Brewery Company, Limited (2001
- 2002), Executive Assistant to the President of Kirin Brewery Company
Limited (1997 - 2001) and Manager of Personnel Department in Kirin
Brewery Company, Limited. Mr. Nishimura graduated from Yokohama
National University in 1980 with a bachelor’s degree in Business and later
obtained a master’s degree in Business Administration from University of
Washington in 1987.
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DIRECTORS AND MANAGEMENT EXECUTIVES

Peter K.Y. Tam Managing Director

John K.L. Cheung Chief Finance Officer & Company Secretary

Andes PH. Leung General Sales Manager

Eric PK. Lam Marketing Manager

Ric W.T. Yeung Senior Manager — Logistics

C.K.Ho Senior Manager — Operations

Steven Co Senior Manager — Corporate Development
Edith Y.M. Ng Senior Manager — Human Resources &

Administration
Herbert W.M. Chu Managing Director, Guangzhou San Miguel
Brewery Company Limited
Rodrigo O. Guiang Plant Manager, San Miguel (Guangdong)
Brewery Company Limited

The details of the management executives as at the date of this report are
as follows:

Mr. Peter K.Y. TAM, Managing Director. Please refer to the Directors
section on page 51 for details.

Mr. John K.L. CHEUNG, wvBa, BBA, aged 46, Chief Finance Officer &
Company Secretary, joined the Company in 1997. Mr. Cheung is a member
of the Institute of Management Accountants. He has over 24-year solid
experience in finance and accounting in various industries. Mr. Cheung
received a master’s degree and a bachelor’s degree, both in Business
Administration, from Georgia State University, USA.

Mr. Andes P.H. LEUNG, vBA, BBA, aged 38, General Sales Manager, joined
the Company in 2001. Mr. Leung has over 15-year solid experience in
advertising, international marketing and sales in various industries.

Mr. Eric P.K. LAM, mBA, BA, aged 46, Marketing Manager, joined the
Company in 2008. Mr. Lam has over 16 years of solid experience in
marketing in various industries.

Mr. Ric W.T. YEUNG, 884, aged 46, Senior Manager - Logistics, joined the
Company in 1983. During his 26 years of service with the Company, Mr.
Yeung has gained extensive experience in supply planning, procurement
and physical distribution.
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Mr. C.K. HO, msc, bip, aged 51, Senior Manager - Operations, joined the
Company in 1988. During his over 21 years of service with the Company,
Mr. Ho has gained extensive experience in the operations of beer
production.

Mr. Steven CO, B4, aged 40, Senior Manager - Corporate Development,
joined the Company in 1994. Mr. Co has gained over 15 years of experience
in business planning, business research, corporate affairs and quality
management in the Company.

Ms. Edith Y.M. NG, mBA, bip, aged 47, Senior Manager - Human Resources
& Administration, joined the Company in 1989. Ms. Ng has gained over 20
years of experience in the fields of marketing, sales and human resources.

Mr. Herbert W.M. CHU, mBA4, BBA, aged 57, Managing Director of Guangzhou
San Miguel Brewery Company Limited, joined the Company in 1977. During
his over 32 years of service with San Miguel, Mr. Chu has gained extensive
experience in brewery operations, logistics, sales and marketing as well
as public relations.

Mr. Rodrigo O. GUIANG, ssche, aged 59, Plant Manager - San Miguel
(Guangdong) Brewery Company Limited, joined the Company in 1975. With
over 35 years in service, Mr. Guiang has extensive working experience in
both technical and managerial positions in the Philippines and international
assignments.
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STATISTICAL ANALYSIS OF OPERATIONS | &Z& &5t 2 19?

Years ended 31 December, in Hong Kong dollar thousands except HETZ-_A=1+—HLFE
per share data and number of personnel f&in EuiE & B8 T A NI LA;%%FEEH@
TEN YEAR REVIEW + FE O
2009 2008 2007
—EEREF —EENF ZETAF
(restated) (restated)
(BEH) (BEH)
Turnover (1) EERE () 696,824 753,375 754,833
(Loss)/profit from operations K& (BR) &7 (331,879) (301,033) 4,962
(Loss)/profit for the year before REFEAFST 2
restructuring costs (&518) /&7 (343,052) (258,155) 50,397
Restructuring costs (2) FHERAE (2 = — (310,220)
(Loss)/Profit for the year FE(B18) /&F (343,052) (258,155) (259,823)
Taxes paid, including beer tax TRIEE R H 68,877 102,485 140,831
Cash dividends attributable to the year FEREGESRKRE = — —
Cash dividends per share (cents) BRE SRS () = — —
Fixed assets and projects under development EFE&EMZEREFIER 1,087,198 1,379,561 1,496,910
Net worth (3), (4), (5), (6) FE (), (4), (5), (6) 1,169,484 1,490,925 1,751,565
Salaries, wages and other benefits e IERHEMET 99,341 91,656 105,510
Number of personnel (7) BT AZ(7) 766 766 838

Turnover has been adjusted where discounts, beer duty and consumption tax have been set-off with the gross turnover.
Restructuring cost in 2007 represented restructuring activities on the Company, while restructuring costs in 2005 and 2006 represented
restructuring activities on Guangzhou San Miguel Brewery Company Limited.

() Net worth for the 2000 has been adjusted for change in accounting policy of dividend recognition.

(4) Net worth for the 2001 to 2004 have been adjusted for change in accounting policy of minority interests.

(5) Net worth for the 2002 to 2005 have been adjusted for change in accounting policy of defined benefit retirement plan.
(6) Net worth for the 2000 to 2008 have been restated for change in accounting policy of intangible assets.

(7) Number of personnel represents actual headcount as of the last working day of the year.
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STATISTICAL ANALYSIS OF OPERATIONS | %

Years ended 31 December, in Hong Kong dollar thousands except
per share data and number of personnel

n\:l: J~'9~ n‘J L _-I_ J] 1;)?

BET-_A=+—HIFFE  KEk
B 8E & B T ABOMILABEE TLatE

2006 2005 2004 2003 2002 2001 2000
—EERF —TTNF —TTmF —ET=F —ETF —EE-F —ETEF
(restated) (restated) (restated) (restated) (restated) (restated) (restated)
(B=E7)) (BE3)) (BE3) (B=E7)) (BES) (BE3)) (BE3)
826,817 806,909 777,830 684,866 804,749 939,702 992,531
(10,625) 10,519 20,025 (30,321) 39,484 101,599 100,597
(12,216) (2,692) 12,723 (36,156) 27,864 90,241 88,036
(93,159) (63,295) — — — — —
(105,375) (65,987) 12,723 (36,156) 27,864 90,241 88,036
127,007 141,219 135,185 134,986 164,268 170,830 160,745
— 3,736 3,736 — 37,356 160,636 52,300

— 1 1 — 1 43 14
1,769,377 1,838,164 1,939,135 2,016,646 2,083,863 2,156,190 2,214,254
1,975,617 2,062,000 2,118,432 2,120,869 2,148,355 2,268,533 2,234,216
118,836 128,539 122,149 124,480 131,168 126,053 127,094
768 1,151 1,145 1,168 1,214 1,268 1,276

1) BEBOENIH - WEEBRVIELAE
2) “ERLFrBARXDERAENRER 2 EREY  M_TTAFR-F
CREZFECHBRERAZE
E—FECTTNFEY FEERPBRRERS 2 S ERMEEHAE

TR B (E A -

ZRFEZFECHERBNRAKE G

SRR BT -

25255_?2A¢2%@Eﬁ%ﬁ§F2 TR EY -
ABHEREEEE —EAIEFR2ERETHA -

TRFZEBRAXEENENEBER DR 2 EHES) -

BN R R D
“EENFEFH




CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT | GREWER

for the year ended 31 December 2009 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

BEZZNF+_A=T—HLFE EKFE)

2009 2008
—EZAE —FEENF
$'000 $'000
Fr Tt
Note (restated)
ihg=2 (BEE5))

Turnover B 3,13 696,824 753,375
Cost of sales SHERKA (335,051) (326,085)
Gross profit EF 361,773 427,290
Other revenue H U A 4 10,372 14,966
Other net expenses HiA S F5 4 (8,933) (1,193)
Selling and distribution expenses HERDIHAX (302,960) (326,844)
Administrative expenses TERFA X (70,077) (79,195)
Other operating expenses HgEM (19,761) (44,098)
Impairment losses of non-current assets ERBEEZBEKRE 5 (302,293) (291,959)
Loss from operations rEEE (331,879) (301,033)
Finance costs BBER 6(a) (13,445) (15,659)
Loss before taxation BREBLATE IR 6 (345,324) (316,692)
Income tax credit FriS®iat A 7 2,272 58,537
Loss for the year FEEIE (343,052) (258,155)
Attributable to: FERIT -
Equity shareholders of the Company ARaE=RFEAA 10 (334,856) (259,907)
Minority interests DERRER (8,196) 1,752
Loss for the year FEEE (343,052) (258,155)
Loss per share BRER
— Basic (cents) — EAR ML) 12(a) (90) (70)
— Diluted (cents) — #5E (1) 12(b) N/A 7 iE N/A 7~ A

The notes on pages 68 to 132 form part of these financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME | He2EUER

for the year ended 31 December 2009 BE_FTNFT_A-F+—-HLEFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (A E)
2009 2008
—EEhEF ZTEENF
$'000 $'000
Fr T
Note (restated)
P E {==21))
Loss fortheyear _ __________ FEESR (343,052)  __ __ (258,155)
Other comprehensive income FEHME2EKZE
for the year (after tax) (BRBi %) 11
Exchange differences on translation of: ERELE:
— financial statements of subsidiaries — REBINMB AR BRE
outside Hong Kong FREAZENR =% 76 14,706
— monetary items that form part of — BREEAREERMB AT Z
the net investment in subsidiaries RENEBIERBMEEZ
outside Hong Kong e ZRE 336 18,607
412 33,313
Actuarial gains and losses of defined ERER ARG & 2
benefit retirement plan FEE R M E1E 21,199 (35,798)
_______________________ 20611 489
Total comprehensive income FE2M
for the year Wi (321,441) (260,640)
Attributable to: EEmT
Equity shareholders of the Company RARERFFAEA (313,315) (264,883)
Minority interests DEIR R = (8,126) 4,243
Total comprehensive income FEZE
for the year W 35 4 55 (321,441) (260,640)
The notes on pages 68 to 132 form part of these financial statements. PN E68E132H 2 S M T AR B]ME 2 —
Ep o
BBE NG BEAR A A
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET | R EE&ER

at 31 December 2009 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) ®m= NFE+ZRA=+—H CABEE)

At 31 December At 31 December At 1 January

2009 2008 2008
R-ZZBBHAE RN-ZTENF RIZTNF
+=A=t+—-H +ZA=+—H —A—H
$'000 $'000 $'000
Fr T Fr
Note (restated) (restated)
B sE (BE7) (BE5))
Non-current assets FRBEE
Fixed assets EEEE 14(a)
— Property, plant and equipment —ME - BERRE 946,321 1,224,950 1,328,148
— Investment properties —REME 85,085 85,439 87,534
— Interests in leasehold land held —EEEHETERM
for own use under operating leases BENBELER 55,792 69,172 81,228
1,087,198 1,379,561 1,496,910
Intangible assets mpEE 15 17,122 28,722 39,643
Goodwill EES — — 5,044
Other tangible assets HpEHEE 17 18,565 41,192 53,164
__________________________________________ 1.122.885 1449475 1594761
Current assets hRBEE
Non-current assets held for sale RIEHENFERBEE 18 6,997 — —
Inventories & 19 60,673 64,974 40,027
Trade and other receivables EWE 5 Kk E KA 20 73,941 97,807 123,423
Amounts due from holding FEUHERR 2 A &
companies and fellow subsidiaries BEIENGESE 21 12,460 9,132 6,893
current tax recoverable ] g Bl A HA A 1B 27(a) — 107 71
Pledged deposits BREFH 22(a) 60,000 — 18,696
Cash and cash equivalents RekERALEE 22(b) 285,902 346,437 446,168
___________________________________________ 499,973 51843 635278
Current liabilities REBAE
Bank loans FITER 23 (242,343) (186,146) (193,780)
Trade and other payables EHESREMIRE 24 (168,467) (231,385) (193,373)
Amounts due to holding ERERRR R
companies and fellow subsidiaries RZAMNBABER 21 (11,793) (6,457) (19,110)
o _____________________\«24¢03)  (12398) _ (406,263)
Netcuentassets  WBREEE A0 s 2905
Total assets less current liabilities HEERRBDAR 1,200,255 1,543,938 1,823,776

San Miguel Brewery Hong Kong Ltd.
Annual Report 2009




CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET | 4R BEEEER

at 31 December 2009 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) ®m= NFE+ZRA=+—H CABEE)
At 31 December At 31 December At 1 January
2009 2008 2008
R=ZZBEAE HN-ZTZNF RIZTNF
+=A=+-B +=ZA=+—H —A—H
$'000 $'000 $'000
T T T
Note (restated) (restated)
BisE (B E51) (BE7)
Non-current liabilities FrRBEE
Retirement benefit liabilities BRIKBHMAE 26(a) (18,089) (37,845) (8,625)
Deferred tax liabilities ELEHBEE 27(b) (12,682) (15,168) (63,586)
___________________________________________ (30.771)  _ _ _(3013)  _ (72211)
NET ASSETS EEFE 1,169,484 1,490,925 1,751,565
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BAR @&
Share capital AR 28(b) 186,785 186,785 186,785
Reserves 1 945,805 1,259,120 1,524,003
Total equity attributable to equity EARERBEA
shareholders of the Company LR 1,132,590 1,445,905 1,710,788
Minority interests LERRER 36,894 45,020 40,777
TOTAL EQUITY BERAE 1,169,484 1,490,925 1,751,565
Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 12 March 2010. #&HESEER T —ZTF = A+ - B#bFELFEE
o
s
Ramon S. Ang BRI Peter K. Y. Tam EER
Director E Director BF
The notes on pages 68 to 132 form part of these financial statements. FIRECBEI1NE 2 FEMF ARV BHREZ —
En o
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BALANCE SHEET | éF,JE%%

at 31 December 2009 TENF+-_A=1+—H
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L/{/%%nJr%T)
At 31 December At 31 December At 1 January
2009 2008 2008
R-ZZBBHAE RN-ZTENF RIZTNF
+=A=+-—H +_H,+ H —H—H
$'000 $'000 $'000
Fr T Fr
Note (restated) (restated)
B sE (BE7) (BE5))
Non-current assets FRBEE
Fixed assets EEEE 14(b)
— Property, plant and equipment — M BRRRE 622,427 648,250 674,082
— Interests in leasehold land held for —EREHETER
own use under operating leases mBENAE gD 45,708 47,266 48,824
668,135 695,516 722,906
Intangible assets BYEE 15 16,497 27,497 38,489
Investments in subsidiaries HBA R ER 16 740,471 991,561 1,171,201
__________________________________________ 1425103 1704574 193259
Current assets REBEE
Non-current assets held for sale BIEHENERBEAE 18 6,997 — —
Inventories 5 19 39,426 14,033 6,747
Trade and other receivables EWE SR EMERE 20 60,594 73,404 79,090
Amounts due from holding companies FE R A A
and fellow subsidiaries RAZMBARKRE 21 6,753 2,915 907
Amount due from a subsidiary NG 25 — — 107,033
Pledged deposits EHRER 22(a) 60,000 — —
Cash and cash equivalents RehERESESE 22(b) 22,663 10,869 11,988
___________________________________________ 196,433 101221 205765
Current liabilities REBAE
Bank loans RITER 23 — — (95,000)
Trade and other payables B8 5 REMEKE 24 (50,533) (66,449) (71,257)
Amounts due to holding companies FERT R 2 ) ]
and fellow subsidiaries BESGEAGESE 21 (9,237) (558) (17,823)
Amounts due to subsidiaries TERTHT B A RIBRIE 25 (287) (13,540) (2,491)
___________________________________________ (60,057) ~ (80547) (186,5/1)
Netcurentassets  hEEERE 186376 e 19,194
Total assets less current liabilities BEERRBDERE 1,561,479 1,735,248 1,951,790
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BALANCE SHEET |

at 31 December 2009 ZENF+
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (ABHEE)
At 31 December At 31 December At 1 January
2009 2008 2008
R=ZZBEAE HN-ZTZNF RIZTNF
+=A=+-B +=-A=+—H —A—H
$'000 $'000 $'000
T T T
Note (restated) (restated)
B &E (BE7) (BE5)
Non-current liabilities *RBEE
Amounts due to subsidiaries e B R RIERE 25 (443,334) (355,622) (377,747)
Retirement benefit liabilities BIREHEE 26(a) (18,089) (37,845) (8,625)
Deferred tax liabilities EERBEE 27(b) (7,877) (5,390) (53)
o _____________ (49300  (39885) (386425
NET ASSETS BEFE 1,092,179 1,336,391 1,565,365
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BARGEE 28(a)
Share capital AR 186,785 186,785 186,785
Reserves FEHE 905,394 1,149,606 1,378,580
TOTAL EQUITY EoaE 1,092,179 1,336,391 1,565,365

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 12 March 2010.

L

REHEEEN_T-TF-_AT _BHERERRE

Ik

Peter K. Y. Tam EER

Ramon S. Ang R
Director EFE

Director 2

FINE68E1RAE Z R EMERAMB]ME 2 —

BBt e

The notes on pages 68 to 132 form part of these financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQIUITY | SEEE2 B R

for the year ended 31 December 2009 HE_TENGF+_RA=T—-HLFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (AB%EE)
Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company
KAAREHEAEGSDA
Exchange
Share Share Capital fluctuation  Retained Minority Total
capital  premium reserve reserve profits  Sub-total interests equity
ERRE DERR
RA  ROEE EXRE wE  KERE &3 BE BRAE
Note $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
ik Tr Tr Tr Tr Tr Fr Fr Tr
Balance at RZBENE
1 January 2008 -B—R#8
As previously reported R34 186,785 65,739 112,970 64,729 1283253 1,713,476 40,987 1,754,463
Prior period adjustment RBELEREER
inrespect of advertisingand ~ Z LRI E[E %
promotional materials 2 — — — — (2,683) (2,688) (210 (2,898)

Balance at 1 January 2008 ~R=—ZENF-F—H
(restated) &% (B E7) 186,785 65,739 112,970 64,729 1,280,565 1,710,788 40,777 1,751,565

Changes in equity for 2008: —ZEENEFEREEH .

Total comprehensive income  FEZENFAE

for the year — — — 30,822 (295,705) (264,883) 4,243 (260,640)
Balance at 31 December 2008 R=ZENfF
and 1 January 2009 +ZRA=1+-BR
(restated) “EER5-B-H
5 (BE7) 186,785 65739 112,970 95,551 984,860 1,445,905 45,020 1,490,925

Changes in equity for 2009: —ZEAFEHREEH:

Total comprehensive income  FE2ERELE

for the year - - - 342 (313,657) (313,315) (8,126)  (321,441)
Balance at R=2En%
31 December 2009 +ZA=t-HE&EH 186,785 65,739 112,970 95,893 671,203 1,132,590 36,894 1,169,484
The notes on pages 68 to 132 form part of these financial statements. IR EBEBEIRNE 2 FEW T AR B]RE 2 —
1 o
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT | S4B &HR8%

for the year ended 31 December 2009 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) BEZZTZNF+ZA=+—HLFE CUBEHE)
2009 2008
—EEhEF ZTEENF
Note $'000 $'000
s Fr Tt
Operating activities K
Cash generated from operations KEEBZREMA 22(c) 1,427 48,586
Income tax FriS T
— Hong Kong Profits Tax refunded/(paid) — R B (B &EFEH 101 (5)
Net cash generated from operating REXEBEZRERA
_ activites RE 1.528 ¢ 48,581
Investing activities REXK
Payment for purchase of fixed assets BARTEE (48,352) (146,838)
Payment for purchase of other tangible assets EEAH B EE (9,.957) (16,782)
Proceeds from disposal of property, LEWE - R
plant and equipment KT s E 3,739 2,262
Proceeds from disposal of other tangible HEHMEREE
assets FriS 3R 542 1,263
Interest received B8 3,639 9,601
Net cash used in investing REEBEZRERE
_ activites BE (50,389) (150,494)
Financing activities AR E
Proceeds from new bank loans MIGIRITE R 276,225 90,713
Repayment of bank loans EERITER (220,321) (100,967)
(Increase)/decrease in pledged deposits \IRFRZ (G m) R (60,000) 18,696
Interest paid BEAFLE (10,352) (15,721)
Net cash used in financing RMETHZ2RHERE
_activites 8 (14,448) (7,279)
Net decrease in cash and ReEREERELER
cash equivalents ZRER D (63,309) (109,192)
cash and cash equivalents R—B—HZE®
at 1 January RERBRESEBEELER 22(b) 346,437 446,168
Effect of foreign exchange rates changes EZ&E s & 2,774 9,461
cash and cash equivalents R+=-—A=+—BzH%
at 31 December RERBRESBEELER 22(b) 285,902 346,437
The notes on pages 68 to 132 form part of these financial statements. FIMNEBEINE Z FIEMTRAV BT Z —
e
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B #& R 3k MY AL

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (BRBEETIN  HRBEHE)

1  significant accounting policies 1 EgHNE

(a) Statement of compliance (a) E<FEH
These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with all KRB IMERIBBABEA 2 EENBHR
applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs"), which g EI‘J ([BEEVBERERED]) (BEME
collective term includes all applicable individual Hong Kong Financial R —ABREESGTMASRMm 2
Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs") and F)’TELFH RER BB E®EER - B
Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public G ER (BT EA) K28 - BF
Accountants (“HKICPA"), accounting principles generally accepted in ARETRAREBRBEH 2 8E) ™
Hong Kong and the requirements of the Hong Kong Companies R ZEVBRRTETESHERS
Ordinance. These financial statements also comply with the applicable FrERLEIER EmAR (T EWmRALD 2
disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities BARENRTE AKERAZEZEGHE
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”). A RHMEWNT -
summary of the significant accounting policies adopted by the Group
is set out below.
The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised HKFRSs that are first E/%QEJrEﬂi’“AEﬂE?E%F’i\%ﬁ&,@ﬂ%ﬂ
effective or available for early adoption for the current accounting period L EBHBMELER  WRASERAR
of the Group and the Company. Note 2 provides information on any Rl ANEf et IR B X ek AT IR R R
changes in accounting policies resulting from initial application of these WMo BRERLEERANAER 2 HE]%E
developments to the extent that they are relevant to the Group for the BIFFSI BN B B R A ST 2 g
current and prior accounting periods reflected in these financial IR EBE R AT EHRERARKE - 5
statements. BRI M2 -

(b) Basis of preparation of the financial statements (b) #mBEEmET2ER

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2009 comprise the Company and its subsidiaries (together referred to
as the “Group”).

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the financial
statements is the historical cost basis.

Non-current assets held for sale are stated at the lower of carrying
amount and fair value less costs to sell (see note 1(v)).

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRSs
requires management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the application of policies and reported amounts of assets,
liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience and various other
factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances,

BE_ZTTNF+_A=1— EIJJ:E?Z
HeaMBRREBEARTLRENEB L
(T RIAEE]) -

MR I AR LR AR R -

BIEHENIERSEEZEERENR AR
EREHEEKXNAME 2 BRIEE AR (K
V) e

RENEE BN BREERNNMBHRRE
KERBEHEYEBRERREE 8
B - WA SR SR B R HIET - 5T
&fE”‘“E’J%EE fbat R B RRRTREB

EEREZEREEERBEATESEDN
Ef@l%ﬁf’ﬁﬁj HERM B EHEEMIER

the results of which form the basis of making the judgements about BRI TEASRNEERBEREEED
carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent FORRER - ERERAIEEAENZEMR
from other sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates. & e

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing
basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period

fEaT RARRIRR G FHERE - HE et
EITERTR - HETRPE R - Al

in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, FlEEs 1EQ+E’JHHFW<J6EM = C8-7
or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects %@J%Eﬁ&iﬁﬁ@ﬁf‘aﬁ BIIFE(EE] R AR R ER
both current and future periods. fE R o

Judgements made by management in the application of HKFRSs that
have significant effect on the financial statements and major sources
of estimation uncertainty are discussed in note 35.

ShER R B 7B B 75 1R 2 R B T 4F A )
B - AR T —FE 2 BHEREBK
BERRBEARZ BT RAT RN
i35
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

1
(c)

significant accounting policies (Continued)

Subsidiaries and minority interests

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. Control exists when
the Group has the power to govern the financial and operating policies
of an entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities. In assessing
control, potential voting rights that presently are exercisable are taken
into account.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the consolidated
financial statements from the date that control commences until the
date that control ceases. Intra-group balances and transactions and
any unrealised profits arising from intra-group transactions are
eliminated in full in preparing the consolidated financial statements.
Unrealised losses resulting from intra-group transactions are eliminated
in the same way as unrealised profits but only to the extent that there
is no evidence of impairment.

Minority interests represent the portion of the net assets of subsidiaries
attributable to interests that are not owned by the Company, whether
directly or indirectly through subsidiaries, and in respect of which the
Group has not agreed any additional terms with the holders of those
interests which would result in the Group as a whole having a
contractual obligation in respect of those interests that meets the
definition of a financial liability. Minority interests are presented in the
consolidated balance sheet within equity, separately from equity
attributable to the equity shareholders of the Company. Minority
interests in the results of the Group are presented on the face of the
consolidated income statement and the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income as an allocation of the total profit or loss and
total comprehensive income for the year between minority interests
and the equity shareholders of the Company.

Where losses applicable to the minority exceed the minority’s interest
in the equity of a subsidiary, the excess, and any further losses
applicable to the minority, are charged against the Group's interest
except to the extent that the minority has a binding obligation to, and
is able to, make additional investment to cover the losses. If the
subsidiary subsequently reports profits, the Group’s interest is allocated
all such profits until the minority’s share of losses previously absorbed
by the Group has been recovered.

Loans from holders of minority interests and other contractual
obligations towards these holders are presented as financial liabilities
in the consolidated balance sheet in accordance with notes 1(m) or (n)
depending on the nature of the liability.

In the Company’s balance sheet, an investment in a subsidiary is stated
at cost less impairment losses (see note 1())).

(c)

B B R AR Y R

(B SHERI - RABESE)

FEFHEER®

MEQRRDBRRER

MIEB AR AANEEMES 2 HEE - W5
SEBEHRTE LB RN MG EEBI
MERNE - ZERBRELSZEIAEE
2l o fERFETEHIIER - REFLRAITTER
BEREREAEEN -

KB AR ZRE AR AERIEFRBGA
FAMBRERAN - BEEGELIERILE -
AEBARBIZEZHEHRERZ S - ARK
SIEEZ ERAARBRAN - IR RELS
EMBRREEBIRE - WEREFE -
AEBARBZHEZXFMEEZ RBR
B8 TIARERBFAER 2 EAEHE -

DERRER AR FAARAEERSE
BB R RREEANRIGHELRFEE
ERRERA D MARBREZERTH
EERAEMH NG - NS EEBRE LY
HZERGELNAWHABERMNETER
%o PERRERERAEERBRAN
P iRAEER IR o (B A] SR B N B AR AR
@A o PEBRRERIGAEEFENR
BN EEERARGERADE R DB
RERNASBRARRRRERTAZ
o

i 2 BB R B A5 S 1R R B T /88 2 B4 e
HDBIBCR s - PTAR 2 BRER R (AT
BEREEZE—TEE  BRAEEZ
R HIRR - MW D SR AR AAR
N2 BERBEHBAEERRNERR o %MW
BRRBRZABRNIDETAEE -
BEARMBASEAERER DB R
HZBEGIBEAL -

RAOBBRESFB ABHNERUARE
i & K BAAEFARB M ZE (M) () GRAE
MEEME) REEEERBREN /Y
BaE-
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

1
(d)

(e)

significant accounting policies (Continued)

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of a business combination
over the Group’s interest in the net fair value of the acquiree’s
identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities.

Goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill
arising on a business combination is allocated to each cash-generating
unit, or groups of cash-generating units, that is expected to benefit
from the synergies of the combination and is tested annually for
impairment (see note 1())).

Any excess of the Group’s interest in the net fair value of the acquiree’s
identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities over the cost of
a business combination is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

On disposal of a cash-generating unit, any attributable amount of
goodwill is included in the calculation of the profit or loss on disposal.

Property, plant and equipment

The following property, plant and equipment are stated in the balance
sheet at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses
(see note 1())), with the exception of construction in progress which is
stated at cost less any impairment losses (see note 1())).

— land held under operating leases and buildings thereon, where
the fair values of the leasehold interest in the land and buildings
cannot be measured separately at the inception of the lease
and the building is clearly not held under an operating lease
(see note 1(2));

— buildings held for own use which are situated on leasehold land,
where the fair value of the building could be measured
separately from the fair value of the leasehold land at the
inception of the lease (see note 1(g)); and

— other items of plant and equipment.

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of an item of
property, plant and equipment are determined as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the
item and are recognised in profit or loss on the date of retirement or
disposal.
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(d)

(e)

BAAS AR AT
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

1
(e)

(f)

(8)

significant accounting policies (Continued)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items of property,
plant and equipment, less their estimated residual values, if any, using
the straight-line method over their estimated useful lives as follows:

Leasehold land and buildings are depreciated over the shorter of the
unexpired term of lease and their estimated useful lives, being no more
than 50 years after the date of purchase.

Machinery, equipment, furniture
and fixtures
Motor vehicles

4 to 50 years
4 to 7 years

No provision for depreciation is made on construction in progress until
such time when the assets are substantially completed and ready for
use.

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different
useful lives, the cost of the item is allocated on a reasonable basis
between the parts and each part is depreciated separately.

Both the useful life of an asset and its residual value, if any, are reviewed
annually.

Investment properties

Investment properties are land and buildings which are owned or held
under a leasehold interest (see note 1(g)) to earn rental income and/or
for capital appreciation.

Investment properties are stated in the balance sheet at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses (see note 1()).
Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of investment properties,
less their estimated residual values, if any, using the straight-line method
over the shorter of the unexpired term of lease and their estimated
useful lives, being no more than 50 years.

Rental income from investment properties is accounted for as described
in note 1(s)(iii).

Leased assets

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series of transactions,
is or contains a lease if the Group determines that the arrangement
conveys a right to use a specific asset or assets for an agreed period of
time in return for a payment or a series of payments. Such a
determination is made based on an evaluation of the substance of the
arrangement and is regardless of whether the arrangement takes the
legal form of a lease.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BAAS AR AT

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (BRBEETIN  HRBEHE)
1 significant accounting policies (continued) 1 EEHEE®

(8) Leased assets (Continued) (g MHEEBE®W®

(i) Classification of assets leased to the Group (i) HEFEAEEZEENDE

Assets that are held by the Group under leases which transfer to the HRAEBUEERBEMNEE - WEBEH

Group substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are classified ERBERAEEMNBANI YAk EHRER

as being held under finance leases. EAEH  FHAEFEGIRR/URAR

EEE -

Leases which do not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of WAKHRBEEZMERBNNZEZE

ownership to the Group are classified as operating leases, with the HEAE - DYAKSEMEE - LLTRIN

following exceptions:

— property held under operating leases that would otherwise meet — HEREMETENKEREY
the definition of an investment property is classified as XeWHEEREWE - IR
investment property on a property-by-property basis and, if DEEREME  ZHESUR
classified as investment property, is accounted for as if held EHEAR &
under a finance lease; and

— land held for own use under an operating lease, where the fair — REgEHELFEAMBEEN T
value cannot be measured separately from the fair value of a o ERAEBEEHERGBET
building situated thereon at the inception of the lease, is e R AR ENEENA
accounted for as being held under a finance lease, unless the RBESFHE  SEARER
building is also clearly held under an operating lease. For these EHEREAR KRIFEBBUEE
purposes, the inception of the lease is the time that the lease MEARBEERLTE - AlE
was first entered into by the Group, or taken over from the Rlim o Bt T - HENRBRE
previous lessee. MAAEBEGRAIMLHELNE - X

WRIABABZEFE -
(ii)  Operating lease charges (i KEHRE

Where the Group has the use of assets held under operating leases, WASEERBELEHEEFREE - BEA

payments made under the leases are charged to profit or loss in equal R PT 2 FRIB TR E & R LA S B & A

instalments over the accounting periods covered by the lease term. FrdEr et - SN EERE

Lease incentives received are recognised in profit or loss as an integral i T ERPTER BB FHE N R —

part of the aggregate net lease payments made. HomrBEm PR o

The cost of acquiring land held under an operating lease is amortised EERERE T MIRER ARIZEER

on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease term. Impairment SRS - BERBSIRENG

losses are recognised in accordance with the accounting policy set ()89 & 5 BUR REERR o

out in note 1()).

(h) Intangible assets (other than goodwill) (hy #\BREEE BEERMD

Intangible assets are trademarks and club debentures acquired by the
Group and stated in the balance sheet at cost less impairment losses
(see note 1()).

These intangible assets are not amortised as their useful lives are
assessed to be indefinite, and are tested annually for impairment (see
note 1())).

The conclusion that the useful life of an intangible asset is indefinite is
reviewed annually to determine whether events and circumstances
continue to support the indefinite useful life assessment for that asset.

PR N g T ERERE AR AR SR EEER
BEEABRIK  XEFETRENR
(RPN -

REBEENEEE  RAEAERASE
MR R T EE RS FAERERR
(RPEFEG) -

BIVEEZAHEMFIIEE 2 SwRAS
FRAMAEEBARRBBETREELZ
TRREERFHIFEER -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

1
()]

()
0)

significant accounting policies (Continued)

Other tangible assets

Other tangible assets are returnable bottles and crates used by
subsidiaries in the People’s Republic of China (“PRC").

Returnable bottles and crates are stated in the balance sheet at cost
less accumulated amortisation and impairment losses (see note 1())).
Amortisation is calculated to write off the cost of bottles and crates,
less their estimated residual values, using the straight-line method over
their estimated useful lives of two and seven years respectively.

Both the useful lives of bottles and crates and their residual values are
reviewed annually.

Impairment of assets

Impairment of receivables

Receivables that are stated at cost or amortised cost are reviewed at
each balance sheet date to determine whether there is objective
evidence of impairment. Objective evidence of impairment includes
observable data that comes to the attention of the Group about one or
more of the following loss events:

— significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

— a breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in interest
or principal payments;

— it becoming probable that the debtor will enter bankruptcy or
other financial reorganisation; and

— significant changes in the technological, market, economic or
legal environment that have an adverse effect on the debtor.

If any such evidence exists, the impairment 10ss is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value
of estimated future cash flows, discounted at the financial asset’s
original effective interest rate, where the effect of discounting is
material. This assessment is made collectively where financial assets
carried at amortised cost share similar risk characteristics, such as
similar past due status, and have not been individually assessed as
impaired. Future cash flows for financial assets which are assessed for
impairment collectively are based on historical loss experience for
assets with credit risk characteristics similar to the collective group.

If in a subsequent period the amount of an impairment loss decreases
and the decrease can be linked objectively to an event occurring after
the impairment loss was recognised, the impairment loss is reversed
through profit or loss. A reversal of an impairment loss shall not result
in the asset’s carrying amount exceeding that which would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised in prior years.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BAAS AR AT

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (BB B ERI - RBEERTHE)

1 significant accounting policies (continued) 1 EEHEE®

(j) Impairment of assets (Continued) () EERE®

(i) Impairment of receivables (Continued) (i) EWRE R E (B)
Impairment losses are written off against the corresponding assets B ETE B AR FEE E MY - RS
directly, except for impairment losses recognised in respect of trade FEUE 5 K H b BR SR FE UL E 5 R BN FT T
receivables included within trade and other receivables, whose recovery REREEE - HREE BT &MY
is considered doubtful but not remote. In this case, the impairment EE - BIERR - EILIER T - REERM
losses for doubtful debts are recorded using an allowance account. WIEEEEBBERLH - EAXAEEER
When the Group is satisfied that recovery is remote, the amount WEge R - BIER AW E A SR
considered irrecoverable is written off against trade receivables directly GHECERWE SRRPHEE - T3]
and any amounts held in the allowance account relating to that debt ABEERAGEEEENSESHED -
are reversed. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously charged HeARbB e E#EERERNRNS
to the allowance account are reversed against the allowance account. B RgERERPED - BERANE
Other changes in the allowance account and subsequent recoveries of HEHREBKE D EEMENSTE
amounts previously written off directly are recognised in profit or loss. EE=PER -

(ii)  Impairment of other assets (i) EHHEERME

Internal and external sources of information are reviewed at each
balance sheet date to identify indications that the following assets may
be impaired or, except in the case of goodwill, an impairment loss
previously recognised no longer exists or may have decreased:

— Property, plant and equipment;

REEEE B SR AEE RINEER - A
BRI T EERETE I BER A
RZBERBENFEIRD HEEHERK
)

— BE BHEERE:

— Investment properties; — "EME

— Interests in leasehold land held for own use under operating — EREHETEAMBENHEE
leases, TR

— Investments in subsidiaries; — RHB AR ZIRE

- Other tangible assets; — HtBREE

— Intangible assets; and
— Goodwill.

If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable amount is
estimated. In addition, for goodwill and intangible assets that have
indefinite useful lives, the recoverable amount is estimated annually
whether or not there is any indication of impairment.

— Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater of its fair
value less costs to sell and value in use. In assessing value in
use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset. Where an asset does not generate cash
inflows largely independent of those from other assets, the
recoverable amount is determined for the smallest group of
assets that generates cash inflows independently (i.e. a cash-
generating unit).
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— e
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

1
()
(i)

(k)

)

significant accounting policies (Continued)

Impairment of assets (Continued)

Impairment of other assets (Continued)

— Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss if the carrying
amount of an asset, or the cash-generating unit to which it
belongs, exceeds its recoverable amount. Impairment losses
recognised in respect of cash-generating units are allocated first
to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the
cash-generating unit (or group of units) and then, to reduce the
carrying amount of the other assets in the unit (or group of units)
on a pro rata basis, except that the carrying value of an asset
will not be reduced below its individual fair value less costs to
sell, or value in use, if determinable.

— Reversals of impairment losses

In respect of assets other than goodwill, an impairment 10ss is
reversed if there has been a favourable change in the estimates
used to determine the recoverable amount. An impairment loss
in respect of goodwill is not reversed.

Areversal of an impairment loss is limited to the asset’s carrying
amount that would have been determined had no impairment
loss been recognised in prior years. Reversals of impairment
losses are credited to profit or loss in the year in which the
reversals are recognised.

Inventories
Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

Cost is calculated using the weighted average cost formula and
comprises all costs of purchase, costs of conversion and other costs
incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and
condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course
of business less the estimated costs of completion and the estimated
COSts necessary to make the sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those inventories is
recognised as an expense in the period in which the related revenue is
recognised. The amount of any write-down of inventories to net
realisable value and all losses of inventories are recognised as an
expense in the period the write-down or loss occurs. The amount of
any reversal of any write-down of inventories is recognised as a
reduction in the amount of inventories recognised as an expense in
the period in which the reversal occurs.

Receivables

Receivables are initially recognised at fair value and thereafter stated
at amortised cost less allowance for impairment of doubtful debts (see
note 1())), except where the receivables are interest-free loans made
to related parties without any fixed repayment terms or the effect of
discounting would be immaterial. In such cases, the receivables are
stated at cost less allowance for impairment of doubtful debts.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

1

(m)

(n)

(0)

(p)
0}

(i)

(iii)

significant accounting policies (Continued)

Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised initially at fair value less
attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, interest-
bearing borrowings are stated at amortised cost with any difference
between the amount initially recognised and redemption value being
recognised in profit or 1oss over the period of the borrowings, together
with any interest and fees payable, using the effective interest method.

Payables

Payables are initially recognised at fair value and thereafter stated at
amortised cost unless the effect of discounting would be immaterial,
in which case they are stated at cost.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on hand, demand
deposits with banks and other financial institutions, and short-term,
highly liquid investments that are readily convertible into known
amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value, having been within three months of maturity at
acquisition.

Employee benefits

Short term employee benefits and contributions to defined
contribution retirement plans

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave, contributions to defined
contribution retirement plans and the cost of non-monetary benefits
are accrued in the year in which the associated services are rendered
by employees.

Defined benefit retirement plan obligations

The Group's net obligation in respect of defined benefit retirement plan
is calculated by estimating the amount of future benefit that employees
have earned in return for their service in the current and prior periods;
that benefit is discounted to determine the present value, and the fair
value of any plan assets is deducted. The discount rate is the yield at
the balance sheet date on high quality corporate bonds that have
maturity dates approximating the terms of the Group’s obligations. The
calculation is performed by a qualified actuary using the projected unit
credit method.

Actuarial gains and losses in respect of the defined benefit retirement
plan are recognised in full in the period in which they occur, outside
profit or loss, in equity. They shall not be recognised in profit or 10ss in
a subsequent period.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised when, and only when, the Group
demonstrably commits itself to terminate employment or to provide
benefits as a result of voluntary redundancy by having a detailed formal
plan which is without realistic possibility of withdrawal.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

1
(a)

significant accounting policies (Continued)

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and movements in
deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current tax and movements in
deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognised in profit or loss except
to the extent that they relate to items recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case the relevant
amount of tax are recognised in other comprehensive income or directly
in equity, respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the
year, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the balance
sheet date, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous
years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible and taxable
temporary differences respectively, being the differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes
and their tax bases. Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax
losses and unused tax credits.

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax liabilities, and all
deferred tax assets to the extent that it is probable that future taxable
profits will be available against which the asset can be utilised, are
recognised.

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured based on the
expected manner of realisation or settlement of the carrying amount
of the assets and liabilities, using tax rates enacted or substantively
enacted at the balance sheet date. Deferred tax assets and liabilities
are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed at each balance
sheet date and is reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow the related tax
benefit to be utilised. Any such reduction is reversed to the extent that
it becomes probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available.

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and movements
therein, are presented separately from each other and are not offset.
Current tax assets are offset against current tax liabilities, and deferred
tax assets against deferred tax liabilities, if the Company or the Group
has the legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and the following additional conditions are met:

— in the case of current tax assets and liabilities, the Company or
the Group intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise
the asset and settle the liability simultaneously; or

— in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities, if they relate to
income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on either:

— the same taxable entity; or

— different taxable entities, which, in each future period
in which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities
or assets are expected to be settled or recovered, intend
to realise the current tax assets and settle the current
tax liabilities on a net basis or realise and settle
simultaneously.
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B #& R 3k MY AL

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (BRBEETIN  HRBEHE)

1 significant accounting policies (continued) 1 EEHEE®

(r)  Provisions and contingent liabilities ( ZEERIAREE
Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing or amount IMRAR R RAEB AR AR F
when the Group or the Company has a legal or constructive obligation BEESETEY  AMESAEEHEE
arising as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of LEM M ERING - ER AMEL ] 5/
economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable R AR R SRASEEE R R
estimate can be made. Where the time value of money is material, BT ENBETIRER - WREEER
provisions are stated at the present value of the expenditure expected BEX - AIRTEFPIH 2 AR ER T E
to settle the obligation. 1# o
Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be MR EBER =R ETRINTH AT e R
required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably, the obligation is K XREEEHBBEEEELATENMN
disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow of i EERREBERANAAE  BE
economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations, whose existence will TRINRE AT BEVMEARE RIBR AN o INRANE l
only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more HEBERTERKZRIARENHEEE
future events are also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the ET TR AL W@&EE&EE
probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote. & - BERIMNRH AT AL MR K BIRROD o

(s) Revenue recognition (s) WAmRR
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or H&U\%L‘AEH&HXTTH&HW&@HE’TA%EF@
receivable. Provided it is probable that the economic benefits will flow FTE - WESBLERENERAERA
to the Group and the revenue and costs, if applicable, can be measured REE - MUPA R (RRE ) se st
reliably, revenue is recognised in profit or loss as follows: RAISERETER - BEWAREATIHE

Wz R NER -

(i) Sale of goods (i) HE WA
Revenue is recognised when goods are delivered at the customers’ HERATREREEIBEENLELES
premises which is taken to be the point in time when the customer has BT AEEEIEMRBBERBRETUA
accepted the goods and the related risks and rewards of ownership. IR o SEEWMATBIBSER - WBH RS
Revenue excludes value added tax, beer duty and consumption tax mBt - WEAHBRABE ST RERM
and is after deduction of any trade discounts and returns.

(ii)  Interest income (ii) FE WA
Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the effective interest FIBIMA TR EBR R L H o
method.

(iii) Rental income from operating leases (i) REHEMERZESEA
Rental income receivable under operating leases is recognised in profit RIBLEHEMEKRZESIWA - TIIAE
or loss in equal instalments over the periods covered by the lease term. BERHAFMRE 2 2T BIBER - KoM
Lease incentives granted are recognised in profit or loss as an integral SR EE ﬁ@ﬁf’ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂ&éﬁ%ﬁ?ﬁ/ﬂﬁ‘*?ﬁ%ﬁ
part of the aggregate net lease payments receivable. K —HAEEBERER

(t)  Translation of foreign currencies (t) HEEHBR

(i) Functional currency and presentation currency (i) MEERREREY
Items included in the financial statements of each of the Group’s REBFWBE AT 2 BMEMEIEZIA
subsidiaries are measured using the currency of the primary economic B - DiRZWE A %“%FﬁEZI B3y
environment in which the entity operates (“the functional currency”). IR EE (FIJJQEEMJ) T2 - AU
The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong WERABTES - ﬂﬁ/’%fﬂ%$@ﬁzwa€

dollars, which is the Company'’s functional and presentation currency.

REHE -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

1

(t)
(i)

(u)

(v)

significant accounting policies (Continued)

Translation of foreign currencies (Continued)

Foreign currency transactions during the year are translated at the
foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates. Monetary assets
and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the
foreign exchange rates ruling at the balance sheet date. Exchange gains
and losses are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates.

The results of foreign operations are translated into Hong Kong dollars
at the foreign exchange rates approximating the foreign exchange rates
ruling at the dates of the transactions. Balance sheet items, including
goodwill arising on consolidation of foreign operations acquired on or
after 1 January 2005, are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the closing
foreign exchange rates at the balance sheet date. The resulting
exchange differences are recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated separately in equity in the exchange reserve. Goodwill
arising on consolidation of foreign operations acquired before 1 January
2005 is translated at the foreign exchange rate that applied at the date
of acquisition of the foreign operation.

On disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative amount of the
exchange differences relating to that foreign operation is reclassified
from equity to profit or loss when the profit or loss on disposal is
recognised.

Foreign exchange gains and losses arising from monetary items that in
substance form part of the net investment in a foreign operation,
together with any related tax, are reclassified to equity on consolidation.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of an asset which necessarily takes a
substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are
capitalised as part of the cost of that asset. Other borrowing costs are
expensed in the period in which they are incurred.

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of the cost of a qualifying
asset commences when expenditure for the asset is being incurred,
borrowing costs are being incurred and activities that are necessary to
prepare the asset for its intended use or sale are in progress.
Capitalisation of borrowing costs is suspended or ceases when
substantially all the activities necessary to prepare the qualifying asset
for its intended use or sale are interrupted or complete.

Non-current assets held for sale

A non-current asset is classified as held for sale if it is highly probable
that its carrying amount will be recovered through a sale transaction
rather than through continuing use and the asset is available for sale
in its present condition.

(t)
(i)

(u)

(v)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

1
(v)

(w)

(x)

significant accounting policies (Continued)

Non-current assets held for sale (Continued)

Immediately before classification as held for sale, the measurement of
the non-current assets is brought up-to-date in accordance with the
accounting policies before the classification. Then, on initial
classification as held for sale and until disposal, the non-current assets
(except for certain assets as explained below), are recognised at the
lower of their carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell. The
principal exceptions to this measurement policy so far as the financial
statements of the Group and the Company are concerned are deferred
tax assets, assets arising from employee benefits and financial assets
(other than investments in subsidiaries). These assets, even if held for
sale, would continue to be measured in accordance with the policies
set out elsewhere in note 1.

Impairment losses on initial classification as held for sale, and on
subsequent remeasurement while held for sale, are recognised in profit
or loss. As long as a non-current asset is classified as held for sale, the
non-current asset is not depreciated or amortised.

Related parties

For the purposes of these financial statements, a party is considered
to be related to the Group if:

(i) the party has the ability, directly or indirectly through one or
more intermediaries, to control the Group or exercise significant
influence over the Group in making financial and operating policy
decisions, or has joint control over the Group;

(if) the Group and the party are subject to common control;

(iii) the party is an associate of the Group or a joint venture in which
the Group is a venturer;

(iv) the party is a member of key management personnel of the
Group or the Group’s parent, or a close family member of such
an individual, or is an entity under the control, joint control or
significant influence of such individuals;

(v) the party is a close family member of a party referred to in (i) or
is an entity under the control, joint control or significant
influence of such individuals; or

(Vi) the party is a post-employment benefit plan which is for the
benefit of employees of the Group or of any entity that is a
related party of the Group.

Close family members of an individual are those family members who
may be expected to influence, or be influenced by, that individual in
their dealings with the entity.

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment item reported
in the financial statements, are identified from the financial information
provided regularly to the Group's most senior executive management
for the purposes of allocating resources to, and assessing the
performance of, the Group's various geographical locations.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS |

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

1
(x)

significant accounting policies (Continued)

Segment reporting (Continued)

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated for financial
reporting purposes unless the segments have similar economic
characteristics and are similar in respect of the nature of products and
services, the nature of production processes, the type or class of
customers, the methods used to distribute the products or provide the
services, and the nature of the regulatory environment. Operating
segments which are not individually material may be aggregated if they
share a majority of these criteria.

Changes in accounting policies

The HKICPA has issued one new HKFRS, a number of amendments to
HKFRSs and new interpretations that are first effective for the current
accounting period of the Group and the Company. Of these, the following
developments are relevant to the Group's financial statements:

— HKFRS 8, Operating segments
— HKAS 1 (revised 2007), Presentation of financial statements
— Improvements to HKFRSS (2008)

— HKAS 23 (revised 2007), Borrowing costs

The amendments to HKAS 23 have had no material impact on the
Group's financial statements as the amendments were consistent with
policies already adopted by the Group. The impact of the remainder of
these developments is as follows:

— HKFRS 8 requires segment disclosure to be based on the way
that the Group’s chief operating decision maker regards and
manages the Group, with the amounts reported for each
reportable segment being the measures reported to the Group's
chief operating decision maker for the purposes of assessing
segment performance and making decisions about operating
matters. This differs from the presentation of segment
information in prior years which was based on a disaggregation
of the Group’s financial statements into geographical segments
based on locations of customers. The adoption of HKFRS 8 has
resulted in the presentation of segment information in a manner
that is more consistent with internal reporting provided to the
Group’s most senior executive management. Corresponding
amounts have been provided on a basis consistent with the
revised segment information.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

2

Changes in accounting policies (continued)

As a result of the adoption of HKAS 1 (revised 2007), details of
changes in equity during the period arising from transactions
with equity shareholders in their capacity as such have been
presented separately from all other income and expensesin a
revised consolidated statement of changes in equity. All other
items of income and expense are presented in the consolidated
income statement, if they are recognised as part of profit or
loss for the period, or otherwise in a new primary statement,
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.
Corresponding amounts have been restated to conform to the
new presentation. This change in presentation has no effect on
reported profit or loss, total income and expense or net assets
for any period presented.

The “Improvements to HKFRSs (2008)" comprise a number of
minor and non-urgent amendments to a range of HKFRSs which
the HKICPA has issued as an omnibus batch of amendments.
Of these, the amendments to HKAS 38, Intangible assets, have
resulted in a change to the Group’s accounting policies:

As a result of amendments to HKAS 38, Intangible assets,
expenditure on advertising and promotional activities is
recognised as an expense when the Group has the right to
access the goods or when the entity receives the services. The
Group has a right to access goods when it owns them or when
they have been constructed by a supplier in accordance with
the terms of a supply contract and the Group could demand
delivery of them in return for payment. Prior to this change, the
Group adopted a policy whereby advertising and promotional
materials were capitalised in other receivables and recognised
in profit or loss when they were distributed to customers.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS |

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

2 Changes in accounting policies (continued) 2

This change has been applied retrospectively with comparatives
restated. The adjustments for each financial statement line item affected

for the years ended 31 December 2009 and 2008 are set out below:

A=t—BLFESEX

B2 AT

REBEITZARETIAT -
2009 2008
—EZThEF —EENF
$'000 $'000
Fr Tt
consolidated income statement BE+—-HA=+—H
for the year ended 31 December I FEEFRE W&
((Decrease)/increase in net l0ss) CFER L) )
Selling and distribution expenses HERDIHEAX (547) 2,507
Loss from operations and before taxation PREGATAC & 518 (547) 2,507
Income tax Fris Bt 752 (378)
Loss for the year FEEE 205 2,129
Attributable to: JEAGIAT -
— Equity shareholders of the Company — ARFEEFEA 286 2,138
— Minority interests — DR R (81) ©9)
Loss per share (basic) in cents FREE (EA) BULAIE 0.1 1
consolidated statement of changes BE+=-FA=+—-H
in equity for the year ended 31 December  IFFEELHEEZBE*
(Decrease in total equity) (ERABEER L)
Total equity at 1 January RN—A—HBMERER (5,027) (2,898)
Total comprehensive income for the year FE2EWELETE (205) (2,129)
Total equity at 31 December RTZA=+—HrEREE (5,232) (5,027)
BBE NG BEAR A A

“EEAEFH




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

2 Changes in accounting policies (continued) 2

This change has been applied retrospectively with comparatives
restated. The adjustments for each financial statement line item affected

for the years ended 31 December 2009 and 2008 are set out below:

(Continued)

Balance sheets

At 31 December At 31 December

Uik gl R

(EREERIN  BIRBEEE)

B BENHER »)

WIEEE D E PR SR TE
5l RAE_ETNER_TEN\GF+
A=+ AL EE SRS E HBER
RIBE BT HEHIMT : (&)
HELSEE

At 1 January

2009 2008 2008
R-ZBEAFE RZEZNF RIZEZNF
+=A=+—-8 +=—A=+—H —H—H
$'000 $'000 $'000
Tt Tt T

((Decrease)/increase in net assets) CFEE (L), #m)
The Group REH
Trade and other receivables EUE 5 Kk EMIRIE (5,232) (5,779) (3,272)
Net current assets and total FRBEEMBEE

assets less current liabilities BREN A& (5,232) (5,779) (3,272)
Deferred tax liabilities BEETHIBEEE — 752 374
Net assets FEE (5,232) (5,027) (2,898)
Reserves and total equity =SNG

attributable to equity ERFEA

shareholders of the Company FE(L R (5,112) (4,826) (2,688)
Minority interests DEHR R = (120) (201) (210)
Total equity Em B (5,232) (5,027) (2,898)
The Company VNN
Trade and other receivables JEWE 5 R EMERTE (4,304) (4,556) (2,264)
Net current assets and total ERBEERBEE

assets less current liabilities BRBAE (4,304) (4,556) (2,264)
Deferred tax liabilities BEETHBEEE — 752 374
Net assets FEE (4,304) (3,804) (1,890)
Reserves and total equity R RERRE (4,304) (3,804) (1,890)

3 Turnover

The principal activities of the Group are the manufacture and distribution
of bottled, canned and draught beers.

Turnover represents the invoiced value of products sold, net of
discounts, returns, beer duty and consumption tax.
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B B R AR Y R

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (BREHBETRI  IRBEHE
4 Other revenue and other net expenses 4 HtgARKEMANZEEHE
2009 2008
—EBNF —FTNF
$'000 $'000
Fr Tt
Other revenue Hg A
Interest income from bank deposits RITFERZFBUWA 2,949 9,460
Rental income el A 7.423 5,506
10,372 14,966
Other net expenses Hb & F5E
Net loss on disposal of property, plant and HEME - HEREE
equipment ZFEE (6,570) (375)
Net loss on disposal of other tangible assets HEEMBREE 2 FERE (2,842) (4,182)
Net foreign exchange (losses)/gains &% (58, &F (75) 1,655
Others Hi 554 1,709
(8,933) (1,193)
5 Impairment losses of non-current assets 5 FRDEEZRESGR
Impairment losses of non-current assets represent: ENMBEEZBBEEEIE
2009 2008
—EBNF —FTNF
$'000 $'000
Fx T
Non-current assets relating to mainland China BETERNERNIERTEE
operations (note) (MF5E) 300,000 290,000
Other tangible assets (note 17) EmBEREE (M3E17) 1,691 1,959
Intangible assets — club debentures (note 15) EBREE — FERESE (ME15 602 —
302,293 291,959

Note:

During 2009 and 2008, the directors noted that the decline in demand
for the Group's products in mainland China, compared to previous
forecasts in sales and the operating losses that consequently arose were
indications that non-current assets of operations in mainland China,
comprising mainly the production plant located in Shunde, Guangdong
Province, trademarks, other tangible assets and goodwill, may be
impaired. Over the past two years, the Group'’s business performance
in mainland China had been adversely affected by factors including
economic downturn, fierce market competition, counterfeit products
and poor weather conditions. In view of this, the directors prepared a
cash flow projection to estimate the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit to which these assets belong (“the cash-generating
unit”). The directors concluded that it is appropriate to recognise an
impairment loss of $300,000,000 (2008: $290,000,000), with details as
follows:

GEE

E_ETEAN_ZTTN\F - EEFEE
HELLA R ATOEEEN - FEAL
AN B E 00 R JOm 2 T B BB A
BEB RRANBRNEEZEBNIERD
BEAESHRERE - BLIERS
BAETEZBEMNERBIBENEE
WE - EmiE - HharREEREE -
BEMF  AEBEFBEAMBHER
%ﬁﬁx%%liﬁ%%gﬁt M
SE TR ERMERBLHARR
m&%%@%% EARI  BEER
RS REEANGEAZEEENB
WESEEEMN ((REEEBMN]DH
AlgEl &5  HERERIZSEE
T 2R (E #518300,000,0007C (ZZEZE N
£ :290,000,0007T) © FEBEHOT ¢

EEENEERERA
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

5 Impairment losses of non-current assets 5 FRDFECRKESGR®
(Continued)

2009 2008
—ZEThE —ZET)N\F
Note $'000 $'000
M 5 Fr T
Fixed assets EE&E 14(a) 271,200 264,284
Intangible assets — trademarks EBREE — @R 15 11,000 10,992
Goodwill [EES — 5,044
Other tangible assets HtBEHEE 17 17,800 9,680
300,000 290,000
The recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit has been REEEBMNNATKE S HIREE
determined based on a value-in-use calculation. That calculation uses REEEMEE - AREEEHE
cash flow projections based on business forecasts approved by the AEENFE - BEREHMATEZER
management covering a period of six years (2008: seven years) as B ErAFEZR - FAbzEREBED
management expect that a longer time is required for the Group to cope BEREEEERANASF (ZEEN
with the aforementioned adverse factors. Cash flows beyond the six- F o F) EBRET G E’Jiii/m;i‘ﬁi
year (2008: seven-year) period are extrapolated using a steady growth AMEtE - REZAF( CEENF - &
rate of 4% (2008: 3%). This growth rate does not exceed the long-term F) ‘Jri\J{éE’JiEimE » AR
average growth rate for the PRC. WREA%(ZZZNGF : 3% HH - 35
A &= ITmE"EP Bl ) R HA 1938

Key assumptions used for value-in-use calculation: AEEABERAANEERR -
2009 2008
—EENE AN
Sales volume growth rate HESWER 5.5-7.3% 0-6%
Gross contribution rate ER 39 - 40% 36 - 46%
Pre-tax discount rate USRI 13.17% 11.45%
Management determined the growth rate and gross contribution rate ERERBRTLBREHMSBE

based on past experience as well as future expected market trends. WEHETEREREMEK -
6 Loss before taxation 6 [MRAEBR

Loss before taxation is arrived at after charging/(crediting):

BRBATEIRE M, GEA) TFIEE :

2009 2008
—ZENE —EENF
$'000 $'000
Fr T
(@) Finance costs (a) M%ER
Interest expense on bank loans BERAFAZEEEY
wholly repayable within five years BOEHRFEZH 10,915 14,739
Bank charges RITEA 2,530 920
13,445 15,659
(b) Staff costs (b) BT HM
Retirement costs Lﬁi%ﬁfﬁ
— Defined contribution retirement plans BEFREE 6,631 6,027
— Defined benefit retirement plan — m%’%a FIR ARG 2
(note 26(a)(v)) (B &£ 26(a)(v)) 4,875 3,558
11,506 9,585
Salaries, wages and other benefits e ITERHEMEF 99,341 91,656
110,847 101,241
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B B R AR Y R

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (BRBEHERI  HRBETE)
6 Loss hefore taxation (continued) 6 MBRABR®
Loss before taxation is arrived at after charging/(crediting): (Continued) BREIRIESIBE MR GEA) THIEE - (@)
2009 2008
—EEAF —EENF
$'000 $'000
Fx FIr
(© Other items () HMIEE
Amortisation 3]
— Land lease premium (note 14(a)) — ME T FIE (fH5E14() 2,217 2,459
— Other tangible assets (note 17) — Hitn B EE (H:E17) 9,771 14,945
Depreciation (note 14(a)) & (fiT3E14(0)
— Property, plant and equipment — %aﬁ&“% 50,717 55,764
— Investment properties —REME 2,270 2,219
Cost of inventories (note 19) FERA (17519 330,710 320,320
Operating lease charges: minimum lease KEHEER : HEHE
payments (BE:S
— Land and buildings — THREE 2,891 3,044
— Plant and machinery — B E R 232 432
Rental receivable from investment i‘xé“%%ZfEé”&U\?DB@
properties less direct outgoings BE#E 2,393,000
of $2,393,000 (2008: $2,327,000) (:%;ﬁ)\i :2,327,0007T) (5,030) (3,179)
Auditors’ remuneration ZE RN & 3,737 3,640
(Reversal of)/provision for impairment FH&ZT%EEIEZWEEETEZ
loss on trade receivables (note 20(b)) (Bm) /B (BfEE2000) (795) 2,989
7 Income tax in the consolidated income 7 HFEBEFRZAER
statement
(a) Taxation in the consolidated income statement () HmEWBRZFIERIE:
represents:
2009 2008
—EEAF —ZEZENF
$'000 $'000
T T
(restated)
(BEM)
Current tax — Hong Kong Profits Tax AEAFIE — BRMEH
Over-provision in respect of prior years LEEERE — I 25
Deferred tax (note 27(b)(i)) EERIE (B EE27(b)(i)
Origination and reversal of temporary differences iz 8 ~ H 1R K @] #& 2,272 58,073
Effect of decrease in tax rate on deferred R
tax balance ZHIERE — 439
,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, 2,272 58512
Income tax credit FRigFiat A 2,272 58,537

The statutory tax rate applicable to the Company and other Hong Kong
subsidiaries was 16.5% (2008: 16.5%). No provision for Hong Kong Profits
Tax has been made for the Company and other Hong Kong subsidiaries
either because the accumulated tax losses brought forward exceed

AR REMEEHBRATEEREA
16.5% (ZZFZ/)\F : 16.5%) ° K&K
H BB E QR R R 2T IEERE
B AT E AR ER AR SR GRS

the estimated assessable profits for the year or the entities sustained B BB BNESHAELEE -
losses for taxation purposes.
The statutory tax rate applicable to the subsidiaries established in the AR B RK 37 BB S A B B9E TE R A 25%

PRC was 25% (2008: 25%). No provision for overseas taxation has been (ZZEZNF 1 25%) - SRREBLAINK
SR A A R RET IR IE BT IE
BAFEGFERTAN - AEZEXTIBE
BRI ELE N IEVE L B o

made for the subsidiaries established outside Hong Kong either because
the entities sustained losses for taxation purposes or the entities were
under tax holidays granted in the relevant tax jurisdictions.

BB ENRARERA A
“EEAEFH
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BAAS AR AT

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (BB B ERI - RBEERTHE)

7 Income tax in the consolidated income 7 FERBRZIA/R®
statement (continued)

(@) Taxation in the consolidated income statement (@) HFEWBRZMBBIE @ @)
represents: (Continued)
Change in tax rate RHENRE
In February 2008, the Hong Kong Government announced a decrease ZEEJ\EZE C BABNEM B EER
in the Hong Kong Profits Tax rate from 17.5% to 16.5% applicable to the BRA17.5% T FA=16. 5% 0 1Lt 5 B 3
Group'’s operations in Hong Kong as from the year ended 31 December Rﬂ)fﬁ%l HEE-TEN\F+ZA=1
2008. This decrease was taken into account in the preparation of the — EIJLEFZ%S BRI - RREAEE R
Group's and the Company’s 2008 financial statements. Accordingly, the RARRZZEZ N\EHHBRER - EZET
2008 opening balances of deferred tax relating to the Group's and the *ﬁ‘ﬁ%fﬂ N Iﬁtiﬁizﬁ’i@&ﬂi Gl
Company's operations in Hong Kong have been re-estimated. BEBBEAN_ZTZT ) N\FFEYEERIEA

(b)

BRI AR IE M T A B HT AT A -

Reconciliation between income tax credit and (b) FEHTAESHBEZHAEG
accounting loss at applicable tax rates:
2009 2008
—EEAF ZEENF
$'000 $'000
T T
(restated)
(BEA)
Loss before taxation BB RIS 1B 345,324 316,692
Notional tax on loss before taxation calculated BEBRIERAERR
at the rates applicable to the tax jurisdictions AR ERBRAIEETE
concerned ZAHETRLIA 85,444 67,165
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses T HBRAST 2 HETE (3,717) (7,026)
Tax effect of non-taxable revenue IERBAZ HIBT & 1,843 1,828
Tax effect of tax losses and temporary differences > s i 1 £ 78 & 7 Z?RIEEEE
not recognised for deferred tax purposes RERUEER o HIEZE (78,137) (1,129)
Effect of decrease in tax rate on deferred TR T
tax balance 2RI E — 439
Others HAth (3,161) (2,765)
Over-provision in respect of prior years - = F A B 4 — 25
Actual tax credit ZIECY N 2,272 58,537

San Miguel Brewery Hong Kong Ltd.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

B B R AR Y R

(B SHERI - RABESE)

8 Directors’' remuneration 8 EFEM=
Directors’ remuneration disclosed pursuant to section 161 of the Hong RIBFBQRIEHFE1611ER EHEAZ
Kong Companies Ordinance and the requirements of the Listing Rules HEBBsESHaOT
is as follows:
2009
—EThE
Salaries,
allowances
and Retirement
Directors’ benefits Discretionary scheme
fees in kind bonuses contributions Total
re HERER MiERL BREMT |t
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
T T T Tr Tr
Executive director HITEE
Peter K.Y. Tam ERR 2,331 — 109 2,440
Non-executive directors  ##{TEE
Ramon S. Ang =358 - - — -
Faustino F. Galang PEE - - - -
Carlos Antonio M. Berba HED — — — —
Minerva Lourdes B. Bibonia  Minerva Lourdes B. Bibonia — — — —
Ferdinand K. Constantino ~ BE% - - - -
Cheung Yuen Tak R - - - -
Jesusa Victoria H. Bautistia  Jesusa Victoria H. Bautistia - - - -
Thelmo Luis O. CunananJr.  Thelmo Luis O. Cunanan Jr. - — — —
Independent BUFHTEE
non-executive directors
David K.P Li ZEE — — - —
W.S. Ng REH - - — -
Carmelo L. Santiago kg — — — -
Romulo L. Neri Romulo L. Neri — — — —
Benjamin P Defensor, Jr. BER — — — —
2,331 — 109 2,440
EBENRERER AR

“EEAEFH




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS | Bf#&3RaRMIzE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (BB B ERI - RBEERTHE)
EEMe®

RBEFERREPIE16116R ETREIZ
RERB2EZMET - (8)

8 Directors’' remuneration (Continued) 8

Directors’ remuneration disclosed pursuant to section 161 of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance and the requirements of the Listing Rules
is as follows: (Continued)

2008
“EENF
Salaries,
allowances
and Retirement
Directors’ benefits Discretionary scheme
fees inkind bonuses contributions Total
ik 54 R WL RSN At
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
T T T T T
Executive director HITEE
Peter K.Y. Tam EER 1,789 - 104 1,893
Non-executive directors ¥ #HTEZE
Ramon S. Ang BRI - - - -
Faustino F. Galang BEE - — — -
Carlos Antonio M. Berba HED - — — —
Minerva Lourdes B. Bibonia ~ Minerva Lourdes B. Bibonia - — — —
Ferdinand K. Constantino ~ BE% - - - —
lwan David Nevyn Evans =M — — — —
Francis H. Jardeleza EEY — — — —
Cheung Yuen Tak R — - - -
Jesusa Victoria H. Bautistia  Jesusa Victoria H. Bautistia — - — —
Thelmo Luis O. CunananJr.  Thelmo Luis O. Cunanan Jr. — — — —
Independent BUFHITEE
non-executive directors
David K.P Li ZTHE — — _ _
WS Ng RiEH — — — —
Carmelo L. Santiago iiiids) - - - -
1,789 - 104 1,893

San Miguel Brewery Hong Kong Ltd.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

9

10

Individuals with highest emoluments 9

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, one (2008: one) is
director whose emoluments are included in note 8. The aggregate of
the emoluments in respect of the remaining four (2008: four) individuals

B B R AR Y R

(FrmEHERI -

HemEZAR

BIREEHE)

BEFAEARS  — B (CFE)\F
—%) REF (MR EANHSRE) - &
BOE(CEEN\EF MR MERHZA

are as follows: BrMeBmmT
2009 2008
—EThEF —ET)\F
$'000 $'000
F T
Salaries and other emoluments e MoERL 6,559 5,712
Retirement scheme contributions RIS HR 321 309
6,880 6,021

The emoluments of the four (2008: four) individuals with the highest

& (CEENF - IR Meka AR

emoluments are within the following bands: ZHEATIAT

2009 2008
—EEhEF ZTEENF
Number of Number of
individuals individuals
AEEH ANB#HE
$1,000,001 to $1,500,000 1,000,001t 2 1,500,0007T 2 3
$1,500,001 to $2,000,000 1,500,0017T 2 2,000,0007T 1 —
$2,000,001 to $2,500,000 2,000,0017t £2,500,0007T 1 1

Loss attributable to equity shareholders of the 10 FAFREBHHARGESR

Company

The consolidated loss attributable to equity shareholders of the
Company includes a loss of $265,411,000 (2008 (restated): $193,176,000)
which has been dealt with in the financial statements of the Company
(note 28(a)).

RARVERFE AELGREBERIESE
265,411,000 (ZZEZENF (B EF)
193,176,0007T) B st AR R R B i3k 5

(MfEr28(a)) °

BERED

BRI R A A
“EEAEFH




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

11

12
(a)

BAAS AR AT

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (BRBEETIN  HRBEHE)
Other comprehensive income 11 HE2ZEIKE
Tax effects relating to each component of other Htt 2R BREHFINBESE
comprehensive income
2009 2008
“EEAE —EENE
Before- Before-
tax Tax Net-of-tax tax Tax  Net-of-tax
amount effect amount amount effect amount
3Nk ] BEY RE®EE KineE BEFE KkilkesE
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Fr Fr Fr Fr T T
(note 27 (note 27
(b)(i) (®10)
(KzF27 (Bt 5527
(b)(i)) IO}
Exchange differences MEHERE
on translation of:
— financial statements ~ — BREFINIE R A
of subsidiaries BBmRMES
outside Hong Kong 2B ERE 76 — 76 14,706 — 14,706
— monetary items that ~ — BEAREE
form part of the RITB AR Z
net investment REMEKIEE
in subsidiaries FTEECER
outside Hong Kong =58 373 (37) 336 24,591 (5,984) 18,607
449 (37) 412 39,297 (5,984) 33,313
Actuarial gains and TE 1R AR INET 8
losses of defined ZIEE AT
benefit retirement plan REE 20,936 263 21,199 (35,643) (155) (35,798)
Other comprehensive Hin 2w
income 21,385 226 21,611 3,654 (6,139) (2,485)
Loss per share 12 BEER
Basic loss per share (@) BREXEHE
The calculation of basic loss per share is based on the loss attributable BRERNEBIBRBEAN T ERETEAIE
to equity shareholders of the Company of $334,856,000 (2008 (restated): 1l E518 ££334,856,000T (ZZEZENF (B
$259,907,000) and on 373,570,560 ordinary shares (2008: 373,570,560 &) 1 259,907,0007T) R A FERNE
ordinary shares), being the number of ordinary shares in issue #7.2373,570,5600% & i (Z T T )\F -
throughout the year. 373,570,5600% & @%) 5T E o
Diluted loss per share (b) BEZEBRER

(b)

The diluted loss per share is not presented as the Company does not
have dilutive potential ordinary shares for both years.

San Miguel Brewery Hong Kong Ltd.

Annual Report 2009
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

13

(a)

Segment reporting

The Group manages its businesses by geography. In a manner consistent
with the way in which information is reported internally to the Group'’s
most senior executive management for the purposes of resource
allocation and performance assessment, the Group has presented the
following two reportable segments:

— The Hong Kong operation mainly represents the manufacture
and distribution of own brewed and imported beer products in
Hong Kong and distribution of own brewed products overseas.
In 2008 and the first quarter of 2009, the Hong Kong operation
solely distributed imported beer products in Hong Kong as its
plant suspended production until April 2009.

— The mainland China operation mainly represents the
manufacture and distribution of own brewed beer products in
the Southern part of the PRC. The mainland China operation
also supplied beer products to the Hong Kong operation in 2008
and until late 2009.

All of the Group's turnover is generated from the manufacture and
distribution of bottled, canned and draught beers.

Segment results, assets and liabilities

For the purposes of assessing segment performance and allocating
resources between segments, the Group’s senior executive
management monitors the results, assets and liabilities attributable to
each reportable segment on the following bases:

Segment assets include all tangible assets, intangible assets and current
assets. Segment liabilities include trade creditors and accruals
attributable to the manufacture and distribution activities of the
individual segments, bank loans and retirement benefit liabilities
managed directly by the segment and current liabilities with the
exception of deferred tax liabilities.

The measure used for reportable segment profit or loss is profit/(loss)
before taxation. Taxation charge/(credit) is not allocated to reportable
segments. Inter-segment sales are priced at cost plus profit margin.

The accounting policies of the reportable segments are the same as
the Group’s accounting policies described in note 1.

13

(a)

B B R AR Y R

(B SHERI - RABESE)

SHEHER

AEBREERHER - RENIZ R
BERRAEBREETHRERABMES
REREFHRREB % AEECE
HBTIIMERT2HDE -

— EREBIZEEBFAHERD

fHE SO 2 BEERR
REBIDHE GBEZEHE
me ARBEMEREE 2T
NEMA - BRZZFZNFRZ
ZTNEEFTHHE  EFENH
EORRERREANETRE

=]

B A3t 3 75 = B AR Bl A
HERDHEBESBREZEHE

TEN\FREZ-FT

AEBzE2XB2MRARERDHE
£ BERBEEE -

THRE  BERARE

SIHESBEREHEDBER - AEH
ZBETHREBAB DR TERERS
AT2W|A G2 EE  BERARE :

DHEEBEMBEEE  BVEER
MBEE - nHABRES D HRERS
HEBRANENEZRBRIZER -
DREHKERNRITERLERENEE
R RBBIE - ERENIAA ERRID o

AEATERBVNRBEMRBZTES
BATEA, (B518) - AEBMG, GTA)
WREWRAEERATEHRNE - N El2M
B 3HE R AR A IS BR A B EE(E -

PHANZ R BHERRAAREY &3
Bk (AW EET AT — 35 -

EBENRBHAR AR
—EENFER




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS | Bf#&sR®MIzE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (BB B ERI - RBEERTHE)
13 Segment reporting (Continued) 13 SBREEHR®
(@) Segment results, assets and liabilities (Continued) (@) PXEFE EEREE®

HE_TZNEFR-_ZTTN\F+_A=7
—HIF - FERETFAEESRSETHRE
BABUDEERNMTESHEREZER

Information regarding the Group's reportable segments as provided to
the Group’s most senior executive management for the purposes of
resource allocation and assessment of segment performance for the

years ended 31 December 2009 and 2008 is set out below: AT -
Hong Kong Mainland China Total
E PER &g
2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008
k4 -2 ZZTNE “EENE ZEENF ZEENE ZEENF
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
T T Fr i T Fr
(restated) (restated) (restated)
(BE7) (BE5) (BE5)
Revenue from external customers  SMRE P YA 416,478 379,282 280,346 374,093 696,824 753,375
Inter-segment revenue DEEURA — - 84,581 141,329 84,581 141,329
Reportable segment revenue EFEHRABHA 416,478 379,282 364,927 515,422 781,405 894,704
Reportable segment profit/ ~ AFERHRAPLE
(loss) from operations 25/ (F#) 69,777 142,693 (415,101) (458,915) (345,324) (316,222)
Interest income from bank BOFFHE
deposits WA 1,227 5,356 1,722 4,104 2,949 9,460
Interest expenses on bank loans  R{TERF EF T — (524) (10,915) (14,215) (10,915) (14,739)
Depreciation and amortisation FRFE
for the year REH (34,475) (33,152) (30,500) (42,235) (64,975) (75,387)
(Impairment losses)/reversal (e’ /HE
of impairment losses on BEDE
— non-current assets —FRPEE (11,000) (10,992) (291,293) (280,967) (302,293) (291,959)
— trade receivables —ERESEE 664 (3,414) 131 425 795 (2,989)
Reportable segment assets ~ AFERAPEE 1,520,583 1,530,831 482,199 824,628 2,002,782 2,355,459
Additions to non-current FRFERE
segment assets during NHEE
the year #1m 3,239 1,861 50,219 186,978 53,458 188,839
Non-current assets held BIELENERE
for sale EE 6,997 — - — 6,997 -
Reportable segment liabilities ZF2H2HEE 82,656 122,850 737,960 726,516 820,616 849,366

San Miguel Brewery Hong Kong Ltd.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS |

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

13 Segment reporting (Continued) 13 SBREEHR®
(b) Reconciliation of reportable segment revenue, profit (b) ZEFE2HMIBUWA - BF - BER
or loss, assets and liabilities BEZHE
2009 2008
—EThF —TENF
$'000 $'000
Fr Fit
(restated)
(BE7])
Revenue I ON
Reportable segment revenue AT 2P EHA 781,405 894,704
Elimination of inter-segment revenue DEZ F'EJ LI&U\%&% (84,581) (141,329)
Consolidated turnover REEHERE 696,824 753,375
Loss BB
Reportable segment loss from operations ATEWMHELEBE (345,324) (316,222)
Elimination of inter-segment profits pal= A PRIk € = (470)
Reportable segment loss derived from Group'’s REIINREE
external customers and consolidated loss ZATEHn N EE
before taxation RiraBRBAEIE (345,324) (316,692)
Assets EE
Reportable segment assets BATERDIEE 2,002,782 2,355,459
Elimination of inter-segment receivables "*BZF'EJTH&EEIE%S(% (379,924) (387,533)
Consolidated total assets RAEREE 1,622,858 1,967,926
Liabilities a&
Reportable segment liabilities ATERHIEE 820,616 849,366
Elimination of inter-segment payables PEZ FEEJFEH AR IE A (379,924) (387,533)
440,692 461,833
Deferred tax liabilities BEEBIBEBE 12,682 15,168
Consolidated total liabilities o =L 453,374 477,001
EBENEERER AT

“EEAEFH
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Uik gl R

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (BB B ERI - RBEERTHE)
13 Segment reporting (Continued) 13 SBREEHR®
(c) Geographic information (c) HEESR
The following table sets out information about the geographic location TREVNEEASEETEEE BEAE
of the Group's fixed assets, intangible assets and other tangible assets REMEREE ([HEEFERBEE]) 2
(“specified non-current assets”). The geographic location of the specified BUEER - EEIFRBEE 2 HIEME
non-current assets is based on the physical location of the assets, in EREBEECZERNE WBEEEER
the case of fixed assets and other tangible assets and, the location of HEMmBEREE) RESIBREMEE &8
the operation to which they are allocated, in the case of intangible 25 (HBEFEE) ME °
assets.
Specified non-current assets
BEXRRBEE
2009 2008
—ZZAE T N\F
$'000 $'000
I T
Hong Kong N 829,633 860,853
Mainland China A At 293,252 588,622
1,122,885 1,449,475
(d) Major customers d EEF

In 2009, the revenue from the Group's largest customer and five largest
customers amounted to 17% (2008: 18%) and 52% (2008: 50%) of the
Group's total revenue respectively.

Details of concentration of credit risk arising from these customers are
set out in note 29(a).

RIZETNF REAKEEGARFLE
ARBEFHRA DRI AN LB BN A B
7% (ZZZ)\F : 18%) &52% (—ZZ )N\
F 1 50%) °

REZFEP ZFAMBEERBI LM
29(a) °

San Miguel Brewery Hong Kong Ltd.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (BREHBETRI  IRBEHE
14 Fixed assets 14 BEEEE
(@ The Group (a) *&£m
Property, plant and equipment
' Interests in
leasehold
land held
Land and Machinery, for own
buildings equipment, use under
held for furniture Motor Construction Investment operating Total
own use and fixtures vehicles in progress Sub-total properties leases fixed assets
EEERET
BRLH B 2 HRAMSEN
kEE GRRER EL] ERIR &t RENE HELbER BiETEE
$000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $000 $000
i T i r i i T T
Cost: A%
At 1 January 2008 R=FE\§-F-A 912,936 1,444,194 19,185 30,050 2,406,365 118,946 116,769 2,642,080
Exchange adjustments EXiE 21,304 28,058 872 1851 52,085 - 2,798 5,883
Additions RE 4,083 19,023 90 148,737 171,933 124 — 172,057
Transfer from construction in progress BABERTHE 2454 444 289 (7,185) - - - -
Reclassification o} 2714 (2,714) - - - - - -
Disposals L& (2,041) (11,688) (3,350) - (17,079) — - (17,079)
@SLDec_emgerg)OS_ o _Z@E??/\ftiﬂ_itfﬁ o 9_41,4_50_ o 1&8@15_ o _17_,086_ o _W7_3,45_3 o _2,(13,3_04_ o lW9E70_ o _119_,567_ o _2,852,9@
Accumulated amortisation, Ziths
depreciation and FER
impairment losses: HEEE:
At 1 January 2008 R=FE\5-F-A 297,746 764,607 15,864 - 1078217 31412 35,541 1,145,170
Exchange adjustments EXiE 5293 10257 695 - 16,245 - 681 16,926
Charge for the year (note 6(c) ERRT (o) 18,214 3,33 1218 - 55,764 2219 2159 60,442
Impairment losses (note 5) HESE (D) 90,760 104,300 523 56,987 252570 - 1,714 264,281
Written back on disposals HERE (2,041) (9,242) (3,159) - (14,442) - - (14,442)
At1Decomber2008  RCEEAFTCAST-RE Mg ek BM S IR B ¥ 10
Net book value: REFE:
At 31 December 2008 RZFENFT-A=1-A 531478 575,061 1,945 116,466 1,224.950 85,439 69,172 1,379,561
Cost: A
At 1 January 2009 RZEENE-F-B 941,450 1,481,315 17,086 173,453 2,613,304 119,070 119,567 2,851,941
Exchange adjustments 35 595 846 20 276 1731 - 75 1,812
Additions RE 334 4,445 1m 38,357 43247 254 - 43,501
Transfer from construction in progress EEAEETE 40,130 171,811 - (211,941) - - - -
Disposals & (8,435) (21,188) (899) = (30,522) = = (30,522)
Reallocation of land and buildings T REEER (2,020) - - - (2,020) 2,020 - -
AGTDecerber 2009 RCEEASTCAST-R 9084 16229 16318 M5 265746 134 19602 286673
Accumulated amortisation, £ty
depreciation and FER
impairment losses: HEEE:
At 1 January 2009 R 409,972 906,254 15,141 56,987 1,388,354 33,631 50,395 1,472,380
Exchange adjustments Eiig 301 515 18 9 925 - 38 963
Charge for the year (note 6(c)) R (Hte() 15,472 34,59 649 - 50,717 2,210 2,217 55,204
Impairment losses (note 5) HESS () 102,231 157,305 416 48 260,000 - 11,200 271,200
Transfer from construction in progress BABERTE 10,609 46,421 - (57,030) - - - -
Written back on disposals HERE (6,600) (12,714) (899) - (20,213) - — (20,213)
Reallocation of land and buildings T REEER (358) - - - (358) 358 - -
ageeniedy  RSEASUASIOR UG AR S % L w6 sk
Net book value: FESE:
At 31 December 2009 RZFENETZA=T-H 440,427 504,852 993 49 946,321 85,085 55,792 1,087,198
BBE NG BEAR A A
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS | BA#&3RZRMI=T

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (BRBBERIN - DB E)
14 Fixed assets (Continued) 14 EBETEEE ®
(b) The Company (b)y ZAAF
Interests in
Property, plant and equipment leasehold
N% - BERRE land held
Land and Machinery, for own
buildings equipment, use under
held for furniture Motor operating Total
own use and fixtures vehicles Sub-total leases fixed assets
ERERET
BALH  HE RE BRAMEEN
REE BRRER 1] & HEI#ER AHETEE
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $000
i i i 7 i i
Cost: B
At 1 January 2008 RZEEN\§-A—-H 493,530 960,315 5161 1,459,006 74,134 1,533,140
Additions NE 218 1,423 — 1,641 - 1,641
Disposals ek — (4,344) (491) (4,835) — (4,835)
At 31 December 2008 RZFFNETZA=1—H 193,748 957,394 4,670 1,455,812 74,134 1,529,946

Accumulated amortisation, ~ Zit##

depreciation and fER

impairment losses: HEER:
At 1 January 2008 RZEEN\§-A—-H 202,658 577,361 4,905 784,924 25,310 810,234
Charge for the year FREY 7,661 19,450 193 27,304 1,558 28,362
Written back on disposals HEEE — 4,176) (490) (4,666) - (4,666)
MdDeente a8 RTEEAGITASICE | M039 SN 48 WIS Mg B
Net book value: FEFE:
At 31 December 2008 RZEENE+-F=1-H 283,429 364,759 62 648,250 47,266 695,516
Cost: 7
A1 January 2009 R-EENE-A-F 493,748 957,394 4,670 1,455,812 74,134 1,529,946
Additions NE 145 2,540 1M 2,796 = 2,796
Disposals e - (1,938) (64) (2,002) - (2,002)
ét 3:1 @cgmtzergOQS’ o Eﬁ;?ﬁ?iﬁﬂ‘})ﬁ %+r @ 493,893 957,996 4,717 1,456,606 74,134 1,530,740
Accumulated amortisation, ~ Zit##

depreciation and fER

impairment losses: HEER:
At 1 January 2009 RZEENE-A-H 210,319 592,635 4,608 807,562 26,868 834,430
Charge for the year FREY 7713 20,798 100 28,611 1,558 30,169
Written back on disposals HEEE - (1,930) (64) (1,994) - (1,994)
/}t 3J l{ecgm@ergO@ o Eﬁgg?@fftiﬁijrj @ 218,032 611,503 4,644 834,179 28,426 862,605
Net book value: FEFE:
At 31 December 2009 RIBENETZA=T-H 275,861 346,493 73 622,427 45,708 668,135
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS | Bf#&3RERMIE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (BREBERI - IRBEETE)
14 Fixed assets (Continued) 14 BEEEE®
(c) The analysis of net book value of propertiesis as (c) THEEFEZIFAOT :
follows:
The Group The Company
REE F NN
2009 2008 2009 2008
—EEAE —EENF —EEAF == AN:S
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Fr FIT Frx T
Medium term leases FEIHE i
— in Hong Kong — BB 478,036 491,001 321,569 330,695
— outside Hong Kong — BBLIN 103,268 195,088 — —
581,304 686,089 321,569 330,695
Representing: DT
Land and buildings held BRALTHEEE
for own use 440,427 531,478 275,861 283,429
Investment properties wEYE 85,085 85,439 — —
Interests in leasehold TREHETER
land held for own use mFFEREE
under operating leases TS 55,792 69,172 45,708 47,266
581,304 686,089 321,569 330,695
(d) Fixed assets leased out under operating leases (d REHETZERAEEE

(e)

The Group leases out investment properties under operating leases.
The leases typically run for an initial period of two to three years, with
an option to renew the lease after that date at which time all terms are
renegotiated. None of the leases includes contingent rentals.

The Group's total future minimum lease payments under non-
cancellable operating leases are receivable as follows:

AEBRBLEHERREYEHME -
MFER—RB_E=F  ADEERIHA
RBFTHA - ERASERE B IERK -
BRI EERAER -

AREBERET A ML LEE MBS Z R
REERBEWT

2009 2008

ZEENF ZTEENF

$'000 $'000

Fr T

Within 1 year —FR 6,234 4,588
After 1 year but within 5 years —FEBEREAFERN 4,404 4,525
10,638 9,113

During the year, certain land and buildings held for own use were leased
out to third parties for rental income. In accordance with HKAS 16,
Property, plant and equipment and HKAS 40, Investment property, the
related portion of property was transferred from land and buildings
held for own use to investment properties at the carrying amount on
the date of transfer.

(e)

RAFER  FTERLREEERET
F=NNEBES WA - RIFFBGEE
RIE165% [W% - a5 Rakte) RBRAB G
EAFA0 [REY X - HEMEBLLE
REBEAEERERER LM EEE
HRIREME -

EBENRBHAR AR
—EENFER




BAAS AR AT

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (BB B ERI - RBEERTHE)
14 Fixed assets (Continued) 14 BEEEE®
(f)  The fair value of the investment properties at 31 December 2009 is  (f)  ®REWER -_ZTAEF+— A *-1— Hz
$115,220,000 (2008: $95,090,000), which are valued on an open market TZEE 115, 220 000TT (ZZEZE/)\F -
basis assuming sale with existing tenancies by using the investment 95,090 00075) NHETMEAEAELF
method and otherwise with vacant possession by using the sales fd o W iﬁﬁ%ﬁi’]ﬁﬁﬁﬁiﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂmﬁﬁ&ﬁ
comparison approach. The valuation was carried out by an independent FETHE XX EBRLEEMRRM
firm of surveyors, LCH (Asia-Pacific) Surveyors Limited, who have among HAEELBORETHE - HEDHE
their staff Members of the Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors with recent ABETRISITARMARARIET - A
experience in the location and category of property being valued. BEBREEBNEMBENEESE £
FritEREEMHE E%IJE:E%)? TSR -
15 Intangible assets 15 EEEE
The Group The Company
15E V|
Club Club
Trademarks debentures Total Trademarks debentures Total
HE it L & &t HE efiERR &%
$'000 $°000 $'000 $/000 $'000 $'000
T T T fr T r
Cost: BE:

t 1 January 2008 RZZZN\E-F-A 39,116 6,185 45,301 39,116 5,031 44,147
Exchange adjustments EX A2 - 7 7 - - -
A 31 Dgcembgrzpog 77777 R 773 Eﬁjr 7ﬂ7t ﬁ o }9,116 77777 6,}561 o 7453772 - §9,1j6 77777 5931 o 74@141
Accumulated amortisation ZitBHR

and impairment losses: HEFE !
£ 1 January 2008 RZBE\5-F-A 5,658 - 5,658 5,658 - 5,658
Impairment losses (note 5) BESE (D) 10992 - 10992 10,992 - 10992
At3iDecember2008 KX ?ﬁ Eﬁj ,ﬂ,t B e — e a0 - 16,630
Net book value: REFE:

At 31 December 2008 RZBENETA=1-A 2,466 6,25 2,722 2,466 5,031 27,497
Cost: BE:

t 1 January 2009 R-EENE-F-H 39,116 6,256 45,372 39,116 5,031 44,147
Exchange adjustments ERE - 2 2 - - -
A3iDecember2009  REERARTSASTCR O WME 6258 44 H(me W MW
Accumulated amortisation ZitBHR

and impairment losses: HEFE
t 1 January 2009 R-EENE-F-H 16,650 - 16,650 16,650 - 16,650
Impairment losses (note 5) HESE (HED) 11,000 602 11,602 11,000 - 11,000
At31December 2009 RFFAFTIAST-A a0 602 28252 10 - %0
Net book value: REFE:

31 December 2009 RZEENETZA=1-H 11,466 5,656 17,122 11,466 5,031 16,497
Trademarks relate to products sold in the mainland China and are BEERFRAELENERNESEEEA
regarded as having indefinite useful lives because the trademarked REWMERMGAEN  ARNEEREHA
products are expected to generate net cash inflows to the Group EREREFRAR/REEESLFREN
indefinitely. Ao
During the year, an impairment loss of $11,000,000 (2008: $10,992,000) RAFE  ARAREXEBES
has been made for trademarks by both the Company and the Group, 11,000,0007T (ZZFZ )\ : 10,992,000
further details are set out in note 5. J0) MRS IR R EEE - S B TSRS ©
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (BREBERI - IRBEETE)

16 Investments in subsidiaries 16 MMEBLAFES
The Company
VYN

2009 2008
—EEAE —ETNF
$'000 $'000
Ft Fx
Unlisted investments, at cost JE TR (RAAR) 603,249 603,249
Amounts due from subsidiaries JiE YT /B8 A R BR 1B 788,545 781,290
1,391,794 1,384,539
Less: Impairment losses B BB (651,323) (392,978)
740,471 991,561

Amounts due from subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-free and have
no fixed repayment terms. The entire balance is expected to be
recovered after more than one year.

As detailed in note 5, impairment losses have been recognised during
the year in respect of the non-current assets associated with the Group'’s
mainland China operations as a result of a decline in the recoverable
amount of these assets below their carrying amount. Consequently,
the directors concluded that there is an impairment of the Company’s
investment in subsidiaries and an additional impairment loss of
$258,345,000 (2008: $183,000,000) has been recognised during the year.

The following list contains the particulars of all the subsidiaries of the

Company:

Name of company

DNEER

Place of

incorporation/

operation
i
B B

Issued share

capital/registered

capital
SRITRE
HMER

Company

YR A RIARIRIG REIER - B2
BEEERY - AHEMERNBE—F
L

IRIRM LSRR - i B AR ER (B rp
REXBHBNIERBEE 2 T @ 25
THRMERZEFEENREE  BEEE
RAFEER - Qi EFREARTE
MBARMREBMAE  MRE/BE
258,345,0007T (ZZZJ\£ : 183,000,000
TO) RAFEHER ©

TRENARRARABEMBARIER :

Proportion of
ownership
interest held by
Subsidiary
FERET DL
AN Bt 8 2 A

Principal
activity

ETREHR

Best Investments
International Inc.

Guangzhou San
Miguel Brewery
Company Limited
(note (i)

&N 2B IR A R

(PR RE ()

Hongkong Brewery
Limited

British Virgin
Islands

RBRARS

PRC

HE

Hong Kong

B

50,000

ordinary shares
of US$1 each
50,000/%
BRREE
1R AR

60,000,000
preference shares
of US$1 each
60,000,000/%
FRREE
122 BER

Registered capital:
US$36,507,000

AMER
36,507,000%% 7T

100

ordinary shares
of $1 each
1008%
BkHEE

1T BBk

100% — Investment

holding
wE

100% —

Distribution
of beer

— 70%

HEE
100% — Dormant

EEax

EBENRBHAR AR
—EENFER
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

16

Investments in subsidiaries (Continued)

(=%

Uik gl R

RSN - BB H)

16 MEBLATESR ®

Proportion of

Place of Issued share ownership
incorporation/ capital/registered interest held by Principal
Name of company operation capital Company Subsidiary activity
MR BRITRE FERETDLL
RE BB 4 i B HEMER AT Ft B A F FEEK
Ravelin Limited Hong Kong 10,000,000 100% — Property
ordinary shares holding
of $1 each
B 10,000,000/% HEME
BREE
Para-sili
San Miguel Hong Kong 18,000 92.989% — Investment
(Guangdong) class "A” shares holding
Limited of US$500 each
ENE(ER) B 18,000% ®E R
BRAA BREE
5003 7T Z (A%
1,000 100% —
class “B” shares
of $1 each
1,0000%
BkHEHE
172 (B)#X
San Miguel PRC Registered capital: — 100% Manufacture
(Guangdong) US$39,933,000 and sale of
Brewery beer
Company Limited
(note (ii)
EN(ER)EBERAA B AfER FERL %
=) 39,933,000% 7T 8555 18
San Miguel Shunde Hong Kong 200,000 92% — Investment
Holdings Limited ordinary shares holding
of $10 each
BE 200,000/% WEER
FREE
107t 2 & i AR
Notes: FfIaE -

(i) Guangzhou San Miguel Brewery Company Limited (“GSMB”) is an equity
joint venture formed between the Company’s subsidiary, San Miguel
(Guangdong) Limited, and Guangzhou Brewery. According to the joint
venture agreement, GSMB has an operating period of 30 years expiring

on 29 November 2020.

(ii) San Miguel (Guangdong) Brewery Company Limited is a wholly-foreign
owned enterprise with an operating period of 50 years expiring on 4

August 2042.

San Miguel Brewery Hong Kong Ltd.
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17

B B R AR Y R

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (BREBERI - IRBEETE)
Other tangible assets 17 HthEREE
Other tangible assets represent returnable bottles and crates used by HEMBEREAEY ARNEENF RESKAE
the Group's operations in the mainland China. RzEREZRBERBAENEE -
The Group
AEE
2009 2008
—EEhEF ZTEENF
$'000 $'000
Fr Tt
Cost: Yo%
At 1 January n—A—H 95,770 89,790
Exchange adjustments P& 3 3 & 154 5,899
Additions NE 9,957 16,782
Disposals HE (11,002) (16,701)
At31December ] R+=A=+—-RH 2879 95,770
Accumulated amortisation RitBHERAE
and impairment losses: BB

At 1 January n—A—H 54,578 36,626
Exchange adjustments P& 3 3 & 92 2,624
Charge for the year (note 6(c)) FARFRX (Hzte(c) 9,771 14,945
Impairment losses (note 5) B E &8 (M5ES) 19,491 11,639
Written back on disposals & & E (7,618) (11,256)
At31December ] I e = 76,314 54,578
Net book value: AR ] F
At 31 December R+Z—A=+—H 18,565 41,192
Almost all bottled beer sold in the mainland China are under a returnable RABIFTHE 2 8RR RS E gL o
bottles arrangement. The bottles and crates are expected to have useful BEBEZAIGCAEFH A ZF R+
lives of two years and seven years respectively. F o
Non-current assets held for sale 18 HHEHENFREDHEE

18

Non-current assets held for sale are two properties located in Hong
Kong, which were transferred from a former debtor to the Company
for debt settlement during the year. As the Company acquired these
properties exclusively with a view to their subsequent disposal, the
Company classified these properties as held for sale upon acquisition,
at fair value less costs to sell which amounted to $6,997,000.

Subsequent to the balance sheet date, the Company sold these
properties to independent third parties at a consideration higher than
the carrying amount.

BIEREZERBEEAMBNRESZ
WE  BRWEDNFRNEZEEAQR—
HZRIEBA - NBEEEEE - HRARA
RERZEME IR —BENRREBEH
YMERE  MARBRESZEMERE
ZEMERRAABERELEXAT B
{EH & 3£ 6,997,0007T °

REEREK  AEEZSREEEZR
B HEENEHERBLE=T7 -

EBENRBHAR AR
—EENFER




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS | Bf#&sR®MIzE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (BB B ERI - RBEERTHE)
19 Inventories 19 EE
The Group The Company
rEE KAF
2009 2008 2009 2008
—EBEThE —EZT)N\F —EZhEF ZEENF
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Fx T F T
Products in hand and BEEMK
in process R 30,231 34,474 25,604 14,033
Materials and supplies YKL & it e 30,442 30,500 13,822 —
60,673 64,974 39,426 14,033
The analysis of the amount of inventories recognised as an expense is ERRAERIZ2FESBEATOT
as follows:
The Group
AEE
2009 2008
—EZAE —FEENF
$'000 $'000
Fr T
Carrying amount of inventories sold HEFER@E 330,210 320,320
Write down of inventories 15 & MO 500 —
Total (note 6(c)) 4858 (FsE6(0)) 330,710 320,320
20 Trade and other receivables 20 BB RHEMIRE
The Group
rEH
At 31 December At 31 December At 1 January
2009 2008 2008
R-ZBEBEAE R_ZTNF RIZZTNF
+=—A=+—-8 +=—A=+—H —R—H
$'000 $'000 $'000
F Tt Tt
(restated) (restated)
(BEA) (BEA)
Trade receivables JEWE HERIE 75,493 116,092 115,062
Less: Allowance for doubtful B RIBEREE
debts (note 20(b)) (K 7E20(0)) (9,936) (35,289) (32,816)
65,557 80,803 82,246
Other debtors, deposits and HEMBEUWER - e
prepayments SEENE S 8,384 17,004 41,177
73,941 97,807 123,423
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS | BA#&sR=®MizE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (BB HEETRIN - HIREETE)
20 Trade and other receivables (continued) 20 BERRSREMIRER®
The Company
KA F]
At 31 December At 31 December At 1 January
2009 2008 2008
R=ZBZBEAE HR_ZZN\F RIZZNF
+=—A=+—-8 +=A=+—H —H—H
$'000 $'000 $'000
F Tt T+
(restated) (restated)
(BEEF)) (BEE5))
Trade receivables e E 5 RIE 56,999 94,378 89,768
Less: Allowance for doubtful W RIBIREE
debts (note 20(b)) (B 3E20(b)) (486) (25,616) (23,149)
56,513 68,762 66,619
Other debtors, deposits and Ha R -« &
prepayments SEUNE 4,081 4,642 12,471
60,594 73,404 79,090
The amount of the Group’s and the Company’s deposits and REBERAQGEFZR—FE A E K
prepayments expected to be recovered or recognised as expenses after BRAZHNES NENRBSEI A
more than one year is $988,000 (31 December 2008: $1,108,000; 1 988,0007C (ZEZENF+_A=+—8:
January 2008: $1,113,000) and $553,000 (31 December 2008: $553,000; 1,108,000 : —FEEFENF—H—H :
1 January 2008: $533,000) respectively. All of the other trade receivables, 1,113,0007T) } 553,000 (ZZEZ N\F+
other debtors, deposits and prepayment are expected to be recovered —A=+—H : 553,000t i —EZTN\F
or recognised as expense within one year. —HA—H :553,0007T) ° FTAEMmpENRE

SRR EAMEWER - e RIEN AR
FAE-FATKEHIEER -

The Group and the Company hold the following collateral over trade REBERRNNRIEASE BBEKRE HRE
receivables at the balance sheet date: BEUTHEMRR
The Group The Company
KEE KAT
At At At At At At
31 December 31 December 1 January 31 December 31 December 1 January
2009 2008 2008 2009 2008 2008
R=BZhE HNZTTN\F R-ZZERE RZITIN\F
+=A +ZR RITENF +=8 +ZA RIZENF
== =t+-H —A-H == =t+-H —F—H
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Fr Fr T Tr i T
Buildings mE 14,164 16,697 17,029 10,870 16,470 16,340
Cash deposits ReFR 11,788 12,362 13,236 727 1,271 1,383
Bank guarantees FITER 900 900 1,800 900 900 1,800
Cash deposits disclosed above, note 20(b) and note 20(c) are included BAE ~ Fi5E20(0) M 5E20(0) 7R ER £ 75
in the Group’s and the Company’s other creditors and accrued charges FEINAREERARE BN ZR—FE
expected to be settled after more than one year, as disclosed in note SRR E T BRIE - AT FE2445 5 -
24.
EBENLERAERR A

“EEAEFH
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (BRBBERIN - DB E)

20 Trade and other receivables (continued) 20 BERRSREMIRR®

(a) Ageing analysis (@) BREDHT
The ageing of trade receivables (net of allowance for doubtful debts) JEUE 5 8RTE (MR REREE) REER
as of the balance sheet date is as follows: ZHRERMT

The Group The Company
by -] ARF
At At At At At At
31 December 31 December 1January 31 December 31 December 1 January
2009 2008 2008 2009 2008 2008
R-BERE RZTTN\F R-ZEELE R-ZTT\F
+=A TZA RIZENF +=A TZA RIBTNE
Er=1 =f+—A —A—H Er=lg =f+—A —H—H
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Tr T i Tr i T
Current REE 53,645 58,968 67,840 46,856 49,926 55,738
Less than 1 month BHALH
past due —fEA 8,603 11,302 722 8,511 11,166 —
1t0 3 months BHEAEA
past due —2={8A 1,205 1,279 926 1,146 1,010 —
More than 3 months BHAA
but less than 12 “fEAZE
months past due —FR 190 1,034 521 — 578 461
More than 12 BHASH
months past due —F 1,914 8,220 12,237 — 6,082 10,420
65,557 80,803 82,246 56,513 68,762 66,619
The Group's credit policy is set out in note 29(a). ANEE 2 EEBERSNRHE29@0)

(b) Impairment of trade receivables (b) EWEZREZREESE
Impairment losses in respect of trade receivables are recorded using EHARKE FRENRESESBEGBR
an allowance account unless the Group is satisfied that recovery of 8% - MRIFASEEEMEIRE AR E
the amount is remote, in which case the impairment loss is written off K)o FEULIER T - BIEBEEEREIER
against trade receivables directly (see note 1()()). B ZEREH M CEFE1G)0) -

The movement in the allowance for doubtful debts during the year is FARERBENESHOT
as follows:
The Group The Company
by -] ARF
At At At At At At
31 December 31 December 1January 31 December 31 December 1 January
2009 2008 2008 2009 2008 2008
R-BERE RZTTN\F R-ZEELE R-ZTT\F
+=A TZA RIZENF +=A TR RIBTNE
Er=1 =f+—A —A—H Er=lg =f+—A —H—H
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Tr i i Tr i T
At 1 January R—A—H 35,289 32,816 27,495 25,616 23,149 17,189
Exchange adjustments AR 16 594 703 — — -
Impairment loss REBE
recognised R 522 3,567 6,304 500 3414 6,304
Impairment loss HEEE
written back j:4e (1,317) (578) (1,378) (1,164) — -
Uncollectible amounts A
written off &8 (24,574) (1,110) (308) (24,466) (947) (344)
At 31 December RTZA=+—H 9,936 35,289 32,816 486 25,616 23,149

San Miguel Brewery Hong Kong Ltd.
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20
(b)

(c)

B B R AR Y R

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (BREBERI - IRBEETE)
Trade and other receivables (Continued) 20 BERRSREMBE @
Impairment of trade receivables (Continued) (b) BELI&EE RIBZRERBE(E
At 31 December 2009, the Group’s and the Company’s trade receivables ZEZNF+A=+T—H KEHK
of $13,193,000 (31 December 2008: $46,589,000; 1 January 2008: ZK 7H1ﬁ5451§%5515ﬁ[?13,193,000ﬁ
$46,648,000) and $1,709,000 (31 December 2008: $34,582,000; 1 January (Z == N NF+_A=+—8H :
2008: $34,096,000) respectively were individually determined to be 46,589,000t : —EEN\F—F—H:
impaired. The individually impaired receivables were balances in 46,648,0007T) X1,709,0007T (ZZZF )\ F
disputes with customers or related to customers that were in financial +=—A=+—H : 34,582,000t : —ZEZ
difficulties and management assessed that only a portion of the NFE—H—H : 34,096,0007T) 1% @R F
receivables is expected to be recovered. Consequently, specific A o [ERIB R EEE A \MATHMAZ
allowances for doubtful debts of $9,936,000 (31 December 2008: +ERE# - mEEEEE - v e
$35,289,000; 1 January 2008: $32,816,000) and $486,000 (31 December TH A AU [E] - Eﬁ($$ BAMARQGF D RIHES
2008: $25,616,000; 1 January 2008: $23,149,000) were recognised by 9,936,000 (ZEZENF+ = H +—
the Group and the Company respectively. The Group and the Company H :35,289,000T i —EZEN\F—H—
hold the following collaterals over these balances: H : 32,816,0007T) X486,0007T (ZZEZEN
F+-_A=+—H 256160000 : —%
T )\F—HA—H :23,149,0007T) K R
B - NEE KRR AR L FE WA
BEERRET
The Group The Company
KEE NG|
At At At At At At
31 December 31 December 1 January 31 December 31 December 1 January
2009 2008 2008 2009 2008 2008
R-ZBENE RIZTN\F RIBERE KRIZTTN\E
+=A TZR RIZEENE +=A TZR RIZEENF
Er=0 =+-H —A—A S =+-H —F—H
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
T T T T T T
Buildings E 568 6,847 9,304 — 6,620 8,660
Cash deposits BeRR 1,757 904 2,344 — — 300
Trade receivables that are not impaired () REEREEEZEKWESKRE
The ageing analysis of trade receivables that are neither individually BEEREEEZEWE 5RIBERE W
nor collectively considered to be impaired is as follows: N
The Group The Company
x5E b NG|
At At At At At At
31 December 31 December 1 January 31 December 31 December 1 January
2009 2008 2008 2009 2008 2008
R=ZBZENF KTT)\F R-BENE R-TTN\E
+=A +=-F RZIEENE +=A TZRA RIZEENE
S =+-H —H—H Sr=F =+-H —H—H
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Tr T T Tr T T
Neither past due nor REHRE
impaired B 52,674 57,320 66,590 46,401 48,677 55,672
Less than 1 month BEALR
past due —f@A 8,354 10,777 287 8,262 10,697 —
1to 3 months BHAAR
past due —2=f@A 686 690 858 627 422 —
More than 3 months BHAR
but less than 12 @Az
months past due —ER 190 457 60 — — —
More than 12 BEARER
months past due +ZEA 396 259 619 - - -
9,626 12,183 1,824 8,889 11,119 —
62,300 69,503 68,414 55,290 59,796 55,672
HBENEHBRBR QA

“EEAEFH
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

BAAS AR AT

(EREERIN  BIRBEEE)

20 Trade and other receivables (continued) 20 BERRSREMIRR®
(c) Trade receivables that are not impaired (Continued) () REEREEBEZEWESRE
(8)
Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate to a wide REEA R MER B2 BN E SRE - 95
range of customers for whom there was no recent history of default. IMENR B IR BN EHONES - FTUATE
B -

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate to a number of BEETERE Y ENE SEERS L

independent customers that have a good track record with the Group. BITEE M EREE AR o B AL

Based on past experience, management believes that no impairment B ARECEVESANNKE  SEE

allowance is necessary in respect of these balances as there has not MBI m /A Bt L SIE M L B E RIS

been a significant change in credit quality and the balances are still B ek ﬁfgﬂi\%my@ o KNEE R A

considered fully recoverable. The Group and the Company hold the ’&E%Mt)ﬁ%”&%ﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁﬂ? .
following collaterals over these balances:

The Group The Company
*5H NG|

At At At At At At

31 December 31 December 1 January 31 December 31 December 1 January

2009 2008 2008 2009 2008 2008

RZBEHRE RZZZN\F RZZZhE RZZZN\E

+=A TZA RIZENF +=A TZA RITINF

SS =+—H —HA—A Er=F =t+—H —HA—A

$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

Fr T T T T T

Cash deposits BHeRT - 349 315 — — -

21 Amounts due from/(to) holding companiesand 21 BKSEFRZEAFIRARBE

fellow subsidiaries ATFRE
Amounts due from/(to) holding companies and fellow subsidiaries are BrNFIE S FIBBRE SIERZATIN - JE
unsecured, interest-free and do not have fixed repayment terms except W sk E TR AR 2 B I [R) 2 T 8 R &) BRI 1S
for the following trade-related amounts which are repayable under mIEH REREEEEERR:
normal trade terms:
The Group The Company
rEH b N
2009 2008 2009 2008
—EEhE —ZTNF ZBBLE I N\F
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
P Ft SFoE T
Amounts due from holding Red /NS
companies and fellow M E RN B AT
subsidiaries BRI8 6,211 1,462 6,211 1,452
Amounts due to holding FERT IR A A
companies and fellow MERMB AT
subsidiaries BRIB (9,287) (1,839) (9,121) (558)
The trade-related balances are not past due as at 31 December 2008 BESGHE ETR_ETNFR_ZET
and 2009. NETZA=+—HBEREIH -
22 Pledged deposits and cash and cash 22 EAFR HeRERHASMREE
equivalents
Pledged deposits (a) EHRER
At 31 December 2009, $60,000,000 (2008: $Nil) is pledged to secure a RZZETNF+_A=+—08 " RITERX
banking facility, the details of which are set out in note 23. 60,000,0007T (ZZZENF : Tix) BER
WITEEMER TRT - FBEINRWE
23 °

San Miguel Brewery Hong Kong Ltd.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS |

B B R AR Y R

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (BREBERI - IRBEETE)
22 Pledged deposits and cash and cash 22 ERFR DEeR¥FABASEH
equivalents (continued) (#8)
(b) cash and cash equivalents (b) BEE&RZEFELER
The Group The Company
REE RKAF
2009 2008 2009 2008
—ETAF —EENF —EEAF == AN:S
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
T Fr T Fit
Deposits with banks RITHER 179,668 286,303 118 —
Cash at bank and in hand WITHEGE AR 106,234 60,134 22,545 10,869
285,902 346,437 22,663 10,869
(c) Reconciliation of loss before taxation to cash (c) BBRBAIGEFATACEEKR
generated from operations: ERA
2009 2008
—EENF —EENF
$'000 $'000
Fr Fit
(restated)
(B&E5)
Loss before taxation B EiRTEE (345,324) (316,692)
Adjustments for: M THNEEEL AR
— Amortisation of land lease premium — THE T FIE 2 8 2,217 2,459
— Amortisation of other tangible assets — Hib B EE 2 #H 9.771 14,945
— Depreciation of property, plant and equipment — 7% - #ERREBEZITE 50,717 55,764
— Depreciation of investment properties — REMEZINE 2,270 2,219
— Impairment loss on non-current assets — ERBEEZREEIE 302,293 291,959
— (Reversal of)/provision for impairment — EWE SREZRE
loss on trade receivables EiEz (B E) B (795) 2,989
— Interest expense — MEZH 10,915 14,739
— Interest income — FBEHRA (2,949) (9,460)
— Net loss on disposal of property, plant — HEME - BRERK
and equipment 2 FEE 6,570 375
— Net loss on disposal of other tangible assets — HEEMEREE 2 FEE 2,842 4,182
— Foreign exchange gains — SN i 2 B (2,933) (4,903)
Changes in working capital: EEERZEE
— Decrease/(increase) in inventories —TFEZRL 5 m) 4,301 (24,947)
— Decrease in trade and other receivables — B E S M EAMRE 2R D 23,971 22,515
— Decrease/(increase) in net amounts due — FEUIZERE A A
from holding companies and fellow PAEES ) MNGIE S
subsidiaries ZFERL () 2,008 (14,892)
— Increase in non-current assets held for sale — FHEHERERBEE 2 (6,997) —
— (Decrease)/increase in trade and other — ENB S REMBEE
payables 2GR /1 (58,630) 13,757
— Increase/(decrease) in retirement benefit — RKEMEE
liabilities Z¥m Gl 1,180 (6,423)
Cash generated from operations KEEBZREMA 1,427 48,586
BBE NG BEAR A A

“EEAEFH




BAAS AR AT

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (BB B ERI - RBEERTHE)
23 Bank loans 23 SHRITER
At 31 December 2009, the bank loans were repayable as follows: RIZEZNFF+ZA=+—0 ' RITEK
AR THIEAREE -
The Group The Company
KEH ¥ NN
2009 2008 2009 2008
—ETRE ZTINF —EEhE T N\F
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Fr FT P T
Within 1 year —FR 242,343 186,146 — —
At 31 December 2009, the bank loans were secured as follows: RZZTNF+ZA=+T—HEEANRE
TERWT :
The Group The Company
rEH ¥V
2009 2008 2009 2008
—E2EEhE —ZTNF ZBBLE I N\F
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
F T Fr Tt
Bank loans RITER
— secured — A 113,572 — — —
— unsecured — K 128,771 186,146 — —
242,343 186,146 — —
At 31 December 2009, one of the banking facilities of the Group was ZETNF+ZA=+—H AEEHN
secured by fixed deposits of $60,000,000 (2008: $Nil) (note 22(a)). Such E EP HIRTEEERATHER
banking facility amounted to $120,000,000 (2008: $Nil) and was utilised 60,000,0007C (ZZEZEN\F : To) (M5F
to the extent of $113,572,000 (2008: $Nil). 22(a)) ° #Z#R77{= EH ¥ 4120,000,0007T
(ZEZNF: TE) WEBRBEFH
113,572,000 (ZEZN\F : TJr) ©
All the bank loans are rolled-over every six months to one year (2008: FIBRITEFAEBNEAZ—FRRAE
every month) and bear interest at rates applicable to the roll-over period, WCCEZENE B  RZZEZNE+
which ranged from 1.69% to 6.08% as at 31 December 2009 (2008: 3.16% ZA=+—8  ERREFINEREST
t0 6.57%). R AE1.69%%6.08% (ZFZN\F : 3.16%
£6.57%) °
The Group's banking facilities are not subject to any covenants. REBNRITEEVEZNEE -
24 Trade and other payables 24 EFRBRSREMIEER
The Group The Company
rEE AT
2009 2008 2009 2008
—ZEHhE T NF ZZEBETAFE ZTIN\F
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
S FT Fr FT
Trade payables [EfE 5 R 48,508 97,335 38,572 47,893
Other creditors and Hpth pe BRI
accrued charges 119,959 134,050 11,961 18,556
168,467 231,385 50,533 66,449

The Group’s and the Company’s other creditors and accrued charges
included provision for advertising and promotion of $32,013,000 (2008:
$32,539,000) and $4,361,000 (2008: $3,884,000) respectively, and
payables for purchase of fixed assets of $30,542,000 (2008: $35,393,000)
and $Nil (2008: $Nil) respectively.

San Miguel Brewery Hong Kong Ltd.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

24

25

26
(a)

B B R AR Y R

(B SHERI - RABESE)

Trade and other payables (Continued) 24 BEARSREMER®
The amounts of the Group’s and the Company’s other creditors and AREBRANANRBEANRER —FRIHH
accrued charges expected to be settled after more than one year are E M EMBRIES R 412,702,000T (ZEF
$12,702,000 (2008: $12,362,000) and $727,000 (2008: $1,271,000) J\AF 1 12,362,0007T) &727,0007C (ZEF
respectively. All of the other trade and other payables are expected to N+ 1,271,0007T) © FiBEME 5 ER
be settled within one year. &ﬁ’r@ﬁ%ﬁﬂﬁlﬁ%ﬁ“ﬁﬁ—iﬁﬁiﬁ o
The ageing of trade payables as of the balance sheet date is as follows: ERESREREEB Z2RERNAT ¢
The Group The Company
rEE F NN
2009 2008 2009 2008
—ETAF —EENF —EEAF = AN:S
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Fr 7 T Tt
Due within 1 month or BIE A DR — @Ak
on demand B/\zzjiﬁﬂaia 46,559 96,594 36,709 47,629
Due after 1 month but within ~ ZIEiE A—1{E A &
3 months B=M@AR 1,863 459 1,863 166
Due after 3 months but within ~ SR A=18 A %
6 months B7RME AR 86 199 — 15
Due over 6 months EIEIR ANE A% — 83 — 83
48,508 97,335 38,572 47,893
Amounts due from/(to) subsidiaries 25 BESEFMAKMELFRIE
Amounts due from/(to) subsidiaries are unsecured and interest-free. FERMBARREAEERREE - IR
The balances included in current liabilities are trade-related, repayable BEEANREAZESHIE - ANEEAR
under normal trade terms and are due within one month at the balance B—EARNZRE SIERIAT - HRIER
sheet date. The balances included in non-current liabilities do not have FBEEANRETNREETER - Ml
fixed repayment terms but are not expected to be settled within one THEER—FREZN -
year.
Employee retirement benefits 26 EREBHEEF
Defined benefit retirement plan (@) EEFFEAGE

The Group operates a defined benefit retirement plan which covers
23% (2008: 25%) of the Group’s employees. The plan is administered by
an independent trustee, with the assets held separately from those of
the Group. The members’ benefits are determined based on the
employees’ final remuneration and length of service. Contributions to
the plan are made in accordance with the recommendations of an
independent actuary who values the retirement plan at regular intervals.
The latest actuarial valuation in this respect was carried out at 31
December 2007 by qualified staff of Watson Wyatt Hong Kong Limited,
who are members of the Society of Actuaries of Canada, using the
attained age method.

For the purposes of preparing these financial statements, an
independent actuarial valuation was carried out at 31 December 2009
by the above independent actuary following the methodology set out
in HKAS 19, Employee benefits.

REEBH% (ZET)N\F : 25%) 2 &
BIRMBEBEFERRETE - ZtEITE—
BRI EAANEE  BAEEZEESH
BRI - KERNDIZEEZ&ETS
RRBEHAE o T8l 2 HHRTRE—%
B EEA  EHER]  BEMTEHA
RIRETEIEL RS - MEm ARt E 2
BEIGE IR TS F+-A=+—H
# 17 © AWatson Wyatt Hong Kong
Limited AR 3ZF #k [E#E R AAEH B E T
& ERERENEABEMESNER
i%m E\ o

AN - FEERR B SN BB SR ERIE19
Sﬁfﬁﬁfmf/JZExfﬁA—v ﬂ¢+_ﬂ
=+ —BETE G UBIERRMS
]k o

BB ENRARERA A
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(i)

(iif)

Employee retirement benefits (continued)

Defined benefit retirement plan (Continued)
The amounts recognised in the balance sheets are as follows:

26
(a)

Uik gl R

(EREERIN  BIRBEEE)

EREBKEERN @

ERBEARKETE (8
REERBERER ZRENT ¢

The Group and the Company

AEEREAT
2009 2008
—RENEF —ET)NF
$'000 $'000
T T
Present value of funded obligations BEHETEHIERE 76,375 82,678
Fair value of plan assets FEIEECZARE (58,286) (44,833)
Retirement benefit liabilities RARBMNEE 18,089 37,845

A portion of the above liabilities is expected to be settled after more
than one year. However, it is not practicable to segregate this amount
from the amounts payable in the next twelve months, as the retirement
benefit payable to scheme members and future contributions to plan
assets will also depend on staff turnover and future changes in actuarial
assumptions.

Plan assets consist of the following:

(i)

LAt E ) B EFERHRBE —FRI -
AT - ARRIKEFIE T8I B 2 B 15K
R B EE 2 RRERBARTFIBERR
ZARRES - Bt NEE K% EREER
K+ —fEAZENZBRDFER -

AEEERRE

The Group and the Company

AEBRAAQT
2009 2008
—EEAE —EENF
$'000 $'000
SEow T
Mutual fund HAHES 57,937 43,488
Cash R 349 1,345
58,286 44,833

Movements in the present value of the defined benefit obligations:

i) EEENAE0RES

The Group and the Company

AEEREKAT
2009 2008
—RENE —ET)NF
$'000 $'000
Fr T
At 1 January wn—A—H 82,678 62,731
Benefits paid by the plan eIz B (2,238) (5,175)
Current service cost IR B AR 75 A AR 6,410 5,153
Interest cost FIE A 955 2,097
Actuarial (gains)/losses BE (&) BE (11,430) 17,872
At 31 December ®R+=—RAR=+—H 76,375 82,678

San Miguel Brewery Hong Kong Ltd.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS |

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

26 Employee retirement benefits (continued) 26 EREHEEF »
(a) Defined benefit retirement plan (Continued) (a) TEFETAERMKEE (&
(ivy  Movements in plan assets: vy, FEEEZZF:

The Group and the Company

(Vi)

AEEREAR
2009 2008
—EEhF —ZEENF
$'000 $'000
Fr Tt

At 1 January n—HA—H 44,833 54,106
Contributions paid to the plan by the employer A 2 R 3,695 9,981
Benefits paid by the plan TR 2R F (2,238) (5,175)
Actuarial expected return on plan assets EEECEERAE R 2,490 3,692
Actuarial gains/(losses) BEAaF (EE) 9,506 (17,771)
At 31 December BR+=-—A=+—8H 58,286 44,833

The Group expects to pay $3,730,000 (2008: $3,860,000) in contributions
to the defined benefit retirement plan in the following year.

Expense recognised in the consolidated income statement is as follows:

(v)

SEGEERR—FFRERBMENRGT S
2 113,730,0007T (ZZZ \4F : 3,860,000

TO R —RRELER -

REFAWERER ZFMT ¢

2009 2008
—EZThEF —EENF
$'000 $'000
Fr Tt
Current service cost IR 05 AR 75 AR AR 6,410 5,153
Interest cost I B AR 955 2,097
Actuarial expected return on plan assets EEEZ BE AR R (2,490) (3,692)
Expense charged to consolidated RERE W = R FER
income statement (note 6(b)) ZF#EJSE (B 5E6(0)) 4,875 3,558
The expense is recognised in the following line EERIZ TR TIGRERERA
items in the consolidated income statement: ZIBEFER
— Cost of sales — HEMAE 386 45
— Selling and distribution expenses — HERDHEAX 2,736 2,028
— Administrative expenses — 1THHAX 1,753 1,485
4,875 3,558
Actual return on plan assets AEEECZER TR
— gains/(losses) — &F (E#8) 11,996 (14,079)
The cumulative amount of actuarial gains and losses recognised directly — (vi) ET%EME&T&BEE%ZE%E%E FLERRETEIGE
in equity: BB
2009 2008
—EENF —EE)N\F
$'000 $'000
T T
At 1 January n—HA—H (57,471) (21,828)
Amount recognised during the year FAERESE 20,936 (35,643)
At 31 December R+ZA=+—8H (36,535) (57,471)
EE NS TRERA A
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BAAS AR AT

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (BB B ERI - RBEERTHE)
26 Employee retirement benefits (continued) 26 EERBRHEEH
(a) Defined benefit retirement plan (Continued) (a) EET|FERATE @)
(viiy  The principal actuarial assumptions used as at 31 December 2009 are  (vii) RZZEZAF+_A=+—8 " A2
as follows: FERBERZROT -
The Group and the Company
AEBREARAT
2009 2008
—EZAF —EENF
Discount rate B3R =& 2.60% 1.20%
Expected rate of return on plan assets FFEEEZEHRRE 5.70% 6.50%
Future salary increases RAEF & 2L 2.50% 3.00%
The expected rate of return on plan assets is based on the portfolio as SHEIEEZ BHIRRE I REEEA R
awhole and not on the sum of the returns on individual asset categories. ERRELERTE - WEETHE -
The return is based exclusively on historical returns, without
adjustments.
Historical information EEER
The Group and the Company
AEERARDT
2009 2008 2007 2006 2005
—ETAFE —TT)N\F —ITT+F —TTRF —TTHF
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Present value of the defined EREMNaE
benefit obligations ZHE 76,375 82,678 62,731 103,566 96,361
Fair value of plan assets FrEIEEZ A ARE (58,286) (44,833) (54,106) (88,696) (81,434)
Deficit i 18,089 37,845 8,625 14,870 14,927
Experience NGRS
adjustments on: ISR
— Plan liabilities —iTEAaR’ 1,408 3,291 (3,475) (900) (2,679)
— Plan assets —tEEE (9,506) 17,771 (3,728) (1,156) (8,606)
(b) Defined contribution retirement plans

(i)

Staff employed by the Group in Hong Kong not joining the above defined
benefit retirement plan are required to join the Group’s mandatory
provident fund plan under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance. The mandatory provident fund plan is a defined
contribution retirement plan administered by an independent corporate
trustee. Under the plan, the Group and its employees are each required
to make contributions to the plan at 5% of the employees’ relevant
income, subject to a cap of monthly relevant income of $20,000.
Contributions to the plan vest immediately.

Employees of the subsidiaries in the PRC are members of pension
schemes operated by the PRC government. The Group is required to
contribute 17.75% to 28.45% of employees’ remuneration to these
pension schemes to fund the benefits. The only obligation for the Group
with respect to these pension schemes is the required contribution
under the central pension scheme. Contributions to these schemes
vest immediately.

(b) EEHEFR KT

(i

(i)

RIEFBCGEFIMEATE ST BIEN) - A&
EEESEAMILEMA LN EBEFE
KBRS - BIMAKREBRZRSIEA
EEata - e REEE T —ERE
SOEBZ AT RN EBEIURRE
BIEEHTE  AEBREEESHAN
FEMEHHER  BBEAREEEEAEN
5% + =R BBEAERNRE/KFA20,000
TC o YETEMER M EFEERE -

TEMEARIEB RTERFZENTR
BRAEFEINKE - REBAL P RRK
S EUFIERERENRERES - HE
RIEBMESM7.75%%28.45% ° AEH
BT REAR S EINE R RRET
RIRAREEBIAEHNERAHR - HEtE
1EH B HREN B SR R -
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

27
(a)

(b)
0}

Income tax in the balance sheet 27

Current tax recoverable in the consolidated balance (a)
sheet represents:

0175 3R Y oE
(B SHEHRIN - HRAEEE)
RERBREMINZHFR

GEEEABERMY T KE A
BIELE -

The Group
REE
2009 2008
—ZEThE —EEN\F
$'000 $'000
T 7
Provisional Hong Kong Profits Tax paid EREHEENER — 101
Deferred tax recognised: (b) ERIBELEHE :
The Group (i) A=

The components of deferred tax (assets) and liabilities recognised in
the consolidated balance sheet and the movements during the year
are as follows:

Depreciation  Impairment

RiFRBEERBRERELEHRA(BE)
RAEZERIEDRFAZEHOT

allowances losses of
inexcess  receivables  Retirement
of related and benefit
depreciation inventories liabilities Tax losses Others Total
W
TEENERR FEREE BIER
ARNEZEE ZREFR Z8E REER 2t @it
$'000 $'000 $°000 $'000 $°000 $'000
T T r r i r
Deferred tax arising from: ERERERS -
At 1 January 2008 RZEE\E-A-H

— as previously reported — R A5% 147581 (3,772) (1,595) (76,338) (1916) 63,960
Prior period adjustment in respectof ~ EEEREERA

advertising and promotional materials  Z MBI EE %

(note 2) (H#2) - - - (374) - (374)
At 1 January 2008 (restated) RZFEN\E-F-H(EE)) 147581 (3,772) (1,595) (76,712) (1916) 63,586
Exchange adjustments ERHE 4191 99) - (20) (117) 3,955
(Credited)/charged to consolidated A MER

income statement (restated) GGTA)/Hk (BE5))

(note 7(a) (M376) (65.271) 258 - 7,080 (579) (58,512)
Charged to equity (note 11) RERTAR (1) - - 155 5,984 - 6,139

31 December 2008 and RZEENE+-A=1-BER

1 January 2009 (restated) “EENE-R-R(BET) 86,501 (3,613) (1,440) (63,668) (2,612) 15,168
Fxchange adjustments Emﬁé 18 (2) - - 4) 12
(Credited)/charged to consolidated  RMAKER GEA) /1B

income statement (note 7(a)) (B3 7(a) (7,905) 3,533 - (516) 2,616 (2,212)
(Credited)/charged to equity (note 1) FEZWR (G A) /4B (B5E11) - - (263) 37 - (226)

31 December 2009 RZEENE+-A=1-H 78,614 (82) (1,703) (64,147) - 12,682

EBENEERBERA T
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS | Bf#&sR®MIzE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (BB B ERI - RBEERTHE)
27 Income tax in the balance sheet (continued) 27 BEAREIMIIZHER®
(b) Deferred tax recognised: (Continued) (b) EOERELZEHE:@ &)
(i) The Group (Continued) (i) AEE (&)
Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of the following AEERTBEMMB AR ARI T SIE
items, which pertain to the subsidiaries in the PRC: B Aol B2 RIE R TH & E i R
2009 2008
—EENF —EENF
$'000 $'000
Fr Fir
Tax losses RIBEE 167,713 140,541
Deductible temporary differences AENEREER 350,397 56,101
518,110 196,642
Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of the above R R BE T TE AR B M 8 A B R SR BE 40 1E 1S
items as it is not probable that the relevant subsidiaries would generate EHERREAFAKIDERET - thAER
future taxable profits against which the above items can be utilised. WARBRLEHIBEB SR EERIEE
o
The tax losses can be carried forward up to five years from the year in EEANEBEEEEARRRATER 58
which the loss originated, and will expire in the following years: EHAF M
2009 2008
—EZThEF —EENF
$'000 $'000
T Ft
2010 —E-ZF 35,623 35,566
2011 —E——F 81,264 81,135
2012 —E——F 15,297 15,273
2013 —E—= 6,576 8,567
2014 —E—mF 28,953 —
167,713 140,541

San Miguel Brewery Hong Kong Ltd.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

27 Income tax in the balance sheet (continued) 27 BEAREIMIIZHER @
(b) Deferred tax recognised: (Continued) (b) EOEREEZEHE: &)
(i) The Company (i) P NN

REEBBRERZELEHRIA (BE) K&
BZERED RFRAZEFHIT :

The components of deferred tax (assets) and liabilities recognised in
the balance sheet and the movements during the year are as follows:

Depreciation
allowances
inexcess  Impairment Retirement
of related losses of benefit
depreciation receivables liabilities Tax losses Total
REAHE
BREE EWEE BRER
REz8E HEER 8f REEA @
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Tr Tr i T T
Deferred tax arising from: ERRERE -
At 1 January 2008 RZ2E\5-A-H
— as previously reported — SRS 80,012 (2,038) (1,595) (75,952) 427
Prior period adjustment in respect of ~ AEEEREEMR
advertising and promotional LB EERE
materials (note 2) (F#2) - — — (374) (374)
At 1 January 2008 (restated) RZ2Z\E-A—H(BEJ) 80,012 (2,038) (1,595) (76,326) 53
(Credited)/charged to profitor loss ~ AMEZR (GEA) /Hk
(restated) (B E5l) (7,699) 180 - 12,701 5,182
Charged to equity EERR — - 155 - 155
At 31 December 2008 and RZZENF+ZA=+-Ak
1 January 2009 (restated) “EENF-A-H(BEF) 72,313 (1,858) (1,440) (63,625) 5,390
Charged/(credited) to profit or loss REETRR/ GEA) 1,207 1,776 - (233) 2,750
Credited to equity RERTREA — — (263) - (263)
At 31 December 2009 R_EENF+-A=1-H 73,520 (82) (1,703) (63,858) 7,871
BBE NG BEAR A A
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS | Bf#&sR®MIzE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (BRBEETIN  HRBEHE)
28 Capital and reserves 28 BFkiEiE
(@) Movements in components of equity (@) HZILE2H
The reconciliation between the opening and closing balances of each REBEZIFEEFREHBYNEYRER
component of the Group’s consolidated equity is set out in the FEREEEEEBRNTE - XATFIZ
consolidated statement of changes in equity. Details of the changes in BEERIT DO F R FEREEFBRIA
the Company's individual components of equity between the beginning THE
and the end of the year are set out below:
Share Share Retained
capital premium profits Total
[ R4 RE W& wHE kel
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Tr Tr Tr Tr
Balance at 1 January 2008 RZBENF-A-B&EH
As previously reported FLRIFIR 186,785 65,739 1,314,731 1,567,255
Prior period adjustment BRES
in respect of advertising FEEm
and promotional materials LRI FERE
(note 2) (P 7E2) — — (1,890) (1,890)
Balance at 1 January 2008 R-ZBENE-A—-H&R
(restated) (BE3) 186,785 65,739 1,312,841 1,565,365
Changes in equity for 2008: “EE\FREEH
Actuarial gains and losses of EBBMRREE
defined benefit retirement LRRERMRER
plan, net of tax (BBite) — — (35,798) (35,798)
Loss for the year (restated) FEEBEEBE)
(note 10) (KtzE10) — — (193,176) (193,176)
Balance at 31 December 2008 R-BENE+-A=t-BK
and 1 January 2009 “ZENF-A-H
(restated) (BE35) 186,785 65,739 1,083,867 1,336,391
Changes in equity for 2009: “EENFREREE:
Actuarial gains and losses of EBRMERREE
defined benefit retirement LIRERFRER
plan, net of tax (BRHi18) - - 21,199 21,199
Loss for the year (note 10) FEEBE (0 — — (265,411) (265,411)
Balance at 31 December 2009 RZZEZNET_A=T—H 186,785 65,739 839,655 1,092,179
(b) Share capital (b) BA
The Company
AAT
2009 2008
—EEhEF —EENF
$'000 $'000
Fr Tt
Authorised: EERA
400,000,000 ordinary shares of $0.50 each 400,000,0005% & J& EI1E0.507C
2 EmRR 200,000 200,000
Issued and fully paid: BETRBRRKRA
373,570,560 ordinary shares of $0.50 each 373,570,560% & I [ {60.507T
2 &k 186,785 186,785
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(b)

(c)
0}

(i)

(iii)

(d)

(e)

Capital and reserves (continued)

Share capital (Continued)

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive dividends as
declared from time to time and are entitled to one vote per share at
meetings of the Company. All ordinary shares rank equally with regard
to the Company’s residual assets.

Nature and purpose of reserves

Share premium

The application of the share premium account is governed by Section
48B of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Capital reserve

The capital reserve represents the reserve arising from the capitalisation
of retained profits of a PRC subsidiary.

Exchange fluctuation reserve

The exchange fluctuation reserve comprises all foreign exchange
differences arising from the translation of the financial statements of
subsidiaries outside Hong Kong and the foreign exchange differences
arising from translation of monetary items that in substance form part
of the net investment in subsidiaries outside Hong Kong. The reserve is
dealt with in accordance with the accounting policy set out in note 1(t).

Distributability of reserves

The distributable reserves of the Company as at 31 December 2009
were $839,655,000 (2008 (restated): $1,083,867,000).

Capital management

The Group’s primary objectives when managing capital are to safeguard
the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, so that it can continue
to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders,
by pricing products commensurately with the level of risk and by
securing access to finance at a reasonable cost.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its capital
structure to maintain a balance between the higher shareholder returns
that might be possible with higher levels of borrowings and the
advantages and security afforded by a sound capital position, and makes
adjustments to the capital structure in light of changes in economic
conditions.

Consistent with industry practice, the Group monitors its capital
structure on the basis of a debt-to-equity ratio. For this purpose the
Group defines debt as total bank loans.

During 2009, the Group's strategy was to maintain the debt-to-equity
ratio at a reasonable level, not exceeding 30% (2008: 5-15%).
Management increased the threshold for the debt-to-equity ratio as it
considers that the Group can generate higher shareholder returns by
utilising more external borrowings. In order to maintain or adjust the
ratio, the Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to
shareholders, issue new shares, return capital to shareholders, raise
new debt financing or sell assets to reduce debt.

28
(b)

(c)
(M

(i)

(iif)

(d)

(e)

B B R AR Y R

(B BEERI - HERAESE)
B R o R ()
B ()

ERERFEABRERTREIROE
WA ERRTIARE FE8EA — R hig—
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MR 10 E
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7 fe

RARRZEZENF+_A=+—H2ZH
3 R (5 1 /53839,655,0007T (ZEZE N\ 4F
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BEAXEE
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BESISARIC S - WEMARE RIRRIZH B
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (BRBEETIN  HRBEHE)
28 Capital and reserves (Continued) 28 BFRf#m =
(e) Capital management (Continued) (e) ﬁzlx‘“ii ¢=))
The debt-to-equity ratio at 31 December 2009 and 2008 was as follows: ZERNRZEENFEF_A=+—H
ZéleiﬁrféfattfﬁuT
The Group The Company
rEH NN
2009 2008 2009 2008
—EBETAE —ZTENF —EFhE _—_TT)N\F
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Fr Tt Fr Tt
(restated) (restated)
(BEE5)) (BE&ES)
Bank loans IRITER 242,343 186,146 — —
Equity = 1,169,484 1,490,925 1,092,179 1,336,391
Debt-to-equity ratio BERFBELE 12% N/A FEA N/A 73 A

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries are subject to externally

AR B S IHERRLES FIIMEEAR

imposed capital requirements. Ek o
29 Financial risk management and fair values 29 apEBREERAAEE
Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate and currency risks arises in REBE-—MEBBEREFEEE - AH
the normal course of the Group's business. The Group’s exposure to g %‘JIH[&A&QI\EH[&A AN E T
these risks and the financial risk management policies and practices ZERBREERAEBMRABERZER
used by the Group to manage these risks are described below. B ERBUR MBS - B o
(@) Credit risk (@ FaRR

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to trade and other
receivables. Management has a credit policy in place and the exposure
to this credit risk is monitored on an ongoing basis.

Credit limit is offered to customers following financial assessment and
an established payment record. General credit period is payment by
the end of the month following the month in which sales took place.
Security in the form of mortgages, cash deposits or bank guarantees is

AEENEERRIEREERKESNE
ffRIE - BB B EERE - A&
BESRZEEERR -

EERBENDRETHHHEREENEE
SRS MERE - —RIEERIHE A
DEM A THEREIE - REBESIERL
%)EHX iﬂé RITERIIBITERIER

obtained from certain customers. Customers who are considered to Hif - ERAEBFERSEHER - B
have higher credit risk are traded on a cash basis. Credit control staff fﬁiz&ﬁ 25 o EEEEAETERER

monitor trade receivables and follow up collections. E 558 R R o
The Group’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the individual NEBEZEER M‘Ixiil?ﬂ%ﬁ B E
characteristics of each customer. At the balance sheet date, 19% (2008 & NEER  19%(ZETNF(BE

(restated): 18%) and 63% (2008 (restated): 44%) of the total trade and
other receivables was due from the Group’s largest customer and the
five largest customers respectively.

The maximum exposure to credit risk without taking account of any
collateral held is represented by the carrying amount of each financial
asset in the balance sheet after deducting any impairment allowance.
The Group does not provide any guarantees which would expose the
Group to credit risk. Except for the financial guarantees given by the
Company as set out in note 32, the Company does not provide any
other guarantees which would expose the Company to credit risk.

The Group's cash and cash equivalents are placed with various financial

F) = 18%) }63% (ZZEZENF (BEF) -
44%) M EIRE 5 K E M BRIE S Bl sk B &
EESARFPRAERER ©

BRAGERRECEREERBERAZEH
EEMNEEEMRBRERBERTEEE
RY) 515k o A5 B I B E IR
mESEERR o B TR 3207584
RANFBERIN - ARBALEEAELE
fERME L EERR -

AEENS S RSRALEARRTRRE

institutions with sound credit ratings, and the management consider AR RFHEaEE - Bt - BEER
the Group'’s exposure to credit risk is low. RASEBEmYNERRRRE -
The Group's exposure to the credit risk and its policies for managing AEEAZHEERRRAERHFEE -

such risk were unchanged from 2008.

TEN\ERR -
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(b)

B B R AR Y R

(B SHERI - RABESE)

Financial risk management and fair values 29 £REBRETERLAABEG
(Continued)
Liquidity risk (b) RBELER
Individual operating entities within the Group are responsible for their REBAFERCEEREAEEAGNE
own cash management, including the short term investment of cash SER  BEHRSRMIERRIRE - X
surpluses and the raising of loans to cover expected cash demands, NMEABFURRERRSF R - EME
subject to approval by the parent company's board when the borrowings BEAE TEEXKTE - QBB AR
exceed certain predetermined levels of authority. The Group’s policy is BEEQIE AEECZBRATHERH
to regularly monitor its liquidity requirements to ensure that it maintains MBESHE  UBREEREHVZES
sufficient reserves of cash and adequate committed lines of funding REMEFZVBREALZRREIHNES
from major financial institutions to meet its liquidity requirements in BE UWnhtEEHERAZRDESS
the short and longer term. The Group’s exposure to the liquidity risk Ko AEBZRBERRERREKE-E
and its policies for managing such risk were unchanged from 2008. T\FHRA
The following table shows the remaining contractual maturities at the TREAEBERARANGEE AV HEE
balance sheet date of the Group’s and the Company’s financial liabilities, 2 HERA KIEIRRIERF AT MPARTHIR
which are based on contractual undiscounted cash flows (including MHERE BRREINBXRFE 2B
interest payments computed using contractual rates or, if floating, based T B FEER  REERERZ
on rates current at the balance sheet date) and the earliest date the ERFEZHMELZH) RSB EAA A
Group and the Company can be required to pay: AHER P ERBBIEL S TELE -
The Group AEE
2009 2008
“EZhE —ZENF
Contractual Contractual
undiscounted undiscounted
cash outflow cash outflow
G LERRER AHERIR
HWEHEERE MEERE
Total - Balance Total - Balance
Within sheet Within sheet
1 year or carrying 1 year or carrying
on demand amount on demand amount
—FRRH BE —FRK BE
RERE =0iE RE Kk BER
EpEck o] IREE 3|EmsE IREE
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
T T T T
Bank loans RITER 251,770 242,343 196,291 186,146
Trade and other payables ERNE S RAMIRE 168,467 168,467 231,385 231,385
Amounts due to holding e DA R
companies and fellow RZAKERA
subsidiaries 3] 11,793 11,793 6,457 6,457
432,030 422,603 434,133 423,988
BBE NG BEAR A A

“EEAEFH
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29 Financial risk management and fair values 29 eMEREERAAEE®
(Continued)
(b) Liquidity risk (Continued) (b) RBESRK (E
The Company NN
2009
—EENF

Contractual undiscounted
cash outflow
EHNERBRNRESHRE

More than Balance

Within 1 year but sheet

1 year or less than carrying

on demand 2 years Total amount

—FRY B EE

RERE —FE85 B8ERE

2 A R=F R (R

$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

F F Fr Fr

Trade and other payables ERNE S kEMRIA 50,533 — 50,533 50,533
Amounts due to holding FEfT IR A B
companies and fellow EIESL =SNG

subsidiaries BRIE 9,237 — 9,237 9,237

Amounts due to subsidiaries FEAS B 8 A B8R 1R 287 443,334 443,621 443,621

60,057 443,334 503,391 503,391

2008
ZEENF
Contractual undiscounted
cash outflow
ERERBBENHRERZE

More than Balance

Within 1 year but sheet

1 year or less than carrying

on demand 2 years Total amount

—F AR fiazpic] BE

RERK —FED aEXRE

EE i ] Ik

$°000 $'000 $'000 $'000

Tt T Tt Tt

Trade and other payables ERNE S kEMKRIA 66,449 — 66,449 66,449
Amounts due to holding R ERAR R
companies and EIESL)=SNC]

fellow subsidiaries BRIE 558 — 558 558

Amounts due to subsidiaries FEAS B B8 A B8R 1R 13,540 355,622 369,162 369,162

80,547 355,622 436,169 436,169
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29 Financial risk management and fair values 29

(Continued)

R R @k

AEE S FIERREE SR TERE
£ SEBFAZHESRAERRRA
» BEFNERBR D BIR S FBF EREE
MEMBITER -

(c) Interest rate risk (c)

The Group's interest rate risk arises primarily from short-term bank
loans. Bank loans issued at variable rates and at fixed rates expose the
Group to cash flow interest rate risk and fair value interest rate risk
respectively.

NRER

TRAREBRARRNEER ZRITE
KL =

(i) Interest rate profile (i)

The following table details the interest rate profile of the Group’s bank
loans at the balance sheet date:

2009 2008
“EZhE ZEENF
Effective Effective
interest interest
rate rate
BEERAR B A &
% $'000 % $'000
Fr T
Fixed rate borrowings: B EFIEER
— Bank loans — RITER 3.89 242,343 — —
Variable rate borrowings: FEFEREK
— Bank loans — RITER — 5.45 186,146
(i)  Sensitivity analysis (i) SHBHEDH

At 31 December 2008, it was estimated that a general increase/decrease
of 100 basis points in interest rates, with all other variables held
constant, would increase/decrease the Group's loss after tax and
decrease/increase retained profits both by approximately $1,396,000.

The sensitivity analysis for 2008 indicates the instantaneous change in
the Group's loss after tax (and retained profits) in respect of the
exposure to cash flow interest rate risk arising from floating rate
instruments held by the Group at the balance sheet date. The impact
on the Group's loss after tax (and retained profits) was estimated as an
annualised impact on interest expense or income of such a change in
interest rates.

For 2009, all the borrowings are at fixed rates and management
considers they do not expose the Group to a significant fair value
interest rate risk as they are short-term and not re-priced. Therefore,
sensitivity analysis is not prepared for 2009.

RZZZNF+_A=+—8  FHtF=x
TR BT EEMAESREE
RETENBERT  KREBERFERH
‘EBREEIN RO RIS REBR L
8 HN#71,396,0007T °

FRMN TR R ASEN — 2T\ FHkk
Mg B 1E (R ) BB B44E - Tom
RAKBEREERER A IRANZET
TR SIBAKEEERS RN EER
PREEL - REERTRER (MKREFRE)
MR ERIAZENTRCHF BB Ak
AREREZEFEMGE -

RZZTNF - B ERFN TG BEER
o WHREMISEHER R T SHER
EE - BRERRTMHIE/NEETK
BRNRAAEBENXEAR - R _FETA
FAU BB HGRNEDT

EBENRBHAR AR
—EENFER
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BAAS AR AT

(EREERIN  BIRBEEE)

29 Financial risk management and fair values 29 £RERBEERAAEE®
(Continued)

(d) Currency risk (d) ERE
The Group is exposed to currency risk primarily through sales, REEXZREER S RIRITHEREEN
purchases, borrowings, expenses and recharges amongst group entities SN (BIgtz R 5 M E WIEBRER 21
which give rise to receivables, payables, bank loans and cash balances BEE®) BB 2 FEURK - ERFER -
that are denominated in a foreign currency, i.e. a currency other than RITEREREET - B IMNER
the functional currency of the operations to which the transactions B o SIBUNERB e EBEZREET
relate. The currencies giving rise to this risk are primarily United States BN ZE KR TT o
dollars, Euros and Australian dollars.
For group entities whose functional currency is Hong Kong dollars, all HREBALBTEDEEENSEE
sales and purchases are denominated in either Hong Kong dollars or B BRELERHBEBUNSORMNETHS
United States dollars, except for certain purchases from Europe or SN TEHE BB B TRETIER
Australia. Given that Hong Kong dollar is pegged to the United States SEM - ARBITEETTHN - HAKE
dollar, management do not expect that there will be any significant TBHZET BTERTEHEANEEE - =
currency risk associated with such United States dollars denominated RGBT RMEAEZRS » HRAZE
transactions. For transactions denominated in Euros and Australian BEBAENRGENE  WAKERAZE
dollars, since the volume of such transactions is not significant, HE B BINERRTAK -
management consider the exposure to currency risk to be low.
For group entities whose functional currency is Renminbi, except for HREERNUAREEDGEEHSEE
certain borrowings (from group entities and banks) and transactions B BRTHEERNIEE RO ER IS
amongst group entities that are denominated in either Hong Kong B RTTIES) BB T ETTIEEN -
dollars or United States dollars, most of other transactions are Hih 2GR AANREIEER o ¥RETK
denominated in Renminbi. For borrowings denominated in United States BILER  BEREEeEHELRT - X
dollars, the management review the exposure regularly and may TTHRB T, ANREERTF R AEER -
consider replacing them with Renminbi borrowings if the movement in ZEUARBEREER - BASEAN
exchange rate of Renminbi against the United States dollar became ETHBTIEEMNNRS  BERERBR
unfavourable to the Group. For transactions amongst group entities SEBEIEKN - AR A BINER ST
denominated in United States dollars or Hong Kong dollars, the X o
management consider the transaction amounts are not significant and
the exposure to currency risk is low.
The Group's exposure to currency risk and its policies for managing REEAZINE R g L BRI R R —F
such risk were unchanged from 2008. ZT\FHRA -

(i) Exposure to currency risk (i) AZZHERK

The following table details the Group’s and the Company'’s significant
exposure at the balance sheet date to currency risk arising from
recognised assets or liabilities denominated in a currency other than
the functional currency of the entity to which they relate. The exposure
arising from the borrowings from group entities that in substance form
part of the net investment in subsidiaries is excluded. For presentation
purposes, the amounts of the exposure are shown in Hong Kong dollars,
translated using the spot rates at the year end date. Differences resulting
from the translation of the financial statements of subsidiaries outside
Hong Kong into the Group’s presentation currency are excluded.

TRUARE RARRREE B I IEAE
HEREESHENCHEREAEXRBE
P 2 SNE R H AR DT « TR
BRESEANRLMEQREL R GZE
RE B RAER TS QR 8 FRE 8 — 3P
D) MELMERR - TRNSBIIREHE
BZERSBMABEIERI A - HER
BRLANB AR 2 B RRRAEEDN
2IERMEENZEL TNBEEA -
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29 Financial risk management and fair values 29 &£RERBEERAALEE®

(Continued)

(d) Currency risk (Continued) (d) ERE (E)
(i) Exposure to currency risk (Continued) (i) AZZHERK (B)
The Group REE

Exposure to foreign currencies
(expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

SRR (BB E)
2009 2008
—EZhEF —FEENF
United States Hong Kong United States Hong Kong
dollars dollars dollars dollars
EYn BT T BT
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Tr Tr T Fr
Trade and other receivables [EWE 5 Kk K BRI — - 1,580 —
Amounts due from holding ey UNEINNS
companies and fellow subsidiaries B R B2 B 8R1E 12,399 287 9,087 13,540
Cash and cash equivalents e hERBRLES 78,210 570 67,403 1,735
Bank loans BITER (50,408) — (50,375) —
Trade and other payables ERE S REMER (6,364) — (3,301) -
Amounts due to holding companies  FEfHERR A ) K&
and fellow subsidiaries EES =N (11,464) (10,012) (5,125) (4,558)
Net exposure R AR FE 22,373 (9,155) 19,269 10,717
The Company NN
EXposure to
foreign currencies
(expressed in
Hong Kong dollars)
SN R B (R Tat &)
2009 2008
—EZAF —EENF
United States United States
dollars dollars
xx =
$'000 $'000
Fr Tt
Trade and other receivables JEWE 5 Kk H A BRIA — 1,471
Amounts due from holding companies JE Wz R 2 B I
and fellow subsidiaries EER 1) =NGIE S 6,753 2,906
Cash and cash equivalents RekFERRESIEE 32,627 157
Trade and other payables JERTE 5 R EMERIR (6,364) (3,301)
Amounts due to holding companies FERER AR R
and fellow subsidiaries EER ) ENGIE S (9,076) (556)
Net exposure [ B A R H KR 23,940 677
EBENLERAERR A

—EThFFR
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29 Financial risk management and fair values 29 £RERBEERAAEE®
(Continued)
(d) Currency risk (Continued) (d) sERER (&)
(ii)  Sensitivity analysis (ii) B D AT
The following table indicates the instantaneous change in the Group's TRETEERNGEEEIRAERNRAR 2
loss after tax and retained profits that would arise if foreign exchange SNESTE RN E B2 B ¥ A B 2 BiigEE
rates to which the group entities have significant exposure at the &H&Z 1‘%1%2%5%%% ERFE AR
balance sheet date had changed at that date, assuming all other risk BHIE UM E BEREBEBTEET
variables remained constant. In this respect, it is assumed that the ZFEIEJE’U%%%QETK@(J:TX%ERE1 I
pegged rate between the Hong Kong dollar and the United States dollar o EEEHMTE
would be materially unaffected by any changes in movement in value
of the United States dollar against other currencies.
2009 2008
—EThE ZETNF
Increase/ Increase/
(decrease) Increase/ Increase/ (decrease) Increase/ Increase/
in foreign  (decrease)  (decrease) in foreign (decrease) (decrease)
exchange inloss in retained exchange inloss in retained
rates after tax profits rates after tax profits
NEER REAER W& e SNEER  BREAER et
t#/ &,/ &,/ H/ #Bm/ #m/
(F¥) (i %) (R 2) (T%) (R2) (R4)
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Tr Tr T Tr
United States dollars E 5% (1,495) 1,495 5% (1,552) 1,552
(5)% 1,495 (1,495) (5)% 1,552 (1,552
Hong Kong dollars BT 5% 317 (317) 5% (374) 374
(5)% (317) 317 (5)% 374 (374)
Results of the analysis as presented in the above table represent an ERAZNZ DTEREAEBE S EEEE
aggregation of the instantaneous effects on each of the group entities’ LERITHEEERFE (REWER @ 1%
profit or loss measured in the respective functional currencies, HEAZEXIZBABT) 2AFEER
translated into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rate ruling at the ZEIRERE -
balance sheet date for presentation purposes.
The sensitivity analysis assumes that the change in foreign exchange BRRMEDHTE RERINEE R 2 B E AR
rates had been applied to re-measure those financial instruments held B EASEMFALR %ﬁ (EREFINS
by the Group which expose the Group to currency risk at the balance 155 T NG L B Zirﬂlﬂ BiEEER
sheet date, including inter-company payables and receivables within DAV 3B 7T KB 75 2 NRE R M AR B A )
the Group which are denominated in a currency other than the W ETERIE - WEBIRKREREHES
functional currency of the lender or the borrower. The analysis excludes T—FEAERNERA R E NS IR
differences that would result from the translation of the financial i o WA ABEIEGEAEUIINMB AR Z
statements of subsidiaries outside Hong Kong into the Group's WS mRHnE ﬁXZlS%lZEﬁlJfﬁ%ﬁﬁFE
presentation currency. The analysis is performed on the same basis for ZERE e ZENMEE_TTN\FHERZ
2008. BT o
(e) Fair value (e) ~REHE
The non-trade balances with holding companies and fellow subsidiaries MR AR RERNBARNIEE ZIRIE
are unsecured, interest-free and have no fixed repayment terms. Given ERHREEAR S S B EETERE -
these terms, it is not meaningful to disclose their fair values. ERZERR BEEAABEZEET
X o

All other significant financial assets and liabilities are carried at amounts
not materially different from their fair values as at 31 December 2009
and 2008.

FIEREMERS @Eé?&@ MRREEE
BREEAR_ZENFR_FTENF+ A
=St BRNAABELIEERER -

San Miguel Brewery Hong Kong Ltd.
Annual Report 2009




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

30
(a)

(b)

B 7% #R R M 55
(B BEERS  HERBEHE)
commitments 30 #&iE

(@ R-ZBEAF+ZA=t+—H XK
EMBHRERFBE RNV ERERE

Capital commitments outstanding at 31 December
2009 not provided for in the financial statements were

as follows: HEWMT -
The Group The Company
REE ¥ NN
2009 2008 2009 2008
—EENF —ZEENF —EENF —EENF
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
T Fx T Tt
Contracted for EEES! — 38,403 — 423
Authorised but not BEHEBRETL
contracted for 2,396 1,725 214 1,362
2,396 40,128 214 1,785

R-ZBFEAF+ZA=+T—-H #
BRAHESEHEMEN ZARR

At 31 December 2009, the total future minimum lease (b)
payments under non-cancellable operating leases

were payable as follows: BEMEEHREMT :
The Group The Company
rEH KATF
2009 2008 2009 2008
“EEAE —TENF ZBEBEAE —ZETNF
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
ST FT Fr Tt
Land and buildings TR EE
Within 1 year —FR 205 242 — —
After 1 year but within 5 years —%F%EBRER 108 — — —
,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, BN 22 D T
Plant and machinery P K #Es
Within 1 year —FR 159 159 — —
After 1 year but within 5 years —HF%EBRER 292 450 — —
,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, B _ 00 DN
764 851 — _

AEBERABARBEEHENEES
HREENLEER#EIRE - ZFHE—

The Group, as a lessee, leases a number of properties and items of
machinery and equipment under operating leases. The leases typically

run for an initial period of two years with an option to renew the lease
when all terms are renegotiated. None of the leases includes contingent
rentals.

ROIZREME  WAGREEEDHA
REH  ERAEERRETEREE < &
HREMEYTEEAARE -

EBENRBHAR AR
—EENFER
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (BrEBETI  IRBETE
31 Material related party transactions 31 EXREAELXS
In addition to the transactions and balances disclosed elsewhere in BRAMBHERSERE 2R 5 REHIN -
these financial statements, the Group entered into the following material REBEHILATERBEALRS -
related party transactions:
(@) Transactions with group companies (a) HKEERFZBEERS
Due from/(to)
Amounts balances at year end
o] BW () FE&ER

2009 2008 2009 2008

—EThE —ZTZTNF ZBEAE ZTZT)N\F

Note $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

B 5 SEoL T Fr Tz

Purchases from g =] 0]

— ultimate holding company — — & &4ER A &) — 3,906 — (1,197)

— intermediate holding — R ERA A

company 3,936 — — —

— fellow subsidiaries — R EM B AT 28,771 20,926 (9,287) (642)

Sales to =i 0]

— intermediate holding — R ERA A

company 27,321 914 6,211 —

— fellow subsidiaries — REME AT 51 31 — 1,462

Royalty payments to TNEFEER (i)

— intermediate holding — R ER AT

companies 2,412 4,152 (2,193) (3,908)

— a related party — BEAL 1,929 1,905 (1,931) (1,928)

Engineering design fee TN IEERAE (iii)

payable to
— a fellow subsidiary — RARKBAR 512 1,151 (256) (681)

Notes: B 5 -

i) Sales to and purchases from group companies were carried out at terms (i) t*’x SIREFRB 2IGFHET B
mutually agreed by both parties. The terms of the outstanding balances B H R 2 IR EE21R 51 8 o
are set out in note 21.

(i) Royalty is payable to intermediate holding companies and a minority (i) B EREREBEFARM &
shareholder for the use of certain trademarks pursuant to relevant EARENEEZ A FRNERDE R
licensing agreements. —BEATHNER -

During the year, an intermediate holding company waived the Group’s RAFE  —FNERIFBEARE
royalty amounting to $603,000, which is not included in the amounts 8] /) 5 R4 & A $£603,0000T © It &5
disclosed above. WEBREENLABEENSTES -

(i) Engineering design service was provided by a fellow subsidiary in respect (iif) BERFBANDBRBEIEEZSERR
of a subsidiary’s brewery expansion plan according to the Engineering [911% Al BEEER & B — R R
Design Services Agreement. B AERM -

These transactions also constitute connected transactions under the BEEMRA - WERSHEKEERZS -

Listing Rules.

San Miguel Brewery Hong Kong Ltd.
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B B R AR Y R

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (BRBEETIN  ARBEHE)
31 Material related party transactions (continued) 31 EXREAELZS @
(b) Other transactions with group companies (b) HSERHMBERS
Due from/(to)
Amounts balances at year end
-t Bl () FR&ER
2009 2008 2009 2008
—EEAE —EENF —EZThE —ZEENF
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Fr FIT Fr FT
Expenses paid by the Group on BAEENREE QA
behalf of group companies RZEH
— ultimate holding company — — &&¥ER A &) 3,349 2,802 540 1,458
— intermediate holding — R ER A A
company 15 304 5,644 6,185
— immediate holding company — &EZ#ZR A 7 2 — 2 —
— fellow subsidiaries — AR B A A 150 280 63 27
Expenses paid by group FREIERN T
companies on the Group'’s REEH
behalf RIZEA
— ultimate holding company — — &&IER A &) 4,267 1,370 — —
— intermediate holding company — A2 & A A 557 482 — —
— fellow subsidiaries — RRWE R A 88 430 (57) (29)
(c) Key management personnel remuneration (c) FEEBAEME
Remuneration for key management personnel of the Group, including AEEZTEZERAB S (BIEMFESFT
amounts paid to the Company'’s directors as disclosed in note 8 and HEEMA RN RIEE X 2 I8 KR #
the highest paid employees as disclosed in note 9, is as follows: BRETHRaTEEINZRE) T -
2009 2008
—EThEF —ZEENF
$'000 $'000
Fr Tt
Short-term employee benefits HHEERF 16,141 13,033
Post-employment benefits BEER 12 TR F 742 723
Termination benefits BRI ERET — 575
Equity compensation benefits 8 7 75 5 48 A = —
16,883 14,331
Total remuneration is included in “staff costs” (see note 6(0)). HES B ATE IEM A (RIEE60) °
32 contingent liabilities 32 HRAR

As at 31 December 2009, there were contingent liabilities in respect of
guarantees given to banks by the Company to secure banking facilities
made available to a subsidiary which expire on 15 July 2010, 3
September 2010 and 8 October 2010.

As at the balance sheet date, the directors do not consider it probable
that a claim will be made against the Company under any of the
guarantees. The maximum liability of the Company at the balance sheet
date under the guarantees issued is the facilities drawn down by the
subsidiary of $242,343,000 (2008: $186,146,000).

The Company has not recognised any deferred income in respect of
the guarantees as the fair values cannot be reliably measured and its
transaction price was $Nil (2008: $Nil).

W-ZRNF+-A=+—R  ARTE
FE R — R R A A — B 2
RIS IR i B A VSR AL - 3R
REN-F—FFLATHA —2-%
FAAZRR-F-FF+ANREM -

REER  BEZERARZERMEAAA
BREENEESTK - AMEEBARRRE
EHERTHERBEAZMEBARSA
2R E242,343,0007T (ZEZ )\ 4F -
186,146,0007T) ©

HZEROAABEREEETE - BEX
ZEBRBTLT(CEENF  Tn) » AR
Bl R A HERA B R RO EAETA

EBENRBHAR AR
—EENFER
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (BRBEETIN  HRBEHE)

33 Comparative figures 33 HER®F

(@)  As aresult of the application of HKAS 1 (revised 2007), Presentation of (@) HME B LA FE 1R (BT LEE
financial statements, and HKFRS 8, Operating segments, certain i) [IBHREZZI I REBTHREE
comparative figures have been adjusted to conform to the current year's B8R (A& 9 El /1% - BETHREFTE
presentation and to provide comparative amounts in respect of items RERNZ 2 RIEL AR - WEHRZF
disclosed for the first time in 2009. Further details of these TNFERBECHARHLERSRE - %
developments are disclosed in note 2. L FBONMF2HE -

(b) certain comparative figures have been restated as a result of  (b) %miliﬂ%-i/aau YERIF 385 [ L E e
amendments to HKAS 38, Intangible assets, as set out in note 2. & B THEBRETERBARZZ255H

EH AR - RE R 245 -

34 Immediate and ultimate controlling party 3 HERSHERERERLF
At 31 December 2009, the Directors consider the immediate parent RZZEENFE+_A=+—H" %%
and ultimate controlling party of the Group to be Neptunia Corporation ZIS’% IE’JE&! A R A RS J
Limited and San Miguel Corporation respectively. Neptunia Corporation RImAAR A B RENER T o ;urna?F'J
Limited is incorporated in Hong Kong while San Miguel Corporation is BR AT EBTMA S A B AT A
incorporated in the Republic of the Philippines. San Miguel Corporation RIEREHXFBEFEMAL - £ HBRRE
produces financial statements available for public use. SIS ImMEKR T AREA

35 Accounting judgements and estimates 35 ErHEERAER
Notes 5 and 26 contain information about the assumptions and their BRI FES R 268 B B AFE BN & ERE
risk factors relating to the non-current assets impairment and retirement MEREANAEZREIN - LTRSS
benefit liabilities. Other key sources of estimation uncertainty are as BRI R R ) B R Ah AT
follows:

(@) Impairment of fixed assets, intangible assetsand other (a) EE¥E - BEFEERHEMEFRE
tangible assets EZRE
If the circumstances indicate that the carrying values of these assets MEBERERZEEEA Ak - &
may not be recoverable, the assets may be considered “impaired” and ENHERAIERE] - WARBESSET
an impairment loss may be recognised in accordance with HKAS 36 YERIZE 365 [ B E R E/FERBEREIE - 1R
Impairment of assets. Under HKAS 36, these assets are tested for BEBLHEREIH ZEEERSENH
impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that SER BN AR s BREE ] A
their recorded carrying amounts may not be recoverable. When such a el - BNZEEITRIE R - RHER B
decline has occurred, the carrying amount is reduced to recoverable RIERE - BREEAEERZE T eFE - 7]
amount. The recoverable amount is the greater of its fair value less WEeEAFHEBREFEABERENR
costs to sell and value in use. In determining the value in use, expected mE NREEFEREEREEMEELZTE
cash flows generated by the asset are discounted to their present value, HIRenEHANREERE - WREHE
which requires significant judgement relating to level of sale volume, FHE - EERCENASBIEHERA
selling prices and amount of operating costs. The Group uses all readily kT o NS EE PR A AT F &R AT TE AT UK
available information in determining an amount that is a reasonable CEBHAERE - REREHEE &
approximation of the recoverable amount, including estimates based )Sii“Aﬁ2$%%’ﬁz/\f¥&ﬁ§%7‘ﬂ?“ﬂ
on reasonable and supportable assumptions and projections of sale %ﬁ EU iﬁ"iﬁi  EEREERAR
volume, selling prices and amount of operating costs. However, actual *ﬁ)“zlJE"TE”‘“ ARE AR T EBEE
sale volume, selling prices and operating costs may be different from E’J EEE@VE&%K:HW °
assumptions which may result in a material adjustment to the carrying
amount of the assets affected.

(b) Depreciation of fixed assets (b) EEEEZITE

Fixed assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over their estimated
useful lives, after taking into account the estimated residual values, if
any. The Group reviews the estimated useful lives and the estimated
residual values, if any, of the assets regularly in order to determine the
amount of depreciation expense to be recorded during any reporting
period. The useful lives and residual values are based on the Group’s
historical experience with similar assets and taking into account
anticipated technological changes. The depreciation expense for future
periods is adjusted if there are significant changes from previous
estimates.

BE&ERT MEGBERNGKER (WAE)
% GEHMGAEAFREEGENE -
REEE B ER G A A FR b
AARIREE (WA) Fhies - MEEREK
EHAPAREHTERS - AIERFR
&TIJEMEEEEB““ZS%Iﬂ*EMé“?E’]ﬂ
EEBRRERIRMNBMES MIEL -
Th%ﬁiiﬂfﬂé;ﬁrﬁij@ﬁz“ AR
ERXATHAE -
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

35
(c)

(d)

(e)

(f)

(g)

Accounting judgements and estimates (continued)

Amortisation of other tangible assets

Other tangible assets are amortised on a straight-line basis over their
estimated useful lives, after taking into account the estimated residual
values. The Group reviews the estimated useful lives and estimated
residual values of the assets regularly in order to determine the amount
of amortisation charge to be recorded during any reporting period. The
useful lives and residual values are based on the Group's historical
experience with similar assets. The amortisation charge for future
periods is adjusted if there are significant changes from previous
estimates.

Impairment loss for doubtful debts

The Group maintains an allowance for doubtful debts for estimated
losses resulting from the inability of the debtors to make required
payments. The Group bases the estimates of future cash flows on the
ageing of the trade receivable balance, debtors’ credit-worthiness, and
historical write-off experience. If the financial condition of the debtors
were to deteriorate, actual write-offs would be higher than estimated.

Write down of inventories

The Group performs regular review of the carrying amounts of
inventories with reference to aged inventories analysis, expected future
consumption and management judgement. Based on this review, write
down of inventories will be made when the estimated net realisable
value of inventories declines below the carrying amount. However,
actual consumption may be different from estimation and profit or loss
could be affected by differences in this estimation.

Useful lives of intangible assets

Intangible assets are not amortised as their useful lives are assessed
to be indefinite. The conclusion that the useful life of an intangible asset
is indefinite is reviewed annually to determine whether events and
circumstances continue to support the indefinite useful life assessment.
The Group may need to amortise intangible assets in future periods or
recognise impairment losses on intangible assets if events and
circumstances indicate that the useful life is not indefinite.

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for tax losses not yet used and
temporary deductible differences. As those deferred tax assets can only
be recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit
will be available against which the unused tax credits can be utilised,
management’s judgement is required to assess the probability of future
taxable profits. Management’s assessment is constantly reviewed and
additional deferred tax assets are recognised if it becomes probable
that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be
recovered.

35
(c)

(d)

(e)

(f)

(g)

B B R AR Y R

(B BRI - BB EHE)
BEHES R FIER ()
HithBEREENEH

HibBEER KA RREER &
HGFt Al E M FRIRE ARSI - AEE
E S A E A A AT AR R A A RIER
EEFLRE - LREERRSEBAPAR
SRV B SRR ST o AIE A FR RFIREETY
RBEANEEERLEENBERRMIE
e i BB E AR ERLE - RRHIRA]
MEHRAX AT RE -

R AR BB 18
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BAAS AR AT

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (BB B ERI - RBEERTHE)
36 Possible impact of amendments, new 36 ERAERRBE_ZEZTAEF

standards and interpretations issued but not
yet effective for the year ended
31 December 2009

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the HKICPA has
issued the following amendments, new standards and interpretations
which are not yet effective for the year ended 31 December 2009 and
which have not been adopted in these financial statements.

+=A=+—HILEEENEY
HERIERT - FER R R T
BN

HEAMBHEATER  BESTMAE
ERMEERBE _ZTNF+-_RA=*
—BIEFENARERRERNEET - F2AER
KRB MAMB®E L EERNZEFE
B RTERI R -

Effective for RTSIBH
accounting periods EA 3
beginning on or after ZEHBER
HKFRS 3 (Revised), Business BB BREEREIN
Ccombinations 1 July 2009 CEH))
[EBAH —TENFLA-H
Amendments to HKAS 27, BBGHENER (BF])
Consolidated and separate [fRERERZHBHEZ] —EENFLA—H
financial statements 1 July 2009
Amendments to HKAS 39, BB GHER
Financial instruments: E39% (1B7]) -
Recognition and measurement [€@TA : #AR
— Eligible hedged items 1 July 2009 FAERERYEHIEL] “ETNFLA—H
HK(IFRIC) 17, Distributions of FiE (BRTBRR
non-cash assets to owners 1 July 2009 REZEED)-F17K
[BHB2EE
DETHEBAS I =
1 July 2009 BEMBRELENZ ZETNFLA—H
Improvements to HKFRSs 2009 or 1 January 2010 BEZZTNE F-_E-TF—-f—H

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of what the impact
of these amendments, new standards and new interpretations is
expected to be in the period of initial application. So far it has concluded
that the adoption of them is unlikely to result in a restatement of the
Group’s or the Company's results of operations and financial position.

AREBIEHAZFEINSET - #ER M
BREXERENZE  BBAALEL - &
SERDERMZFEANERT - IR M
BEREHUAEERARRNEEEE LM
BRBRESIM AT REIE K
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Independent auditor’s report to the shareholders of
San Miguel Brewery Hong Kong Limited
(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of San Miguel
Brewery Hong Kong Limited (the “Company”) set out on pages 60 to 132,
which comprise the consolidated and company balance sheets as at 31
December 2009, and the consolidated income statement, the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of
changes in equity and the consolidated cash flow statement for the year
then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory notes.

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation and the
true and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
This responsibility includes designing, implementing and maintaining
internal control relevant to the preparation and the true and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; selecting and applying
appropriate accounting policies; and making accounting estimates that
are reasonable in the circumstances.

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements
based on our audit. This report is made solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with section 141 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and
for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance as to whether
the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of
the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and true and
fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s
internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of
the financial statements.
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We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at 31
December 2009 and of the Group's loss and cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and
have been properly prepared in accordance with the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

77

KPMG
Certified Public Accountants

8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road
Central, Hong Kong

12 March 2010
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FIVE YEAR SUMMARY |

EFREFE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LABHERT &)
2009 2008 2007 2006 2005
—EThE —TT)\F CZITTEF —TTRF C—TTHE
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
S T T T T
(restated) (restated) (restated) (restated)
(BE51) (BE5) (B&E51) (BEZ5)
Results ES |
Turnover BED 696,824 753,375 754,833 826,817 806,909
Loss before taxation BRI RIEE (345,324) (316,692) (315,178) (111,889) (58,939)
Income tax credit/(charge) Frig®at A/ Gngk) 2,272 58,537 55,355 6,514 (7,048)
Loss for the year FEEE (343,052) (258,155) (259,823) (105,375) (65,987)
Attributable to: BT :
— Equity shareholders — KRR
of the Company BEA (334,856) (259,907) (262,127) (69,540) (35,365)
— Minority interests — L EREER (8,196) 1,752 2,304 (35,835) (30,622)
Loss for the year FEEE (343,052) (258,155) (259,823) (105,375) (65,987)
Loss per share FREE
— Basic (cents) — BEAR() (90) (70) (70) (19) )
Cash dividends per share (cents) FRBESBE () = — — — 1
Assets and liabilities EEHEE
Fixed assets ETEE 1,087,198 1,379,561 1,496,910 1,769,377 1,838,164
Intangible assets BREE 17,122 28,722 39,643 39,564 39,525
Goodwill S — _— 5,044 5,044 5,044
Other tangible assets EtEVEE 18,565 41,192 53,164 49,000 41,539
Net current assets MEBEEFE 77,370 94,463 229,015 329,619 360,206
Total assets less current liabilities BEERRBAERE 1,200,255 1,543,938 1,823,776 2,192,604 2,284,478
Long term bank loans REBRITER — — — (95,000) (95,000)
Retirement benefit liabilities EREMEE (18,089) (37,845) (8,625) (14,870) (14,927)
Deferred tax liabilities EREVEER (12,682) (15,168) (63,586) (107,117) (112,551)
Net assets EEFE 1,169,484 1,490,925 1,751,565 1,975,617 2,062,000

San Miguel Brewery Hong Kong Ltd.
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FIVE YEAR SUMMARY | A RERE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LABHERT &)

2009 2008 2007 2006 2005
“EEZAFE CZETN\F ZETTEF ZETRE ZTTHHF
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Tr T T T T
(restated) (restated) (restated) (restated)
(BE5) (BE7)) (BE3) (BE7)

Capital and reserves BAR &
Share capital % 186,785 186,785 186,785 186,785 186,785
Reserves 1] 945,805 1,259,120 1,524,003 1,752,617 1,804,851

Total equity attributable to equity ARFHER
shareholders of the Company BAAEGER 1,132,590 1,445,905 1,710,788 1,939,402 1,991,636
Minority interests PERRER 36,894 45,020 40,777 36,215 70,364
Total equity EREE 1,169,484 1,490,925 1,751,565 1,975,617 2,062,000

Note: Figures for the years 2005 to 2008 have been restated for change in
accounting policy of intangible assets.
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